
Annual Report 2005

Long Island’s Premier Community BankLong Island’s Premier Community Bank



Astoria Financial Corporation (NYSE: AF), headquartered in Lake Success, New York with assets of $22.4 

billion, is the holding company for Astoria Federal Savings and Loan Association. Founded in 1888, Astoria 

Federal is the largest thrift depository headquartered in New York with deposits of $12.8 billion and embraces 

its philosophy of Putting people first by providing the customers and local communities it serves with qual-

ity financial products and services through 86 convenient branch locations and multiple delivery channels, 

including its enhanced website, www.astoriafederal.com. Astoria Federal commands the fourth largest 

deposit market share in the attractive Long Island market, which encompasses Brooklyn, Queens, Nassau 

and Suffolk counties with a combined population of 7.6 million, exceeding that of 38 individual states. 

Astoria Federal originates mortgage loans, primarily hybrid adjustable-rate residential loans, multifamily 

and commercial real estate loans for portfolio, through its banking offices and loan production offices in 

New York, an extensive broker network covering twenty-four states, primarily on the East Coast and the 

District of Columbia, and correspondent relationships covering forty-four states and the District of Columbia. 

our formula for enhancing shareholder value

efficiency

solid returns

mortgage lending retail banking



financial highlights
December 31,

(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Data) 2005  2004  2003  

For the Year Ended
Net interest income $ 478,780 $ 470,566 $ 379,538
Provision for loan losses — — —
Non-interest income 102,199 80,084 119,561
General and administrative expense 228,734 225,011 205,877
Net income 233,803 219,537 196,846
Diluted earnings per common share  2.26 2.00 1.66

At Year End
Total assets $ 22,380,271 $ 23,415,869 $ 22,461,594
Securities available-for-sale 1,841,351 2,406,883 2,654,992
Securities held-to-maturity 4,730,953 6,302,936 5,792,727
Loans receivable, net 14,311,134 13,180,521 12,603,866
Deposits 12,810,455 12,323,257 11,186,594
Borrowings, net 7,937,526 9,469,835 9,632,037
Stockholders’ equity  1,350,227 1,369,764 1,396,531

Significant Ratios for the Year Ended
Return on average assets 1.02% 0.97% 0.87%
Return on average stockholders’ equity 17.06 15.81 13.26
Return on average tangible stockholders’ equity(1) 19.72 18.25 15.15
Net interest rate spread 2.11 2.09 1.72
Net interest margin 2.19 2.17 1.78
Average stockholders’ equity to average assets 5.99 6.12 6.54
Average tangible stockholders’ equity to average tangible assets(1)(2) 5.22 5.35 5.78
General and administrative expense to average assets 1.00 0.99 0.91
Efficiency ratio(3)  39.37 40.86 41.25

Asset Quality Ratios at Year End
Non-performing loans to total loans 0.45% 0.25% 0.23%
Non-performing loans to total assets 0.29 0.14 0.13
Non-performing assets to total assets 0.30 0.14 0.14
Allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans 124.81 254.02 280.10
Allowance for loan losses to non-accrual loans 125.15 258.57 285.51
Allowance for loan losses to total loans  0.56 0.62 0.66

Operating Earnings, Operating Returns and Operating 
 Financial Ratios(4)

Operating earnings $ 233,803 $ 229,112 $ 196,846
Operating diluted earnings per common share 2.26 2.09 1.66
Operating return on average assets 1.02% 1.01% 0.87%
Operating return on average stockholders’ equity 17.06 16.50 13.26
Operating return on average tangible stockholders’ equity(1) 19.72 19.04 15.15
Operating efficiency ratio(3)  39.37 39.67 41.25

(1)  Average tangible stockholders’ equity represents average stockholders’ equity less average goodwill.
(2)  Average tangible assets represents average assets less average goodwill.
(3)  Efficiency ratio represents general and administrative expense divided by the sum of net interest income plus non-interest income.
(4)  The information presented for 2004 represents pro forma calculations which are not in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 

accounting principles, or GAAP. The 2004 information excludes the other-than-temporary impairment write-down of securities 
charge of $9.6 million, after tax ($16.5 million, before tax for the efficiency ratio). See page 12 for a reconciliation of 2004 GAAP 
net income to non-GAAP operating earnings.
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fellow shareholders:

I am pleased to report that Astoria Financial 

Corporation continued to produce solid financial 

results and related returns in 2005. The operating 

environment that prevailed proved to be as formi-

dable a challenge as we anticipated. Operating 

interest rate spreads were negatively impacted by a 

continued flattening of the U.S. Treasury yield 

curve during the year, precipitated by rising short-

term interest rates and relatively stable to declin-

ing long-term interest rates. These events resulted 

in our funding costs rising more rapidly than the 

yield on our earning assets, exerting downward 

pressure throughout the year on the net interest 

margin. We took steps to mitigate margin compres-

sion by maintaining a disciplined focus, centered 

on improving the quality of both the balance sheet 

and earnings, by growing loans and deposits, 

reducing securities and borrowings through nor-

mal cash flow, and shrinking the balance sheet by 

approximately one billion dollars. As a result, our 

net interest margin increased two basis points to 

2.19% for the full year 2005 from 2.17% for 2004. 

financial results

Net income for 2005 increased to $233.8 million, 

or $2.26 diluted earnings per share (“EPS”), from 

$219.5 million ($229.1 million operating earnings), 

or $2.00 EPS ($2.09 operating EPS), for 2004. The 

2005 earnings produced returns on average equity, 

average tangible equity and average assets of 

17.06%, 19.72% and 1.02%, respectively, an increase 

from 15.81% (16.50% on an operating basis), 18.25% 

(19.04% on an operating basis), and 0.97% (1.01% 

on an operating basis), respectively, for 2004.
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loan portfolio composition
December 31, 2005

Note: 2004 information is calculated on an operating basis. 

Please see the reconciliation of 2004 GAAP net income to 

operating earnings on page 12.
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George L. Engelke, Jr.
Chairman, President & Chief Executive Offi cer

balance sheet improvement: loan and deposit 
growth/wholesale portfolio reduced 

During 2005, we continued to increase loans and 

deposits while we continued to reduce non-core 

business activities due to the flat yield curve and 

lower spread availability. The securities portfolio 

was reduced by $2.1 billion, or 25%, through nor-

mal cash flow, representing just 29% of total assets 

at year-end 2005. Wholesale borrowings were 

reduced by $1.5 billion, or 16%, representing 35% 

of total assets at year-end 2005. As we reduced the 

negative impact of the lower spread, non-core 

wholesale business, we continued to enhance the 

value of our franchise in 2005 by growing deposits 

and loans, our core-businesses, despite intense 

competitive pressure. The repositioning of the bal-

ance sheet improved its quality, enhanced earnings 

and better positioned us to take advantage of more 

profitable growth opportunities when the yield 

curve steepens. 

mortgage lending

Loan portfolio growth is determined by the level 

of both loan production and refinance activity. 

Lower levels of loan refinancing, coupled with 

robust mortgage origination volume, facilitated 

the loan portfolio growth we experienced in 2005. 

Our strong loan generation capabilities resulted in 

the production of $4.3 billion in mortgage loans in 

2005, the same level we produced in 2004, while 

refinance activity declined, with loan prepayments 

totaling $2.4 billion in 2005 compared to $3.0 billion 

in 2004. The combination of these activities 

resulted in net mortgage loan growth of 9%, or 

$1.1 billion in 2005, compared to 4%, or $496 mil-

lion, in 2004. 

2005 financial highlights: 
•  Loan portfolio increased $1.1 billion, or 9%

 — Multifamily/Commercial Real Estate 

(“CRE”) loan portfolio increased 11%

  — One-to-four family loan portfolio 

increased 8% 

• Deposits increased $487 million, or 4%

•  Securities portfolio decreased $2.1 billion, 

or 25%

• Borrowings decreased $1.5 billion, or 16% 

• Repurchased 6.6 million shares

• Return on average equity: 17.06%

le first
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$14.4
billion dollars 
in loans
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One-to-four family loans accounted for 75%, or $3.3 

billion of our total loan production in 2005, and were 

primarily concentrated in 3/1 and 5/1 hybrid adjust-

able rate loans. For the full year 2005, the one-to-four 

family loan portfolio increased $703 million, or 8%,  

compared to an increase of just $84 million in 2004. 

At December 31, 2005, the one-to-four family portfo-

lio totaled $9.8 billion.

Multifamily and commercial real estate loan origina-

tions in 2005 totaled $953 million, of which 72% were 

multifamily loans primarily secured by rent controlled/

rent stabilized apartment buildings in the New York 

metropolitan area. The combined portfolio of multi-

family and commercial real estate loans increased 11% 



to $3.9 billion in 2005 and represent 27% of total 

loans outstanding at year-end.

We continue to maintain a low credit risk profile 

with average loan to value ratios of less than 65% 

on the total loan portfolio based on current princi-

pal balance and original appraised value.

retail banking

Despite intense competitive pressure in 

retail banking in 2005, we increased 

deposits $487 million, or 4%, due pri-

marily to increases in medium-term 

and Liquid CD accounts. As the yield 

curve flattened during the year, we 

made a concerted effort to extend our 

liabilities through the marketing of 

medium-term CD accounts in our communities. 

For the year, we issued or repriced $4.1 billion of 

non-Liquid CD accounts, at an average rate of 3.45% 

and an average maturity of 13 months, significantly 

below alternative funding costs. Our deposit gath-

ering strategy, which, in addition to contributing 

to the management of interest rate risk, permits us 

to reduce our borrowing levels and produces new 

customers from our communities, creating rela-

tionship development opportunities.

With deposits of $12.8 billion at December 31, 2005, 

Astoria Federal remains the largest thrift depository 

headquartered in New York and commands the 

largest thrift deposit market share in the Long 
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Astoria Financial Corporation

$12.8
billion dollars in deposits

Island market, which includes Brooklyn, Queens, 

Nassau and Suffolk counties. Our well developed foot-

print on Long Island has facilitated same-store deposit 

growth of more than $3.3 billion between 1999 and 

2005, allowing us to maintain our deposit market 

share of 8.3% and our position as the number one 

thrift in our market without the need for any expen-

sive and minimally profitable de-novo branch develop-

ment. We were able to accomplish these results while 

competitors, both new and existing, added 123 new 

branches in our market.

operating efficiency

A key element to our continued financial success is 

our superior operating efficiency. This is a constant 

focus for us. In 2005 we completed a thorough review 

of all aspects of our operations which resulted in the 
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outsourcing of all mortgage loan servicing operations 

and the implementation of other company-wide cost-

saving initiatives. These initiatives are expected to 

result in annual net expense savings of approximately 

$5 million, pre-tax, commencing in 2006. 

enhancements to shareholder value

During the first quarter of both 2005 and 2006, the 

Board of Directors raised the quarterly cash divi-

dend by a total of 44% to $0.24 per share, reflecting 

their continued confidence in the fundamental 

strength of the Company and their commitment to 

enhancing shareholder value. In addition, indicative 

of our view of stock repurchase programs as a very 

desirable use of capital, during 2005 we repur-

chased 6.6 million common shares at a cost of 

$27.49 per share. The combination of these value 

enhancing initiatives and our positive 2005 earn-

ings and returns resulted in a share price of $29.40 

at year-end, or a total return to shareholders of 14% 

for 2005. As depicted in the graph on page 9, the 

total return to shareholders over the past ten years 

Astoria Financial Corporation

powerful franchise

Deposits in Astoria Federal’s 86 branch 

offices average $149 million.



      

Astoria Financial Corporation

averaged 17% annually, significantly higher than the 

returns calculated for major U.S. market indices.

community commitment

Notwithstanding the operating challenges that 

confronted us in 2005, we continued our solid and 

long standing commitment to serving the commu-

nities in which we operate. We accomplish this 

through direct grants and the strong support of 

the many members of Team Astoria who are 

actively involved in local organizations and causes. 

Our overall significant corporate commitment 

is reflected in five consecutive “Outstanding” 

Community Reinvestment Act ratings awarded to 

us by our primary banking regulator in recognition 

of our community lending and investment activities, 

as well as the availability of banking services and 

our overall commitment to community service.

In an effort to support our fellow citizens who 

were most deeply impacted by the worst natural 

disaster in our country’s history, Astoria Federal 

and our directors, officers and employees contrib-

uted more than $400,000 to the American Red 

Cross Disaster Relief Fund benefiting the gulf coast 

victims of Hurricane Katrina.

corporate governance

In May 2005, having reached mandatory retirement 

age, Donald D. Wenk retired from our Board of 

Directors and in March 2006, Robert J. Conway 

resigned as a member of the Board for personal 

reasons. Mr. Wenk and Mr. Conway served as direc-

tors since 1998 following our acquisition of Long 

Island Bancorp, Inc. I thank them both for their 

dedicated service and the valuable advice and 

counsel they provided which served us well dur-

ing their respective tenures on the Board.

future outlook

We expect the operating environment to remain 

challenging throughout 2006 as rising short-term 

interest rates and relatively stable long-term interest 

rates exert further pressure on the net interest mar-

gin. As a result, we expect to continue our strategy 

of shrinking the balance sheet through a reduction 

in the securities portfolio and borrowings of approx-

imately $1.5 billion each through normal cash flow, 

while we focus on deposit and loan growth, all of 

which will continue to improve the quality of both 

the balance sheet and earnings. Overall, these activ-

ities should result in a reduction in the balance 

sheet of approximately $1 billion, similar to the 
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dividend growth

Cash dividends have grown at an annual 

rate of 27% since the inception of a cash 

dividend in July 1995.



billion dollars 
in assets

$22.4
09

Astoria Financial Corporation

2005 reduction, and a modest compression of the 

net interest margin throughout 2006. As we con-

tinue to reduce the size of the balance sheet dur-

ing this challenging interest rate environment, we 

will also continue to focus on the repurchase of 

our stock.

On behalf of our Board of Directors, officers and 

staff, who contributed to our solid performance in 

2005, I thank you for your confidence and contin-

ued support. We remain committed to enhancing 

the value of your investment in Astoria Financial 

Corporation.

Sincerely,

George L. Engelke, Jr.
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

returns vs. index

The ten year total return to Astoria 

Financial Corporation shareholders sig-

nificantly exceeds the total return pro-

vided by the S&P 500 & Dow Jones 

Industrial indices & represents a com-

pounded annual growth rate of 17%.
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consolidated statements of financial condition
At December 31,

(In Thousands, Except Share Data) 2005 2004

ASSETS:
Cash and due from banks $ 169,234 $ 138,809 
Repurchase agreements 182,803 267,578 
Available-for-sale securities:
 Encumbered 1,598,320 2,104,239 
 Unencumbered 243,031 302,644 

1,841,351 2,406,883 
Held-to-maturity securities, fair value of $4,627,013 and $6,306,760, respectively:
 Encumbered 4,500,867 5,273,385 
 Unencumbered 230,086 1,029,551 

4,730,953 6,302,936 
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock, at cost 145,247 163,700 
Loans held-for-sale, net 23,651 23,802 
Loans receivable 14,392,293 13,263,279 
Allowance for loan losses (81,159) (82,758)

Loans receivable, net 14,311,134 13,180,521 
Mortgage servicing rights, net 16,502 16,799 
Accrued interest receivable 80,318 79,144 
Premises and equipment, net 151,494 157,107 
Goodwill 185,151 185,151 
Bank owned life insurance 382,613 374,719 
Other assets 159,820 118,720 

Total assets $22,380,271 $23,415,869 

LIABILITIES:
Deposits $12,810,455 $12,323,257 
Reverse repurchase agreements 5,780,000 7,080,000 
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York advances 1,724,000 1,934,000 
Other borrowings, net 433,526 455,835 
Mortgage escrow funds 124,929 122,088 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 157,134 130,925 

Total liabilities 21,030,044 22,046,105 

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:
Preferred stock, $1.00 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized:
 Series A (1,800,000 shares authorized and -0- shares issued and outstanding) — —
 Series B (2,000,000 shares authorized and -0- shares issued and outstanding) — —
Common stock, $.01 par value (200,000,000 shares authorized; 166,494,888 shares  
 issued; and 104,967,280 and 110,304,669 shares outstanding, respectively) 1,665 1,665 
Additional paid-in capital 824,102 811,777 
Deferred compensation (5,636) —
Retained earnings 1,774,924 1,623,571 
Treasury stock (61,527,608 and 56,190,219 shares, at cost, respectively) (1,171,604) (1,013,726)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (49,536) (28,592)
Unallocated common stock held by ESOP (6,465,273 and 6,802,146 shares, respectively) (23,688) (24,931)

Total stockholders’ equity 1,350,227 1,369,764 

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $22,380,271 $23,415,869 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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consolidated statements of income
For the Year Ended December 31, 

(In Thousands, Except Share Data) 2005 2004 2003

Interest income:
 Mortgage loans:
  One-to-four family $ 459,929 $ 428,229 $ 466,544 
  Multi-family, commercial real estate and construction 239,119 220,703 203,785 
 Consumer and other loans 31,160 21,312 19,247 
 Mortgage-backed and other securities 340,626 371,044 355,564 
 Federal funds sold and repurchase agreements 6,123 1,140 1,538 
 Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock 6,030 3,473 10,613 

Total interest income 1,082,987 1,045,901 1,057,291 

Interest expense:
 Deposits 281,399 237,429 225,251 
 Borrowings 322,808 337,906 452,502 

Total interest expense 604,207 575,335 677,753 

Net interest income 478,780 470,566 379,538 
Provision for loan losses — — —

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 478,780 470,566 379,538 

Non-interest income:
 Customer service fees 66,256 58,524 59,841 
 Other loan fees 4,980 4,805 7,556 
 Net gain on sales of securities — 4,651 7,346 
 Other-than-temporary impairment write-down of securities — (16,520) —
 Mortgage banking income, net 6,015 4,715 10,291 
 Income from bank owned life insurance 16,446 17,134 19,978 
 Other 8,502 6,775 14,549 

Total non-interest income 102,199 80,084 119,561 

Non-interest expense:
 General and administrative:
  Compensation and benefits 119,417 118,684 110,349 
  Occupancy, equipment and systems 63,695 64,592 59,892 
  Federal deposit insurance premiums 1,760 1,775 1,896 
  Advertising 8,815 6,583 5,833 
  Other 35,047 33,377 27,907 

Total non-interest expense 228,734 225,011 205,877 

Income before income tax expense 352,245 325,639 293,222 
Income tax expense 118,442 106,102 96,376 

Net income $ 233,803 $ 219,537 $ 196,846 

Basic earnings per common share $ 2.30 $ 2.03 $ 1.68 

Diluted earnings per common share $ 2.26 $ 2.00 $ 1.66 

Basic weighted average common shares 101,476,376 107,930,909 114,574,956 
Diluted weighted average common and common equivalent shares 103,408,637 109,806,855 115,942,058 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



Operating earnings, operating EPS and operating returns, representing net income and EPS determined in accordance 
with GAAP excluding the effects of the after-tax non-cash charge noted below, provide a meaningful comparison for 
effectively evaluating Astoria’s operating results. In 2005, operating earnings equaled net income.

For the Twelve Months Ended 
December 31, 2004

  GAAP  Adjustments  Operating

Net interest income after provision for loan losses $ 470,566 $ — $ 470,566
Non-interest income 80,084 16,520 96,604
Non-interest expense  225,011  —  225,011

Income before income tax expense 325,639 16,520 342,159
Income tax expense  106,102  6,945  113,047

Net income  $ 219,537  $ 9,575  $ 229,112

Basic earnings per common share  $ 2.03  $ 0.09  $ 2.12

Diluted earnings per common share  $ 2.00  $ 0.09  $ 2.09

The above adjustments relate to the $16.5 million other-than-temporary impairment write-down on $120.0 million of Freddie Mac 
perpetual preferred stock and the related tax effect.

reconciliation of gaap net income to operating earnings

Astoria Financial Corporation and Subsidiaries
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PRPVATE SECURITIES LITIGATION REFORM ACT SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT 

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains a number of forward-looking statements within the meaning 
of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Act, and Section 21E of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act. These statements may be identified 
by the use of the words "'anticipate," "believe," "could," "estimate," '%expect," "intend," "may," 
"outlook," "plan," "potential," "predict," 'cproject," "should," '%ill," "would" and similar terms and 
phrases, including references to assumptions. 

Forward-looking statements are based on various assumptions and analyses made by us in light of our 
management's experience and its perception of historical trends, current conditions and expected future 
developments, as well as other factors we believe are appropriate under the circumstances. These 
statements are not guarantees of future performance and are subject to risks, uncertainties and other 
factors (many of which are beyond our control) that could cause actual results to differ materially from 
future results expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. These factors include, without 
limitation, the following: 

the timing and occurrence or non-occurrence of events may be subject to circumstances 
beyond our control; 
there may be increases in competitive pressure among financial institutions or from non- 
financial institutions; 
changes in the interest rate environment may reduce interest margins or affect the value of 
our investments; 
changes in deposit flows, loan demand or real estate values may adversely affect our 
business; 
changes in accounting principles, policies or guidelines may cause our financial condition to 
be perceived differently; 
general economic conditions, either nationally or locally in some or all areas in which we do 
business, or conditions in the securities markets or the banking industry may be less 
favorable than we currently anticipate; 
legislative or regulatory changes may adversely affect our business; 
technological changes may be more difficult or expensive than we anticipate; 
success or consummation of new business initiatives may be more difficult or expensive 
than we anticipate; or 
litigation or other matters before regulatory agencies, whether currently existing or 
commencing in the future, may delay the occurrence or non-occurrence of events longer 
than we anticipate. 

We have no obligation to update any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after 
the date of this document. 



PART I 

As used in this Form 10-K, "we," "us" and "our" refer to Astoria Financial Corporation and its 
consolidated subsidiaries, principally Astoria Federal Savings and Loan Association. 

ITEM 1. BUSINESS 

General 

We are a Delaware corporation organized in 1993 as the unitary savings and loan association holding 
company of Astoria Federal Savings and Loan Association and its consolidated subsidiaries, or Astoria 
Federal. We are headquartered in Lake Success, New York and our principal business is the operation of 
our wholly-owned subsidiary, Astoria Federal. Astoria Federal's primary business is attracting retail 
deposits from the general public and investing those deposits, together with funds generated from 
operations, principal repayments on Ioans and securities and bonowings, primarily in one-to-four family 
mortgage loans, multi-family mortgage loans, commercial real estate loans and mortgage-backed 
securities. To a lesser degree, Astoria Federal also invests in construction loans and consumer and other 
loans, U.S. government, government agency and government-sponsored enterprise, or GSE, securities 
and other investments permitted by federal laws and regulations. 

Our results of operations are dependent primarily on our net interest income, which is the difference 
between the interest earned on our assets, primarily our loan and securities portfolios, and our cost of 
funds, which consists of the interest paid on our deposits and borrowings. Our net income is also 
affected by our provision for loan losses, non-interest income, general and administrative expense, other 
non-interest expense and income tax expense. Non-interest income generally includes customer service 
fees; other loan fees; net gain on sales of securities; mortgage banking income, net; income from bank 
owned life insurance, or BOLI; and other non-interest income. General and administrative expense 
consists of compensation and benefits expense; occupancy, equipment and systems expense; federal 
deposit insurance premiums; advertising expense; and other operating expenses. Our earnings are 
significantly affected by general economic and competitive conditions, particularly changes in market 
interest rates and U.S. Treasury yield curves, government policies and actions of regulatory authorities. 

In addition to Astoria Federal, Astoria Financial Corporation has two other subsidiaries, AF Insurance 
Agency, Inc. and Astoria Capital Trust I. AF Insurance Agency, Inc. is a life insurance and property and 
casualty insurance agency. Through contractual agreements with various third party marketing 
organizations, AF Insurance Agency, Inc. makes insurance products available primarily to the customers 
of Astoria Federal. AF Insurance Agency, Inc. is a wholly-owned subsidiary which is consolidated with 
Astoria Financial Corporation for financial reporting purposes. Our other subsidiary, Astoria Capital 
Trust I, is not consolidated with Astoria Financial Corporation for financial reporting purposes in 
accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, revised Interpretation No. 46, 
"Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation of ARB No. 5 1," or FIN 46(R). Astoria 
Capital Trust I was formed in 1999 for the purpose of issuing $125.0 million aggregate liquidation 
amount of 9.75% Capital Securities due November 1, 2029, or Capital Securities, and $3.9 million of 
common securities (which are the only voting securities of Astoria Capital Trust I), which are 100% 
owned by Astoria Financial Corporation, and using the proceeds to acquire Junior Subordinated 
Debentures issued by Astoria Financial Corporation. Astoria Financial Corporation has fully and 
unconditionally guaranteed the Capital Securities along with all obligations of Astoria Capital Trust I 
under the trust agreement relating to the Capital Securities. 

We have acquired, and may continue to acquire or organize either directly or indirectly through Astoria 
Federal, other subsidiaries and financial institutions. We continue to evaluate merger and acquisition 
activity as part of our strategic objective for long term growth. 



Available Information 

Our internet website address is ~.astoriafederal.com. Financial information, including our annual 
reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 1 0-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments 
to those reports, can be obtained free of charge from our investor relations website at 
http:Nir.astoriafederal.com. The above reports are available on our website immediately after they are 
electronically filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC. Such reports 
are also available on the SEC's website at www.sec.gov. 

Lending Activities 

General 

Our loan portfolio is comprised primarily of mortgage loans, most of which are secured by one-to-four 
family properties and, to a lesser extent, multi-family properties and commercial real estate. The 
remainder of the loan portfolio consists of a variety of construction and consumer and other loans. At 
December 3 1,2005, our net loan portfolio totaled $14.3 1 billion, or 63.9% of total assets. 

We originate mortgage loans either directly through our banking and loan production oflices in the New 
York metropolitan area or indirectly through brokers and our third party loan origination program. 
Mortgage loan originations and purchases totaled $4.32 billion for the year ended December 3 1, 2005 
and $4.35 billion for the year ended December 31, 2004. Mortgage Ioan originations include 
originations of loans held-for-sale totaling $361.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 and 
$323.2 million for the year ended December 3 1,2004. Our retail loan origination program accounted for 
$1.59 billion of originations during 2005 and $1.83 billion of originations during 2004. We also have an 
extensive broker network covering twenty-four states: New York, New Jersey, Connecticut, 
Pennsylvania, Massachusetts, Delaware, Maryland, Ohio, Virginia, North Carolina, South Carolina, 
Georgia, Illinois, Caiifornia, Florida, Michigan, New Hampshire, Rhode Island, Missouri, Tennessee, 
Indiana, Kentucky, Colorado and Alabama; and the District of Columbia. Our broker loan origination 
program consists of relationships with mortgage brokers and accounted for $1.86 billion of originations 
during 2005 and $1.36 billion of originations during 2004. Our third party loan origination program 
includes relationships with other financial institutions and mortgage bankers covering forty-four states 
and the District of Columbia and accounted for purchases of $874.5 million during 2005 and $1.16 
billion during 2004. Mortgage loans purchased through our third party Ioan origination program are 
subject to the same underwriting standards as our retail and broker originations. Our broker and third 
party loan origination programs provide efficient and diverse delivery channels for deployment of our 
cash flows. Additionally, they provide geographic diversification, reducing our exposure to 
concentrations of credit risk. At December 3 1,2005, $8.06 billion, or 58.4%, of our total mortgage loan 
portfolio was secured by properties located in 43 states, other than New York, and the District of 
Columbia. We have a concentration of greater than 5.0% of our total mortgage loan portfolio in six 
states: 41.6% in New York, 12.5% in New Jersey, 8.9% in Connecticut, 6.6% in Virginia, 6.4% in 
Illinois and 5.5% in Maryland. See the "Loan Portfolio Composition" table on page 7 and the "Loan 
Maturity, Repricing and ActivityY'tables on pages 8 and 9. 

Effective December I ,  2005, Dovenmuehle Mortgage, Inc., or DMI, has undertaken the servicing of our 
mortgage loan portfoIio, including our portfolio of mortgage loans serviced for other investors. For a 
further discussion of the outsourcing of our mortgage servicing, see Item 7, "Management's I~iscussion 
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," or "MD&A." 

One-to-Four Familv Mortgage Lending 

Our primary lending emphasis is on the origination and purchase of first mortgage loans secured by 
one-to-four family properties that serve as the primary residence of the owner. To a much lesser degree, 
we make loans secured by non-owner occupied one-to-four family properties acquired as an investment 



by the borrower. We also originate a limited number of second mortgage loans which are underwritten 
according to the same standards as first mortgage loans. 

At December 31, 2005, $9.76 billion, or 68.2%, of our total loan portfolio consisted of one-to-four 
family mortgage loans, of which $9.20 billion, or 94.3%, were adjustable rate mortgage, or ARM, loans. 
Our ARM loan portfolio consists primarily of hybrid and interest only ARM loans. We currently offer 
hybrid ARM loans which initially have a fixed rate for one, three, five, seven or ten years and convert 
into one year ARM loans at the end of the initial fixed rate period. The one, three, five and seven year 
hybrid ARM loans have terms of up to forty years and the ten year hybrid ARM Ioans have terms of up 
to thirty years. Our hybrid ARM loans require the borrower to make principal and interest payments 
during the entire loan term. We also offer interest only ARM loans, generally with thirty year terms, 
which have an initial fixed rate for three, five or seven years and convert into one year interest only 
ARM loans at the end of the initial fixed rate period, Interest only ARM loans require the borrower to 
pay interest only during the first ten years of the loan term. After the tenth anniversary of the loan, 
principal and interest payments are required to amortize the loan over the remaining loan term. The 
market for interest only ARM loans has expanded rapidly over the past several years to meet consumer 
mortgage demand. Our portfolio of interest only ARM loans totaled $4.97 billion, or 54.0% of our ARM 
loans, at December 3 1,2005 and $3.13 billion, or 37.2% of our ARM loans, at December 3 1,2004. We 
do not originate negative amortization or payment option ARM loans. 

All ARM loans we offer have annual and lifetime interest rate ceilings and floors. ARM loans may be 
offered with an initial interest rate which is less than the fi~lly indexed rate for the loan at the time of 
origination. We determine the initial discounted rate in accordance with market and competitive factors. 
To recognize the credit risks associated with ARM Ioans initially offered below their fully-indexed rates, 
we generally underwrite our one-year ARM loans assuming a rate equal to 200 basis points over the 
initial discounted rate, but not less than 7.00%. For ARM loans with longer adjustment periods, and 
therefore less credit risk due to the longer period for the borrower's income to adjust to anticipated 
higher future payments, we underwrite the loans using the initial rate, which may be a discounted rate. 
We use the same underwriting standards for our retail, broker and third party mortgage loan originations. 

Our policy on owner-occupied, one-to-four family loans is to lend up to 80% of the appraised value of 
the property securing the loan. Generally, for mortgage loans which have a loan-to-value ratio of greater 
than 80%, we require the mortgagor to obtain private mortgage insurance. In addition, we offer a variety 
of proprietary products which allow the borrower to obtain financing of up to 90% loan-to-value without 
private mortgage insurance. This type of financing does not comprise a significant portion of our 
portfolio. 

ARM loans pose credit risks somewhat greater than the risks posed by fixed rate loans primarily 
because, as interest rates rise, the underlying payments of the borrower increase when the loan is beyond 
its initial fixed rate period, increasing the potential for default. Interest only ARM loans have an 
additional potential risk element when the loan terms are eventually recast to include principal payments 
and the underlying payments increase further. We continue to prudently manage the greater risk posed 
by ARM loans through the application of sound underwriting practices and strong risk management 
systems. 

Generally, we originate fifteen year and thirty year fixed rate one-to-four family mortgage loans for safe 
to various GSEs or other investors with servicing either retained or released. The sale of such loans is 
generally arranged through a master commitment either on a mandatory delivery or best efforts basis. 
Loans serviced for others totaled $1.50 billion at December 3 1,2005. 

One-to-four family loan originations and purchases totaled $3.25 billion in 2005 and $3.20 billion in 
2004. One-to-four family loan originations include originations of loans held-for-sale totaling $361.5 
million in 2005 and $323.2 million in 2004. 



Multi-Family and Commercial Real Estate Lending 

While we continue to primarily be a one-to-four family mortgage lender, over the past several years we 
have increased our emphasis on multi-family and commercial real estate loan originations. At December 
3 1,2005, our total loan portfolio contained $2.83 billion, or 19.8%, of multi-family mortgage loans and 
$1.08 billion, or 7.5%, of commercial real estate loans. During 2005, we originated $952.9 million of 
multi-family, commercial real estate and mixed use loans compared to $1.05 billion in 2004. Mixed use 
loans are secured by properties which are intended for both residential and business use and are 
classified as multi-family or commercial real estate based on the greater number of residential versus 
commercial units. 

The multi-family and commercial real estate loans in our portfolio consist of both fixed rate and 
adjustable rate loans which were originated at prevailing market rates. Multi-family and commercial real 
estate loans are generally five to fifteen year term balloon loans amortized over fifteen to thirty years. 
During 2005, we began originating interest only multi-family and commercial real estate loans to 
qualified borrowers. The interest only loans do not comprise a significant portion of our multi-family 
and commercial real estate loan portfolio at December 31, 2005. Our policy generally has been to 
originate multi-family and commercial real estate loans in the New York metropolitan area, although we 
also originate loans throughout New York State and in various other states, including New Jersey, 
Connecticut, Florida, Pennsylvania, Maryland, Illinois and West Virginia, and the District of Columbia. 
Originations in states other than New York represented 34.6% of our total originations of multi-family 
and commercial real estate loans in 2005, of which 85.9% were originated in New Jersey, Connecticut 
and Florida. We are authorized by our Board of Directors to further expand the areas in which we 
originate multi-family and commercial real estate loans. In making such loans, we primarily consider 
the ability of the net operating income generated by the real estate to support the debt service, the 
financial resources, income level and managerial expertise of the borrower, the marketability of the 
property and our lending experience with the borrower. Our current policy is to require a minimum debt 
service coverage ratio of 1.20 times for multi-family and commercial real estate loans. Additionally, on 
multi-family loans, our current policy is to finance up to 80% of the lesser of the purchase price or 
appraised value of the property securing the loan on purchases or 80% of the appraised value on 
refinances. On commercial real estate loans, our current policy is to finance up to 75% of the Iesser of 
the purchase price or appraised value of the property securing the loans on purchases or 75% of the 
appraised value on refinances. 

The majority of the multi-family loans in our portfolio are secured by six- to fifty-unit apartment 
buildings and mixed use properties (more residential than business units). As of December 3 1,2005, our 
single largest multi-family loan had an outstanding balance of $9.9 million and was current and secured 
by a 275-unit apartment complex in Staten Island, New York. At December 31, 2005, the average 
balance of loans in our multi-family portfolio was approximately $800,000. 

Commercial real estate loans are typically secured by retail stores, office buildings and mixed use 
properties (more business than residential units). As of December 31, 2005, our single largest 
commercial real estate loan had an outstanding principal balance of $7.5 million and was current and 
secured by a multi-story office building in Mineola, New York. At December 31, 2005, the average 
balance of loans in our commercial real estate portfolio was approximately $1.1 million. 

Historically, multi-family and commercial real estate loans generally involve a greater degree of credit 
risk than one-to-four family loans because they typically have larger balances and are more affected by 
adverse conditions in the economy, As such, these loans require more ongoing evaluation and 
monitoring. Because payments on loans secured by multi-family properties and commercial real estate 
often depend upon the successful operation and management of the properties and the businesses which 
operate from within them, repayment of such loans may be affected by factors outside the borrower's 
control, such as adverse conditions in the real estate market or the economy or changes in government 
regulation. 



Construction Loans 

At December 31, 2005, $137.0 million, or 1.0%, of our total loan portfolio consisted of construction 
loans. We offer construction loans for all types of residential properties and certain commercial real 
estate properties. Generally, construction loan terms run between one and two years and are interest 
only, adjustable rate loans indexed to the prime rate. We generally offer construction loans up to a 
maximum of $10.0 million. As of December 3 1 ,  2005, our average construction loan commitment was 
approximately $3.2 million and the average outstanding balance of loans in our construction loan 
portfolio was approximately $1.7 million. 

Construction lending involves additional credit risk to the lender as compared with other types of 
mortgage lending. This additional credit risk is attributable to the fact that loan funds are advanced upon 
the security of the project under construction, predicated on the present value of the property and the 
anticipated future value of the property upon completion of construction or development. Construction 
loans are funded monthly, based on the work completed, and are generally monitored by a professionaI 
construction engineer and our commercial real estate lending department. To a lesser extent, qualified 
bank appraisers and certified home inspectors are utilized to monitor less complex projects. 

Consumer and Other Loans 

At December 31, 2005, $502.5 million, or 3.5%, of our total loan portfolio consisted of consumer and 
other loans which were primarily home equity lines of credit. We also offer overdraft protection, lines of 
credit, commercial loans, passbook loans and student loans. Consumer and other loans, with the 
exception of home equity and commercial lines of credit, are offered primarily on a fixed rate, short-term 
basis. The undenvriting standards we employ for consumer and other loans include a determination of 
the borrower's payment history on other debts and an assessment of the borrower's ability to make 
payments on the proposed loan and other indebtedness. In addition to the creditworthiness of the 
borrower, the undenvriting process also includes a review of the value of the collateral, if any, in relation 
to the proposed loan amount. Our consumer and other loans tend to have higher interest rates, shorter 
maturities and are considered to entail a greater risk of default than one-to-four family mortgage loans. 

Our home equity lines of credit are originated on one-to-four family owner-occupied properties. These 
lines of credit are generally limited to aggregate outstanding indebtedness secured by up to 90% of the 
appraised value of the property. Such fines of credit are underwritten based on our evaluation of the 
borrower's ability to repay the debt. Home equity lines of credit are adjustable rate loans which are 
indexed to the prime rate and generally reset monthly. 

Included in consumer and other loans were $24.6 million of commercial business loans at December 31, 
2005. These loans are undemritten based upon the earnings of the borrower and the value of the 
collateral securing such loans, if any. 

Loan Approval Procedures and Authority 

Except for individual loans in excess of $15.0 million or when the overall lending relationship exceeds 
$60.0 million (unless the Board of Directors has set a higher limit with respect to a particular borrower), 
mortgage loan approval authority has been delegated by the Board of Directors to our underwriters and 
Loan Committee, which consists of certain members of executive management and other Astoria Federal 
officers. For loans between $10.0 million and $15.0 million, the approval of two non-officer directors is 
also required. 

For mortgage loans secured by one-to-four family properties, upon receipt of a completed application 
from a prospective borrower, we generally order a credit report, verify income and other information 
and, if necessary, obtain additional financial or credit related information. For mortgage loans secured 
by multi-family properties and commercial real estate, we obtain financial information concerning the 
operation of the property. Persona1 guarantees are generally not obtained with respect to such loans. An 
appraisal of the real estate used as collateral for mortgage loans is also obtained as part of the 



underwriting process. All appraisals are performed by licensed or certified appraisers, the majority of 
which are licensed independent third party appraisers. We have an internal appraisal review process to 
monitor third party appraisals. The Board of Directors annually reviews and approves our appraisal 
policy. 

We also offer several other one-to-four family mortgage loan application alternatives. We offer stated 
income, full asset, or SIFA, loans; stated income, stated asset, or SISA, loans; and Super Streamline 
loans, which were introduced in 2005. SIFA and SISA loans require a prospective borrower to complete 
a standard mortgage loan application while the Super Streamline product requires the completion of an 
abbreviated application and is in effect considered a "no documentation"Joan. Each of these products 
requires the receipt of an appraisal of the real estate used as collateral for the mortgage loan and a credit 
report on the prospective borrower. The loans are priced according to our internal risk assessment of the 
loan giving consideration to the loan-to-value ratio, the potential borrower's credit scores and various 
other credit criteria. SIFA loans require the verification of a potential borrower's asset information on 
the loan application, but not the income information provided. SIFA loans comprised approximately 
30% of our one-to-four family loan originations in 2005 and had an average loan-to-value ratio at 
origination of 61.6%. The SISA and Super Streamline loans were not a significant portion of our 2005 
originations. 

Loan Portfolio Composition 

The following table sets forth the composition of our loans receivable portfolio in dollar amounts and in 
percentages of the portfolio at the dates indicated. 

At December 31. 
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 

Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent 
of of of of of 

(Dollars in Thousands) Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total 
Mortgage loans (gross): 

One-to-four family $ 9,757,920 68.24% $ 9,054,747 68.68% $ 8,971,048 71.13% $9,209,360 76.86% $10,105,063 83.59% 
Multi-family 2,826,807 19.77 2,558,935 19.41 2,230,414 17.69 1,599,985 13.35 1,094,312 9.05 
Commercial real estate 1,075,914 7.52 944,859 7.17 880,296 6.98 744,623 6.21 598,334 4.95 
Construction 137.012 0.96 117.766 0.89 99.046 0.79 56.475 0.47 50.739 0.42 

Total mortgage loans 13.797.653 96.49 12,676.307 96.15 12,180,804 96.59 1 1.610.443 96.89 1 1.848.448 98.01 

Consumer and other loans (gross): 
Home equity 460,064 3.22 466,087 3.53 386,846 3.07 323,494 2.70 189,259 1.57 
Commercial 24,644 0.17 21,819 0.17 21,937 0.17 22,569 0.19 18,124 0.15 
Lines of credit, overdraft 10,680 0.07 11,835 0.09 12,963 0.10 15,475 0.13 18,046 0.15 
Other 7.116 0.05 7.547 0.06 8.400 0.07 11.100 0.09 14.765 0.12 

Total consumer and other loans 502,504 3.51 507,288 3.85 430.146 3.41 372.638 3.11 240.194 1.99 

Total loans (gross) 14,300,I 57 100.00% 13,183,595 100.00% 12,610,950 100.00% 11,983,081 100.00% 12,088,642 100.00% 

Net unamortized premiums 
and deferred loan costs 92.136 79.684 76.037 76.280 78,619 

Total foans 14,392,293 13,263,279 12,686,987 12,059,361 12,167,261 

Allowance for loan losses (81,159) (82.758) f83.1211 (83.546) f82.285) 

T 1 I n  4 1 4  1 4 



Loan Maturity, Repricing and Activity 

The following table shows the contractual maturities of our loans receivable at December 3 1,2005 and 
does not reflect the effect of prepayments or scheduled principal amortization. 

At December 31,2005 
One-to- Consumer 
Four Multi- Commercial and Total Loans 

(In Thousands) Family Family Real Estate Construction Other Receivable 
Amount due: 

Within one year $ 5,984 $ 1,890 $ 724 $ 80,881 $22,788 $ 112,267 

After one year: 
One to three years 15,708 16,684 13,244 5 1,523 13,022 110,181 
Three to five years 39,692 23,888 17,760 4,608 6; 163 92,111 
Five to ten years 376,940 1,300,887 605,438 9,683 2,292,948 
Ten to twenty years 339,769 1,170,588 407,033 - 8,953 1,926,343 
Over twenty years 8,979,827 3 12,870 31.715 44 1,895 9,766,307 

Total due after one year 9.75 1.936 2.824.917 1,075.190 56,131 479.716 14,187,890 

Total amount due $9,757,920 $2,826,807 $1,075,914 $137,012 $502,504 $14,300,157 

Net unamortized premiums and deferred loan costs 92, 136 
Allowance for loan losses (81,159) 
Loans receivable. net $14.31 1.134 

The following table sets forth at December 31, 2005, the dollar amount of our loans receivable 
contractually maturing after December 31, 2006, and whether such loans have fixed interest rates or 
adjustable interest rates. Our hybrid and interest only ARM loans are classified as adjustable rate loans. 

Maturinp After December 31,2006 
fin Thousands) Fixed Adiustable Total 
Mortgage loans: 

One-to-four family $ 550,483 $ 9,201,453 $ 9,751,936 
Multi-family 388,770 2,436,147 2,824,917 
Commercial real estate 1 24,22 1 950,969 1,075,190 
Construction 56,131 56,131 

Consumer and other loans 13,917 465,799 479,716 
Total $1.077.39 I $13.1 10.499 $14,187.890 



The following table sets forth our loan originations, purchases, sales and principal repayments for the 
periods indicated, including loans held-for-sale. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 
(In Thousands) 2005 2004 2003 
Mortgage loans (gross) (1): 

At beginning of year $12,698,725 $12,202,23 1 $1 1,671,567 
Mortgage loans originated: 

One-to-four family 2,380,388 2,043,538 4,036,573 
Multi-family 683,643 798,120 1,23 1,944 
Commercial real estate 269,269 256,183 418,107 
Construction 1 14,507 9 1.704 64,300 

Total mortgage loans originated 3,447,807 3.189,545 5,750,924 
Purchases of mortgage loans (2) 874,529 1,160,118 1,536,139 
Principal repayments (2,820,437) (3,517,383) (6,126,9 1 9) 
Sales of mortgage loans (361,579) (322,079) (645,908) 
Originations (in excess of) less than 

advances on construction loans (1 5,285) (12,189) 18,519 
Transfer of loans to real estate owned (2,107) (1,365) (2,028) 
Net loans charged off (1.225) (153) (63) 

At end of vear $13.820.428 $12.698.725 $12.202.23 1 

Consumer and other loans (gross) (3): 
At beginning of year $ 508,691 $ 431,792 $ 374,183 

Consumer and other loans originated 295,495 333,393 286,238 
Principal repayments (297,843) (253,156) (225,113) 
Sales of consumer and other loans (2,458) (3,128) (3,154) 
Net loans charged off (374) (210) (362) 

At end of vear $ 503.51 1 $ 508.691 $ 43 1.792 

(1) Includes loans classified as held-for-sale totaling $22.8 million, $22.4 million and $21.4 million at 
December 3 1,2005,2004 and 2003, respectively. 

(2) Purchases of mortgage loans represent third party loan originations and are predominantly secured 
by one-to-four family properties. 

(3) Includes loans classified as held-for-sale totaling $1.0 million, $1.4 million and $1.6 million at 
December 31,2005,2004 and 2003, respectively. 

Asset Quality 

General 

One of our key operating objectives has been and continues to be to maintain a high level of asset quality. 
Our concentration on one-to-four family mortgage lending, the maintenance of sound credit standards for 
new loan originations and a strong real estate market have resulted in our maintaining a low level of non- 
performing assets relative to the size of our loan portfolio. Through a variety of strategies, including, but 
not limited to, aggressive collection efforts and marketing of foreclosed properties, we have been 
proactive in addressing problem and non-performing assets which, in turn, has helped to strengthen our 
financial condition. 

The underlying credit quality of our loan portfolio is dependent primarily on each borrower's ability to 
continue to make required loan payments and, in the event a borrower is unable to continue to do so, the 
value of the collateral securing the loan, if any. A borrower's ability to pay typically is dependent, in the 
case of one-to-four family mortgage loans and consumer loans, primarily on employment and other 
sources of income, and in the case of multi-family and commercial real estate loans, on the cash flow 
generated by the property, which in turn is impacted by general economic conditions. Other factors, such 
as unanticipated expenditures or changes in the financial markets, may also impact a borrower's ability to 
pay. Collateral values, particularly real estate values, are also impacted by a variety of factors including 
general economic conditions, demographics, maintenance and collection or foreclosure delays. 



Non-oerfoming Assets 

Non-performing assets include non-accrual loans, mortgage loans delinquent 90 days or more and still 
accruing interest and real estate owned, or REO. Total non-performing assets increased to $66.1 million 
at December 31, 2005, from $33.5 million at December 31, 2004. Non-performing Ioans, the most 
significant component of non-performing assets, increased $32.4 million to $65.0 million at December 
3 1,2005, from $32.6 million at December 3 1, 2004. These increases were primarily due to increases in 
non-performing multi-family and one-to-four family mortgage loans. The increase in non-performing 
multi-family mortgage loans is primarily attributable to two large loans to unrelated borrowers. The first 
is a $5.4 million loan involving fraud. We have notified the applicable title insurance company of the 
existence of this fraud. They are defending our interest subject to a reservation of rights. The second is a 
$5.3 million loan where the borrower has become delinquent as a result of a large increase in his real 
estate taxes. The increase in non-performing one-to-four family mortgage loans is partially the result of 
an $1 1.5 million increase in loans which are classified as non-performing although they have only missed 
two payments, as discussed further below. At December 3 1, 2005, non-performing multi-family loans 
totaled $26.3 million and had an average loan-to-value ratio of 69.1% and an average debt service 
coverage ratio of 1.77 times. At December 3 1,2005, non-performing one-to-four family mortgage loans 
totaled $35.7 million and had an average loan-to-value ratio of 64.9%. Loan-to-value ratios are based on 
current principal balance and original appraised value. While our non-performing loans at December 3 1, 
2005 have increased from December 3 1,2004, our non-performing Ioans continue to remain at low levels 
in relation to the size of our loan portfolio. The ratio of non-performing loans to total loans increased to 
0.45% at December 3 1,2005, from 0.25% at December 31, 2004. Our ratio of non-performing assets to 
total assets increased to 0.30% at December 31,2005, from 0.14% at December 3 1,2004. The allowance 
for loan losses as a percentage of total non-performing loans decreased to 124.81% at December 3 1, 
2005, from 254.02% at December 3 1,2004. For a further discussion of the allowance for loan losses and 
non-performing assets and loans, see Item 7, "MD&A." 

We discontinue accruing interest on mortgage loans when such loans become 90 days delinquent as to 
their interest due, even though in some instances the borrower has only missed two payments. As of 
December 3 1, 2005, $28.1 million of mortgage loans classified as non-performing had missed only two 
payments, compared to $12.3 million at December 31, 2004. We discontinue accruing interest on 
consumer and other loans when such loans become 90 days delinquent as to their payment due. In 
addition, we reverse all previously accrued and uncoIIected interest through a charge to interest income. 
While loans are in non-accrual status, interest due is monitored and income is recognized only to the 
extent cash is received until a return to accrual status is warranted. In some circumstances, we continue to 
accrue interest on mortgage loans delinquent 90 days or more as to their maturity date, but not their 
interest due. In general, 90 days prior to a loan's maturity, the borrower is reminded of the maturity date. 
Where the borrower has continued to make monthly payments to us and where we do not have a reason to 
believe that any loss will be incurred on the loan, we have treated these loans as current and have 
continued to accrue interest. Such loans totaled $176,000 at December 31, 2005 and $573,000 at 
December 3 1,2004. 

The net carrying value of our RE0 totaled $1.1 million at December 3 I ,  2005 and $920,000 at December 
3 1, 2004 and consisted of one-to-four family properties. RE0 is carried net of allowances for losses at 
the lower of cost or fair value less estimated selling costs. 

Classified Assets 

Our Asset Review Department reviews and classifies our assets and independently reports the results of 
its reviews to our Board of Directors quarterly. Our Asset Classification Committee establishes policy 
relating to the internal classification of Ioans and also provides input to the Asset Review Department in 
its review of our assets. 

Federal regulations and our policy require the classification of loans and other assets, such as debt and 
equity securities considered to be of lesser quality, as special mention, substandard, doubtful or loss. An 
asset classified as special mention has potential weaknesses, which, if uncorrected, may result in the 
deterioration of the repayment prospects or in our credit position at some future date. An asset classified 



as substandard is inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or the 
collateral pledged, if any. Substandard assets include those characterized by the distinct possibility that 
we will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. Assets classified as doubtful have a11 of the 
weaknesses inherent in those classified as substandard, with the added characteristic that the weaknesses 
present make collection or liquidation in full satisfaction of the loan amount, on the basis of currently 
existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable. Assets classified as loss are 
those considered uncoilectible and of such littfe value that their continuance as assets without the 
establishment of a specific loss reserve is not warranted. Those assets classified as substandard, doubtful 
or loss are considered adversely classified. See the table on page 64 for additional information on our 
classified assets. 

If a loan is classified, an estimated value of the property securing the loan, if any, is determined through 
an appraisal, where possible. In instances where we have not taken possession of the property or do not 
otherwise have access to the premises and, therefore, cannot obtain a complete appraisal, a real estate 
broker's opinion as to the value of the property is obtained based primarily on a drive-by inspection and a 
comparison of the property securing the loan with similar properties in the area. In circumstances for 
which we have determined that repayment of the loan will be based solely on the collatera! and the unpaid 
balance of the loan is greater than the estimated fair value of such collateral, a specific valuation 
allowance is established for the difference between the carrying value and the fair value less estimated 
selling costs. 

Impaired Loans 

A loan is normally deemed impaired when it is probable we will be unable to collect both principal and 
interest due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. A valuation allowance is 
established when the fair value of the property that collateralizes the impaired loan, if any, is less than the 
recorded investment in the Ioan. Our impaired loans at December 3 1,2005, net of their related alfowance 
for Ioan losses of $6.9 million, totaled $31.5 million. Interest income recognized on impaired loans 
amounted to $1.3 million for the year ended December 3 1,2005. For further detail on our impaired loans, 
see Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, "Financial Statements and 
Supplementary Data.'" 

Allowance for Loan Losses 

For a discussion of our accounting policy related to the allowance for loan losses, see "Critical 
Accounting Policies" in Item 7, 'cMMD&A.'y 

In addition to the requirements of US. generatly accepted accounting principles, or GAAP, related to loss 
contingencies, a federally chartered savings association's determination as to the classification of its 
assets and the amount of its valuation allowances is subject to review by the Office of Thrift Supervision, 
or OTS. The OTS, in conjunction with the other federal banking agencies, provides guidance for 
financial institutions on both the responsibilities of management for the assessment and establishment of 
adequate allowances and guidance for banking agency examiners to use in detemining the adequacy of 
valuation allowances. It is required that all institutions have effective systems and controls to identify, 
monitor and address asset quality problems, analyze all significant factors that affect the collectibility of 
the portfolio in a reasonable manner and establish acceptable allowance evaluation processes that meet 
the objectives of the federal regulatory agencies. While we believe that the allowance for loan losses has 
been established and maintained at adequate levels, future adjustments may be necessary if economic or 
other conditions differ substantially from the conditions used in making the initial determinations. In 
addition, there can be no assurance that the OTS or other regulators, as a result of reviewing our loan 
portfolio and/or allowance, will not request that we alter our aflowance for loan losses, thereby affecting 
our financial condition and earnings. 



Investment Activities 

General 

Our investment policy is designed to complement our lending activities, generate a favorable return 
without incurring undue interest rate and credit risk, enable us to manage the interest rate sensitivity of 
our overall assets and liabilities and provide and maintain liquidity, primarily through cash flow. In 
establishing our investment strategies, we consider our business and growth plans, the economic 
environment, our interest rate sensitivity position, the types of securities held and other factors. At 
December 3 1,2005, our securities portfolio totaled $6.57 billion, or 29.4% of total assets. 

Federally chartered savings associations have authority to invest in various types of assets, including U S .  
Treasury obligations; securities of government agencies and GSEs; mortgage-backed securities, including 
collateralized mortgage obligations, or CMOS, and real estate mortgage investment conduits, or REMICs; 
certain certificates of deposit of insured banks and federally chartered savings associations; certain 
bankers acceptances; and, subject to certain limits, corporate securities, commercial paper and mutual 
funds. Our investment policy also permits us to invest in certain derivative financial instruments. We do 
not use derivatives for trading purposes. See Note 1 and Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data," for further discussion of such 
derivative financial instruments. 

Securities 

Our securities portfolio is comprised primarily of mortgage-backed securities. At December 31, 2005, 
our mortgage-backed securities totaled $6.43 billion, or 97.8% of total securities, of which $6.33 billion, 
or 96.3% of total securities, were REMIC and CMO securities, substantially all of which had fixed rates. 
These securities provide liquidity, collateral for borrowings and minimal credit risk while providing 
appropriate returns and are an attractive alternative to other investments due to the wide variety of 
maturity and repayment options available. Of the REMIC and CMO securities portfolio, $5.91 billion, or 
93.5%, are guaranteed by Fannie Mae, or FNMA, Freddie Mac, or FHLMC, or Ginnie Mae, or GNMA, 
as issuer. The balance of this portfolio is comprised of privately issued securities, substantially all of 
which have a credit rating of AAA. In addition to our REMIC and CMO securities, at December 31, 
2005, we had $98.9 million, or 1.5% of total securities, in mortgage-backed pass-through certificates 
guaranteed by either FNM, FHLMC or GNMA. 

Mortgage-backed securities generally yield less than the loans that underlie such securities because of the 
cost of payment guarantees or credit enhancements that reduce credit risk. However, mortgage-backed 
securities are more Iiquid than individual mortgage loans and more easily used to collateralize our 
borrowings. In general, our mortgage-backed securities are weighted at no more than 20% for OTS risk- 
based capital purposes, compared to the 50% risk weighting assigned to most non-securitized one-to-four 
family mortgage Loans. While mortgage-backed securities carry a reduced credit risk as compared to 
whole loans, they, along with whole loans, remain subject to the risk of a fluctuating interest rate 
environment. Changes in interest rates affect both the prepayment rate and estimated fair value of 
mortgage-backed securities and mortgage loans. 

In addition to mortgage-backed securities, we have $147.2 million of other securities which consist of 
FNMA and FHLMC preferred stock, obligations of states and political subdivisions and corporate debt 
and other securities, some of which, by their terms, may be called by the issuer, typically after the passage 
of a fixed period of time. As of ~eeember 3 1, 2005, the amortized cost of callable securities totaled 
$124.1 million. No securities were called during the year ended December 3 1,2005. 

At December 3 1, 2005, our securities available-for-sale totaled $1.84 billion and our securities held-to- 
maturity totaled $4.73 billion. For a further discussion of our securities portfofio, see the tables on pages 
13 and 14, Item 7, "MD&A," and Note 1 and Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in 
Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data." 



As a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank, or FHLB, of New York, or FHLB-NY, Astoria Federal is 
required to maintain a specified investment in the capital stock of the FHLB-NY. See "Regulation and 
Supervision - Federal Home Loan Bank System." 

Repurchase Agreements 

We invest in various money market instruments, including repurchase agreements (securities purchased 
under agreements to resell) and overnight and term federal funds, although at December 31, 2005 and 
2004 we had no investments in federal funds sold. Money market instruments are used to invest our 
available funds resulting from cash flow and to help satisfy liquidity needs. For a further discussion of 
our repurchase agreements, see Item 7, "MD&A" and Note 1 and Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data." 

Securities Portfolio 

The following table sets forth the composition of our available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities 
portfolios at their respective carrying values in dollar amounts and in percentages of the portfolios at the 
dates indicated. Our available-for-sale securities portfolio is carried at estimated fair value and our held- 
to-maturity securities portfolio is carried at amortized cost. 

At December 31, 
2005 2004 2003 

Percent Percent Percent 
(Dollars in Thousands) Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total 

Securities available-for-sale: 
Mortgage-backed securities: 

REMlCs and CMOs: 
GSE issuance $1,567,3 12 85.12% $2,077,902 86.33% $2,227,85 1 83.90% 
Non-GSE issuance 57,938 3.15 75,715 3.15 103,740 3.91 

GSE pass-through certificates 93,124 5.06 126,570 5.26 166,724 6.28 
FNMA and FHLMC preferred stock 120,495 6.54 123,548 5.13 131,361 4.95 
Other securities 2.482 0.13 3,148 0.13 25,316 0.96 

Total securities available-for-sale $1.841.351 100.00% $2.406.883 100.00% $2.654.992 100.00% 

Securities held-to-maturity: 
Mortgage-backed securities: 

REMICs and CMOs: 
GSE issuance $4,346,63 1 91 38% $5,772,676 91.58% $4,958,633 85.60% 
Non-GSE issuance 354,395 7.49 480,053 7.62 772,728 13.34 

GSE pass-through certificates 5,737 0.12 9,154 0.15 14,345 0.25 
Obligations of states and political 

subdivisions and coruorate debt securities 24,190 0.51 41,053 0.65 47.021 0.81 
Total securities held-to-maturitv $4.730.953 100.00% $6.302.936 100.00% $5.792.727 100.00% 

The following table sets forth the aggregate amortized cost and estimated fair value of our securities, 
substantially all of which are mortgage-backed securities, where the aggregate amortized cost of securities 
from a single issuer exceeds ten percent of our stockholders' equity at December 3 1,2005. 

Amortized ' Estimated 
(In Thousands) Cost Fair Value 
FHLMC $3,814,508 $3,720,479 
FNMA 2,189,65 1 2,113,636 
FHLB-NY ( I )  145,749 145,738 

f I )  Comprised primarily of FHLB-NY stock. 



The table below sets forth certain information regarding the amortized costs, estimated fair values, weighted average yields and contractual maturities of our 
repurchase agreements, FHLB-NY stock and securities available-for-sale and held-to-maturity portfolios at December 3 1, 2005 and does not reflect the 
effect of prepayments or scheduled principal amortization on our REMICs, CMOs and pass-through certificates, 

Within One to Five to Over 
One Year Five Years Ten Years Ten Years Total Securities 

Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted Estimated Weighted 
Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Average Amortized Fair Average 

fDoliars in 7hotrsandsl Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Yield Cost Value Yield 

F B-NY ck 1 2 P 0 145.247 5.25% 145.2 45.247 5.25% 

Securities available-for-sale: 
REMICs and CMOs: 

GSE issuance $ -% $ 173 6.55% $ - -% $1,645,788 3.96% $1,645,961 $1,567,3 12 3.96% 
Non-GSE issuance 61,735 3.54 61,735 57,938 3.54 

GSE pass-through certificates 20 6.83 277 6.48 14,007 6.87 76,907 5.66 91,211 93,124 5.85 
FNMA and FHLMC preferred 

stock ( I )  123,495 5.47 123,495 120,495 5.47 
Other securities 1,753 5.09 750 3.85 2.503 2.482 4.72 . . m s  available-for-sale $ 1.773 5.1 1% $ 1.200 4.85% $14.007 6.87% $1.907.925 4.1 1% $1.924.905 $1.841.351 4.13% 

d 

* Securities held-to-maturity: 
REMlCs and CMOs: 

GSE issuance $ -YO $ - -% $ - -% $4,346,63 1 4.49% $4,346,631 $4,250,726 4.49% 
Non-GSE issuance 354,395 4.45 354,395 346,099 4.45 

GSE pass-through certificates 6 9.22 996 8.47 1,921 6.55 2,814 8.25 5,737 5,926 7.72 
Obligations of states and political 

subdivisions and corporate debt securities - 9.992 5.80 14,198 6.56 24.190 24.262 6.24 
T 1 riie h l - - t u i  1 .5S0 4.718.0 4.50% 4.730 4.627.013 4.50•‹ 

(1)  As equity securities have no maturities, they are classified in the over ten years category. 
(2) The carrying amount of FHLB-NY stock equals cost. 



Sources of Funds 

General 

Our primary source of funds is the cash flow provided by our investing activities, including principal and 
interest payments on loans and securities. Our other sources of funds are provided by operating activities 
(primarily net income) and financing activities, including deposits and borrowings. 

Deposits 

We offer a variety of deposit accounts with a range of interest rates and terms. We presently offer 
passbook and statement savings accounts, money market accounts, NOW and demand deposit accounts, 
Liquid certificates of deposit, or Liquid CDs, and certificates of deposit, which include alf time deposits 
other than Liquid CDs. Liquid CDs were introduced in January 2005 and have maturities of three 
months, require the maintenance of a minimum balance and allow depositors the ability to make periodic 
deposits to and withdrawals from their account. We consider Liquid CDs as part of our core deposits, 
along with savings accounts, money market accounts and NOW and demand deposit accounts, due to 
their depositor flexibility. At December 31,2005, our deposits totaled $12.81 billion. Of the total deposit 
balance, $1.52 billion, or 11.8%, represent Individual Retirement Accounts. We held no brokered 
deposits at December 3 1,2005. 

The flow of deposits is influenced significantly by general economic conditions, changes in prevailing 
interest rates, pricing of deposits and competition. Our deposits are primarily obtained from areas 
surrounding our banking offices. We rely primarily on our sales and marketing efforts, including print 
advertising, competitive rates, quality service, our PEAK Process, new products and long-standing 
customer relationships to attract and retain these deposits. When we determine the levels of our deposit 
rates, consideration is given to local competition, yields of U.S. Treasury securities and the rates charged 
for other sources of hnds. We continue to experience intense competition for deposits. However, we 
continue to maintain a strong level of core deposits, which has contributed to our low cost of funds. Core 
deposits represented 4 1.8% of total deposits at December 3 I, 2005. 

For a further discussion of our deposits, see the tables below and on page 16, Item 7, "MD&A," and Note 
7 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary 
Data." 

The following table presents our deposit activity for the years indicated. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 
/Dollars in Thousands) 2005 2004 2003 
Opening balance $ 12,323,257 $ 11,186,594 $ 11,067,196 
Net deposits (withdrawals) 205,799 899,234 (105,853) 
Interest credited 28 1,399 237,429 225.25 1 
Ending balance $ 12.810.455 $ 12.323.257 $ 11,186.594 
pet increase $ 487.198 $ 1.136.663 $ 119.398 
Percentage increase 3.95% 10.16% 1.08% 

The following table sets forth the maturity periods of our certificates of deposit and Liquid CDs in 
amounts of $100,000 or more at December 3 1,2005. 

/In Thousands) Amount 

Within three months $ 724,000 
Three to six months 462,122 
Six to twelve months 403,488 
Over twelve months 725,141 
Total $2.3 14.75 1 



The following table sets forth the distribution of our average deposit balances for the periods indicated 
and the weighted average nominal interest rates for each category of deposit presented. 

For the Year Ended December 31. 
2005 2004 2003 

Weighted Weighted Weighted 
Average Average Average 

Average Percent Nominal Average Percent Nominal Average Percent Nominal 
(Dollars in Thousands1 Balance of Total Rate Balance of Total Rate Balance of Totat Rate 

Savings $ 2,742,417 21.74% 0.40% $2,973,054 25.18% 0.40% $ 2,907,541 25.96% 0.45% 
Money market 804,855 6.38 0.93 1,088,9t5 9.22 0.58 1,403,363 12.53 0.71 
NOW 936,848 7.43 0.10 927,632 7.86 0.10 85 1,723 7.60 0.18 
Non-interest bearing NOW 

and demand deposit 632,571 5.01 607,190 5.14 6 1 8,082 5.52 
Liauid CDs 350.923 2.78 3.01 
Total 5.467.614 43.34 0.55 5.596,791 47.40 0.34 5,780,709 51.61 0.43 

Certificates of deposit (1): 
Within one year 809,136 6.41 2.35 955,919 8.10 1.26 1,424,825 12.72 1.55 
One to three years 3,191,691 25.32 2.98 2,340,879 19.82 2.80 1,688,220 15.07 3.51 
Three to five years 2,760,364 2 1.88 4.32 2,645,262 22.40 4.82 2,07 1,864 18.5 1 5.22 
Over five years 54,856 0.43 4.53 126,132 1.07 4.95 86,749 0.77 4.95 
Jumbo 330.617 2.62 3.25 142,822 1.21 1.65 148,067 1.32 1.74 

Total 7,146.664 56.66 3.45 6.21 1.014 52.60 3.44 5,419.725 48.39 3.62 

Total d it 8 

(1) Terms indicated are original, not term remaining to maturity. 

The following table presents, by rate categories, the remaining periods to maturity of our certificates of 
deposit and Liquid CDs outstanding at December 3 1,2005 and the balances of our certificates of deposit 
and Liquid CDs outstanding at December 3 1,2005,2004 and 2003. 

Period to maturie from December 31,2005 At December 31. 
Within One to two Two to three Over three 

(In Thousands) one year years years years 2005 2004 2003 
Certificates of deposit and 

Liquid CDs: 
1.99% or less $ 295,831 $ 6,965 $ - $ - $ 302,796 $ 982,159 $ 1,446,137 
2.00% to 2.99% 1,169,390 127,240 5,757 2,949 1,305,336 2,204,981 797,506 
3.00% to 3.99% 2,644,568 929,932 441,300 61,148 4,076,948 1,901,075 1,268,117 
4.00% to 4.99% 494,997 263,409 472,787 579,664 1,810,857 699,936 61 1,975 
5.00% to 5.99% 235,682 302,102 313 538,097 589,044 678,556 
6.00% and over 46.935 46.935 470,940 699,107 

Total $4.887.403 $1.629.648 $9 19.844 $644.074 $8.080.969 $6.848.135 $5.501.398 

Borrowings 

Borrowings are used as a complement to deposit generation as a funding source for asset growth and 
are an integral part of our interest rate risk management strategy. We enter into reverse repurchase 
agreements (securities sold under agreements to repurchase) with nationally recognized primary 
securities dealers and the FHLB-NY. Reverse repurchase agreements are accounted for as borrowings 
and are secured by the securities sold under the agreements. We also obtain advances from the FHLB- 
NY which are generally secured by a blanket lien against, among other things, our one-to-four family 
mortgage loan portfolio and our investment in FHLB-NY stock. The maximum amount that the FHLB- 
NY will advance, for purposes other than for meeting withdrawals, fluctuates from time to time in 
accordance with the policies of the FHLB-NY. See "Regulation and Supervision - Federal Home Loan 
Bank System." Occasionally, we will obtain funds through the issuance of unsecured debt obligations. 
These obligations are classified as other borrowings in our consolidated statement of financial 
condition. At December 3 1,2005, borrowings totaled $7.94 billion. 

In addition, at December 3 1, 2005, we had a 12-month commitment for overnight and one month lines 
of credit with the FHLB-NY totaling $200.0 million, of which $40.0 million was outstanding under the 
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overnight and $50.0 million was outstanding under the one-month line of credit, which are included in 
total borrowings. Both lines of credit are priced at the federal funds rate plus a spread (generally 
between 10 and 15 basis points) and reprice daily. 

Included in our borrowings are various obligations which, by their terms, may be called by the 
securities dealers and the FHLB-NY. At December 3 1, 2005, we had $2.1 8 billion of borrowings 
which are callable within one year and at various times thereafter which have contractual remaining 
maturities of up to three years. We also have $500.0 million of borrowings, due in 2015, which are 
callable in 2007 and at various times thereafter. 

For further infomation regarding our borrowings, including our borrowings outstanding, average 
borrowings, maximum borrowings and weighted average interest rates at and for each of the years 
ended December 3 I ,  2005,2004 and 2003, see Item 7, "MD&A" and Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated 
Financial Statements in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data." 

Non-interest Revenue 

We have continued to focus on building sources of non-interest revenue, including expanding our 
checking account base to generate additional fees and by making mutual funds, deferred annuities and 
insurance products available to our customers through our wholly-owned subsidiaries. See "Subsidiary 
Activities." 

Market Area and Competition 

Astoria Federal has been, and continues to be, a community-oriented federally chartered savings 
association offering a variety of financial services to meet the needs of the communities it serves. Our 
retail banking network includes multiple delivery channels including full service banking offices, 
automated teller machines, or ATMs, and telephone and internet banking capabilities. We consider our 
strong retail banking network, together with our reputation for financial strength and customer service, 
as our major strengths in attracting and retaining customers in our market areas. 

Astoria Federal's deposit gathering sources are primarily concentrated in the communities surrounding 
Astoria Federal's banking offices in Queens, Kings (Brooklyn), Nassau, Suffolk and Westchester 
counties in the New York metropolitan area. At December 3 1, 2005, Astoria Federal ranked fourth in 
deposit market share, with an 8.3% market share, in the Long Island market, which includes the 
counties of Queens, Brooklyn, Nassau and Suffofk, based on the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation, or FDIC, "Summary of Deposits - Market Share Report" dated June 30,2005. 

Astoria Federal originates mortgage loans through its banking and loan production offices in the New 
York metropolitan area, through an extensive broker network covering twenty-four states and the 
District of Columbia and through a third party loan origination program covering forty-four states and 
the District of Columbia. Our broker and third party loan origination programs provide efficient and 
diverse delivery channels for deployment of our cash flows. Additionally, they provide geographic 
diversification, reducing our exposure to concentrations of credit risk. 

The New York metropolitan area has a high density of financial institutions, a number of which are 
significantly larger and have greater financial resources than we have. Additionally over the past 
several years, various large out-of-state financial institutions have entered the New York metropolitan 
area market. All are our competitors to varying degrees. Our competition for loans, both locally and in 
the aggregate, comes principally from mortgage banking companies, commercial banks, savings banks 
and savings and loan associations. We have experienced continued intense competition for deposits, 
particularly money market and checking accounts. Our most direct competition for deposits comes 
from commercial banks, savings banks, savings and loan associations and credit unions. We also face 
intense competition for deposits from money market mutual funds and other corporate and government 
securities funds as well as from other financial intermediaries such as brokerage firms and insurance 
companies. 



Subsidiary Activities 

We have two direct wholly-owned subsidiaries, Astoria Federal and AF Insurance Agency, Inc., which 
are reported on a consolidated basis at December 31, 2005. AF Insurance Agency, Inc. is a life 
insurance and property and casualty insurance agency. Through contractual agreements with various 
third party marketing organizations, AF Insurance Agency, Inc. makes insurance products available 
primarily to the customers of Astoria Federal. 

We have one other direct subsidiary, Astoria Capital Trust I, which is not consolidated with Astoria 
Financial Corporation for financial reporting purposes in accordance with FIN 46(R). Astoria Capital 
Trust I was formed in 1999 for the purpose of issuing $125.0 million of Capital Securities and $3.9 
million of common securities and using the proceeds to acquire $128.9 million of Junior Subordinated 
Debentures issued by us. The Junior Subordinated Debentures total $128.9 million, have an interest 
rate of 9.75%, mature on November 1, 2029 and are the sole assets of Astoria Capital Trust I. The 
Junior Subordinated Debentures are prepayable, in whole or in part, at our option on or after November 
1, 2009 at declining premiums to November 1,2019, after which the Junior Subordinated Debentures 
are prepayable at par value. The Capital Securities have the same prepayment provisions as the Junior 
Subordinated Debentures. See Note 1 and Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in 
Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Datayy for further discussion of Astoria Capital Trust 
I, the Capital Securities and the Junior Subordinated Debentures. 

At December 31, 2005, the following were wholly-owned subsidiaries of Astoria Federal and are 
reported on a consolidated basis: 

AF Agency, Inc. was formed in 1990 to make tax-deferred annuities and a variety of mutual funds 
available to the customers of Astoria Federal through an unaffiliated third party vendor. Astoria 
Federal is reimbursed for expenses and administrative services it provides to AF Agency, Inc. Fees 
generated by AF Agency, Inc. totaled $8.4 million for the year ended December 3 1, 2005, which 
represented 8.2% of non-interest income. 

Astoria Federal Savings and Loan Association Revocable Grantor Trust was formed in November 2000 
in connection with the establishment of a BOLI program by Astoria Federal. Premiums paid to 
purchase BOLI in 2000 and 2002 totaled $350.0 million. The carrying amount of our investment in 
BOLI was $382.6 million, or 1.7% of total assets, at December 31, 2005. See Note 1 of Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for 
further discussion of BOLL 

Astoria Federal Mortgage Corp. is an operating subsidiary through which Astoria Federal engages in 
lending activities outside the State of New York. 

Star Preferred Holding Corporation, or Star Preferred, was incorporated in the State of New Jersey in 
November 1999 to function as a hotding company for Astoria Preferred Funding Corpomtion, or APFC, 
which qualified as a real estate investment trust under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 
During 2005, substantially all of the mortgage loans held by APFC were transferred to Fidata Service 
Corp., or Fidata, a previously inactive subsidiary of Astoria Federal. The remaining assets of both 
APFC and Star Preferred were transferred to Astoria Federal. Star Preferred and APFC have no assets 
or operations at December 3 I, 2005 and are in the process of being dissolved. 

Fidata was incorporated in the State of New York in November 1982 and qualifies for alternative tax 
treatment under Article 9A of the New York State Tax Law. Prior to 2005, Fidata was inactive. During 
2005, Fidata was reorganized to qualify as a Connecticut passive investment company, or PIC. Fidata 
maintains offices in Nonvalk, Connecticut and invests in loans secured by real property which qualify 
as intangible investments permitted to be held by a Connecticut PIC. Fidata mortgage loans totaled 
$6.76 billion at December 3 1,2005. 

Suffco Service Corporation, or SuEco, serves as document custodian for the loans of Astoria Federal 
and Fidata and certain loans being serviced for FNMA and other investors. 



Entrust Holding Corp. is the owner of a fifty percent membership interest in Entrust Title Agency, LLC, 
which sells title insurance. 

Astoria Federal has two subsidiaries which may qualify for alternative tax treatment under Article 9A 
of the New York State Tax Law and therefore, although inactive, are retained by Astoria Federal. 

Astoria Federal has four additional subsidiaries, two of which are single purpose entities that have 
interests in real estate investments, which are not material to our financial condition, and one of which 
has no assets or operations but may be used to acquire interests in real estate in the future. The fourth 
such subsidiary serves as a holding company for one of the other three. 

Astoria Federal has three additional subsidiaries which are inactive, two of which Astoria Federal 
intends to dissolve. 

As of December 3 1 ,  2005, we had 1,545 full-time employees and 225 part-time employees, or 1,658 
full time equivalents. The employees are not represented by a collective bargaining unit and we 
consider our relationship with our employees to be good. 

Regulation and Supervision 

General 

Astoria Federal is subject to extensive regulation, examination and supervision by the OTS, as its 
chartering agency, and by the FDIC, as its deposit insurer. We, as a unitary savings and loan holding 
company, are regulated, examined and supervised by the OTS. Astoria Federal is a member of the 
FHLB-NY and its deposit accounts are insured up to applicable limits by the FDIC under the Savings 
Association Insurance Fund, or SAIF, except for those deposits acquired from The Greater New York 
Savings Bank, which are insured by the FDIC under the Bank Insurance Fund, or BIF. We and Astoria 
Federal must file reports with the OTS concerning our activities and financial condition in addition to 
obtaining regulatory approvals prior to entering into certain transactions, such as mergers with, or 
acquisitions of, other financial institutions. The OTS periodically performs safety and soundness 
examinations of Astoria Federal and us and tests our compliance with various regulatory requirements. 
The FDIC reserves the right to do so as well. The OTS has primary enforcement responsibility over 
federally chartered savings associations and has substantial discretion to impose enforcement action on 
an institution that fails to comply with applicable regulatory requirements, particularly with respect to 
its capital requirements. In addition, the FDIC has the authority to recommend to the Director of the 
OTS that enforcement action be taken with respect to a particular federally chartered savings 
association and, if action is not taken by the Director, the FDIC has authority to take such action under 
certain circumstances. 

This regulation and supervision establishes a comprehensive framework to regulate and control the 
activities in which we can engage and is intended primarily for the protection of the deposit insurance 
funds and depositors. The regulatory structure also gives the regulatory authorities extensive discretion 
in connection with their supervisory and enforcement activities and examination policies, including 
policies with respect to the classification of assets and the establishment of adequate loan loss reserves 
for regulatory purposes. Any change in such regulation, whether by the OTS, FDIC or Congress, could 
have a material adverse impact on Astoria Federal and us and our respective operations. 

The description of statutory provisions and regulations applicable to federally chartered savings 
associations and their holding companies and of tax matters set forth in this document does not purport 
to be a complete description of all such statutes and regulations and their effects on Astoria Federal and 
US. 



Federally Chartered Savings Association Regulation 

Business Activities 

Astoria Federal derives its lending and investment powers from the Home Owners7 Loan Act, as 
amended, or HOLA, and the regulations of the OTS thereunder. Under these laws and regulations, 
Astoria Federal may invest in mortgage loans secured by residential and non-residential real estate, 
commercial and consumer loans, certain types of debt securities and certain other assets. Astoria 
Federal may also establish service corporations that may engage in activities not otherwise permissible 
for Astoria Federal, including certain real estate equity investments and securities and insurance 
brokerage activities. These investment powers are subject to various limitations, including (I) a 
prohibition against the acquisition of any corporate debt security that is not rated in one of the four 
highest rating categories, (2) a limit of 400% of an association's capital on the aggregate amount of 
loans secured by non-residential real estate property, (3) a limit of 20% of an association's assets on 
commercial loans, with the amount of commercial loans in excess of 10% of assets being limited to 
small business loans, (4) a limit of 35% of an association's assets on the aggregate amount of consumer 
loans and acquisitions of certain debt securities, (5) a limit of 5% of assets on non-conforming loans 
(loans in excess of the specific limitations of HOLA), and (6) a limit of the greater of 5% of assets or an 
association's capital on certain construction loans made for the purpose of financing what is or is 
expected to become residential property. 

Capital Requirements 

The OTS capital regulations require federally chartered savings associations to meet three minimum 
capital ratios: a 1.5% tangible capital ratio, a 4% leverage (core) capital ratio and an 8% total risk-based 
capital ratio. In assessing an institution's capital adequacy, the OTS takes into consideration not only 
these numeric factors but also qualitative factors as well, and has the authority to establish higher 
capital requirements for individual institutions where necessary. Astoria Federal, as a matter of prudent 
management, targets as its goal the maintenance of capital ratios which exceed these minimum 
requirements and that are consistent with Astoria Federal's risk profile. At December 3 1,2005, Astoria 
Federal exceeded each of its capital requirements with a tangible capital ratio of 6.53%, leverage capital 
ratio of 6.53% and total risk-based capital ratio of 12.53%. 

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act, or FDICIA, requires that the OTS and 
other federal banking agencies revise their risk-based capital standards, with appropriate transition 
rules, to ensure that they take into account interest rate risk, or IRR, concentration of risk and the risks 
of non-traditional activities. The OTS regulations do not include a specific IRR component of the risk- 
based capital requirement. However, the OTS monitors the IRR of individual institutions through a 
variety of means, including an analysis of the change in net portfolio value, or NPV. NPV is defined as 
the net present value of the expected future cash flows of an entity's assets and liabilities and, therefore, 
hypothetically represents the value of an institution's net worth. The OTS has also used this NPV 
analysis as part of its evaluation of certain applications or notices submitted by thrift institutions. In 
addition, OTS Thrift Bulletin 13a provides guidance on the management of IRR and the responsibility 
of boards of directors in that area. The OTS, through its general oversight of the safety and soundness 
of savings associations, retains the right to impose minimum capital requirements on individual 
institutions to the extent the institution is not in compliance with certain written guidelines established 
by the OTS regarding NPV analysis. The OTS has not imposed any such requirements on Astoria 
Federal. 

Prompt Corrective Regulatory Action 

FDICIA established a system of prompt corrective action to resolve the problems of undercapitalized 
institutions. Under this system, the banking regulators are required to take certain, and authorized to 
take other, supervisory actions against undercapitaiized institutions, based upon five categories of 
capitalization which FDICIA created: "well capitalized," "adequately capitalized," "undercapitalized," 
"significantly undercapitalized," and "critically undercapitalized," the severity of which depends upon 



the institution" degree of capitalization. Generally, a capital restoration plan must be filed with the 
OTS within 45 days of the date an association receives notice that it is "undercapitalized," 
"significantly undercapitalized" or "critically undercapitalized." In addition, various mandatory 
supervisory actions become immediately applicable to the institution, including restrictions on growth 
of assets and other forms of expansion. Under the OTS regulations, generally, a federally chartered 
savings association is treated as well capitalized if its total risk-based capital ratio is 10% or greater, its 
Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio is 6% or greater and its leverage ratio is 5% or greater, and it is not 
subject to any order or directive by the OTS to meet a specific capital level. As of December 3 1,2005, 
Astoria Federal was considered "well capitalized" by the OTS, with a total risk-based capital ratio of 
12.53%, Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 11 36% and leverage ratio of 6.53%. 

Insurance of Deposit Accounts 

Pursuant to FDICIA, the FDIC established a risk-based assessment system for insured depository 
institutions that takes into account the risks attributable to different categories and concentrations of 
assets and liabilities. Under the risk-based assessment system, the FDIC assigns an institution to one of 
three capital categories based on the institution's financial information as of its most recent quarterly 
financial report filed with the appiicable bank regulatory agency prior to the commencement of the 
assessment period, consisting of (1) well capitalized, (2) adequately capitalized or (3) undercapitalized. 
The FDIC also assigns an institution to one of three supervisory subcategories within each capital 
group. The supervisory subgroup to which an institution is assigned is based on a supervisory 
evaluation provided to the FDIC by the institution's primary federal regulator and information that the 
FDIC determines to be relevant to the institution's financial condition and the risk posed to the deposit 
insurance funds. An institution's deposit insurance assessment rate depends on the capital category and 
supervisory subcategory to which it is assigned. Under the risk-based assessment system, there are nine 
assessment risk classifications (i.e., combinations of capital groups and supervisory subgroups) to 
which different assessment rates are applied, ranging from 0 to 27 basis points. The assessment rates 
for our BIF-assessable and SAIF-assessable deposits since 1997 were each 0 basis points. If the FDIC 
determines that assessment rates should be increased, institutions in all risk categories could be 
affected. The FDIC has exercised this authority several times in the past and could raise insurance 
assessment rates in the future. SAIF-assessable deposits are also subject to assessments for payments 
on the bonds issued in the late 1980s by the Financing Corporation, or FICO, to recapitalize the now 
defunct Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation. Our total expense in 2005 for the assessment 
for the FICO payments was $1.8 million. 

On February 8, 2006, President Bush signed the "Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act of 2005," or 
the 2005 Deposit Act, into law. The 2005 Deposit Act contains provisions designed to reform and 
modernize the Federal deposit insurance system. Among other things, the 2005 Deposit Act will merge 
the BIF and SAIF into a new Deposit Insurance Fund; index the current $100,000 deposit insurance 
limit to inflation beginning in 2010 and every succeeding five years; and increase the deposit insurance 
limit for certain retirement accounts to $250,000 and index that limit to inflation. 

Loans to One Borrower 

Under the HOLA, savings associations are generally subject to the national bank limits on loans to one 
borrower. Generally, savings associations may not make a loan or extend credit to a single or related 
group of borrowers in excess of 15% of the institution's unimpaired capital and surplus. Additional 
amounts may be loaned, not in excess of 10% of unimpaired capital and surplus, if such loans or 
extensions of credit are secured by readily-marketable collateral. Astoria Federal is in compliance with 
applicable loans to one borrower limitations. At December 31, 2005, Astoria Federal's largest 
aggregate amount of loans to one borrower totaled $67.1 million. All of the loans for the largest 
borrower were performing in accordance with their terms and the borrower had no affiliation with 
Astoria Federal. 



Oualified Thrift Lender, or OTL, Test 

The HOLA requires savings associations to meet a QTL test. Under the QTL test, a savings association 
is required to maintain at least 65% of its c'portfolio assets" (total assets less (1) specified liquid assets 
up to 20% of total assets, (2) intangibles, including goodwill, and (3) the value of property used to 
conduct business) in certain "qualified thrift investments" (primarily residential mortgages and related 
investments, including certain mortgage-backed securities, credit card loans, student loans, and small 
business loans) on a monthly basis during at feast 9 out of every 12 months. As of December 3 1,2005, 
Astoria Federal maintained in excess of 92% of its portfolio assets in qualified thrift investments and 
had more than 65% of its portfolio assets in qualified thrift investments for each of the 12 months in the 
year ended December 3 1,2005. Therefore, Astoria Federal qualified under the QTL test. 

A savings association that fails the QTL test and does not convert to a bank charter generally will be 
prohibited from: (1) engaging in any new activity not permissible for a national bank, (2) paying 
dividends not permissible under national bank regulations, and (3) establishing any new branch office 
in a location not permissible for a national bank in the association's home state. In addition, if the 
association does not requalifjr under the QTL test within three years after failing the test, the association 
would be prohibited from engaging in any activity not permissible for a national bank and would have 
to repay any outstanding advances from the FHLB as promptly as possible. 

Limitation on Capital Distributions 

The OTS regulations impose limitations upon certain capital distributions by savings associations, such 
as certain cash dividends, payments to repurchase or otherwise acquire its shares, payments to 
shareholders of another institution in a cash-out merger and other distributions charged against capital. 

The OTS regulates all capital distributions by Astoria Federal directly or indirectly to us, including 
dividend payments. As the subsidiary of a savings and loan holding company, Astoria Federal 
currently must file a notice with the OTS at least 30 days prior to each capital distribution. However, if 
the total amount of ail capital distributions (including each proposed capital distribution) for the 
applicable calendar year exceeds net income for that year to date plus the retained net income for the 
preceding two years, then Astoria Federal must file an application to receive the approval of the OTS 
for a proposed capital distribution. 

Our ability to pay dividends, service our debt obligations and repurchase our common stock is 
dependent primarily upon receipt of dividend payments from Astoria Federal. Astoria Federal may not 
pay dividends to us if, after paying those dividends, it would fail to meet the required minimum levels 
under risk-based capital guide1 ines and the minimum leverage and tangible capital ratio requirements or 
the OTS notified Astoria Federal that it was in need of more than normal supervision. Under the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Act, or FDIA, an insured depository institution such as Astoria Federal is 
prohibited from making capital distributions, including the payment of dividends, if, after making such 
distribution, the institution would become '"ndercapitalized" (as such term is used in the FDIA). 
Payment of dividends by Astoria Federal also may be restricted at any time at the discretion of the 
appropriate regulator if it deems the payment to constitute an unsafe and unsound banking practice. 

Liauidity 

Astoria Federal maintains sufficient liquidity to ensure its safe and sound operation, in accordance with 
OTS regulations. 

Assessments 

The OTS charges assessments to recover the costs of examining savings associations and their 
affiliates. These assessments are based on three components: the size of the association, on which the 
basic assessment is based; the association's supervisory condition, which results in an additional 
assessment based on a percentage of the basic assessment for any savings institution with a composite 



rating of 3, 4 or 5 in its most recent safety and soundness examination; and the complexity of the 
association's operations, which results in an additional assessment based on a percentage of the basic 
assessment for any savings association that managed over $1 .OO billion in trust assets, serviced for 
others loans aggregating more than $1.00 billion, or had certain off-balance sheet assets aggregating 
more than $1.00 billion. Effective July 1, 2004, the OTS adopted a final rule replacing examination 
fees for savings and loan holding companies with semi-annual assessments. The OTS has phased in the 
assessments at a rate of 25% of the first semi-annual assessment on July 1, 2004, 50% of the second 
semi-annual assessment on January 1, 2005 and 100% of the third semi-annual assessment on July 1, 
2005. For the year ended December 3 1,2005, we paid $2.9 million in assessments. 

Branching 

The OTS regulations authorize federally chartered savings associations to branch nationwide to the 
extent allowed by federal statute. This permits federal savings and loan associations with interstate 
networks to more easily diversify their loan portfolios and lines of business geographically. OTS 
authority preempts any state law purporting to regulate branching by federal savings associations. 

CommuniQ Reinvestment 

Under the Community Reinvestment Act, or CRA, as implemented by the OTS regulations, a federally 
chartered savings association has a continuing and affirmative obligation, consistent with its safe and 
sound operation, to help meet the credit needs of its entire community, including low and moderate 
income areas. The CRA does not establish specific lending requirements or programs for financial 
institutions, nor does it limit an institution's discretion to develop the types of products and services that 
it believes are best suited to its particular community. The CRA requires the OTS, in connection with 
its examination of a federally chartered savings association, to assess the institution's record of meeting 
the credit needs of its community and to take such record into account in its evaluation of certain 
applications by such institution. The assessment focuses on three tests: (1) a lending test, to evaluate 
the institution's record of making loans, including community development loans, in its designated 
assessment areas; (2) an investment test, to evaluate the institution's record of investing in community 
development projects, affordable housing, and programs benefiting low or moderate income individuals 
and areas and small businesses; and (3) a service test, to evaluate the institution's delivery of banking 
services throughout its CRA assessment area, including low and moderate income areas. The CRA also 
requires all institutions to make public disclosure of their CRA ratings. Astoria Federal has been rated 
as "outstanding" over its last five CRA examinations. Regulations require that we publicly disclose 
certain agreements that are in fulfillment of CRA. We have no such agreements in place at this time. 

Transactions with Related Parties 

Astoria Federal is subject to the affiliate and insider transaction rules set forth in Sections 23A, 23B, 
22(g) and 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Act, or FRA, Regulation W issued by the Federal Reserve 
Board, or FRB, as well as additional limitations as adopted by the Director of the OTS. OTS 
regulations regarding transactions with aEliates conform to Regulation W. These provisions, among 
other things, prohibit, limit or place restrictions upon a savings institution extending credit to, or 
entering into certain transactions with, its affiliates (which for Astoria Federal would include us and our 
non-federally chartered savings association subsidiaries, if any), principal stockholders, directors and 
executive officers. In addition, the OTS regulations include additional restrictions on savings 
associations under Section 1 1  of HOLA, including provisions prohibiting a savings association from 
making a loan to an affiliate that is engaged in non-bank holding company activities and provisions 
prohibiting a savings association from purchasing or investing in securities issued by an affiliate that is 
not a subsidiary. The OTS regulations also include certain specific exemptions from these prohibitions. 
The FRB and the OTS require each depository institution that is subject to Sections 23A and 23B to 
implement policies and procedures to ensure compliance with Regulation W and the OTS regulations 
regarding transactions with affiliates. 

Section 402 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or Sarbanes-Oxley, prohibits the extension of personal 
loans to directors and executive officers of issuers (as defined in Sarbanes-Oxley). The prohibition, 



however, does not apply to mortgages advanced by an insured depository institution, such as Astoria 
Federal, that is subject to the insider fending restrictions of Section 22(h) of the FRA. 

Standards for Safety and Soundness 

Pursuant to the requirements of FDICIA, as amended by the Riegfe Community Development and 
Regulatory Improvement Act of 1994, the OTS, together with the other federal bank regulatory 
agencies, adopted guidelines establishing general standards relating to internal controls, information 
systems, internal audit systems, loan documentation, credit undenvriting, interest rate risk exposure, 
asset growth, asset quality, earnings, compensation, fees and benefits. In general, the guidelines 
require, among other things, appropriate systems and practices to identify and manage the risks and 
exposures specified in the guidelines. The guidelines prohibit excessive compensation as an unsafe and 
unsound practice and describe compensation as excessive when the amounts paid are unreasonable or 
disproportionate to the services performed by an executive officer, employee, director or principal 
shareholder. In addition, the OTS adopted regulations pursuant to FDICIA to require a savings 
association that is given notice by the OTS that it is not satisfying any of such safety and soundness 
standards to submit a compliance plan to the OTS. If, after being so notified, a savings association fails 
to submit an acceptable compliance plan or fails in any material respect to implement an accepted 
compliance plan, the OTS must issue an order directing corrective actions and may issue an order 
directing other actions of the types to which a significantly undercapitalized institution is subject under 
the "prompt corrective action" provisions of FDICIA. If a savings association fails to comply with such 
an order, the OTS may seek to enforce such order in judicial proceedings and to impose civil money 
penalties. For further discussion, see "Regulation and Supervision - Federally Chartered Savings 
Association Regulation - Prompt Corrective Regulatory Action." 

Insurance Activities 

Astoria Federal is generally permitted to engage in certain insurance activities through its subsidiaries. 
However, Astoria Federal is subject to regulations prohibiting depository institutions from conditioning 
the extension of credit to individuals upon either the purchase of an insurance product or annuity or an 
agreement by the consumer not to purchase an insurance product or annuity from an entity that is not 
aaliated with the depository institution. The regulations also require prior disclosure of this 
prohibition to potential insurance product or annuity customers. 

Privacy Protection 

Astoria Federal is subject to OTS regulations implementing the privacy protection provisions of the 
Gramm-Leach Bliley Act, or Gramm-Leach. These regulations require Astoria Federal to disclose its 
privacy policy, including identifying with whom it shares "nonpublic personal information," to 
customers at the time of establishing the customer relationship and annually thereafter. The regulations 
also require Astoria Federal to provide its customers with initial and annual notices that accurately 
reflect its privacy policies and practices. In addition, to the extent its sharing of such information is not 
exempted, Astoria Federal is required to provide its customers with the ability to "opt-out" of having 
Astoria Federal share their nonpublic personal information with unaffiliated third parties. 

Astoria Federal is subject to regulatory guidelines establishing standards for safeguarding customer 
information. These regulations implement certain provisions of Gramm-Leach. The guidelines 
describe the agencies' expectations for the creation, implementation and maintenance of an information 
security program, which would include administrative, technical and physical safeguards appropriate to 
the size and complexity of the institution and the nature and scope of its activities. The standards set 
forth in the guidelines are intended to ensure the security and confidentiality of customer records and 
information, protect against any anticipated threats or hazards to the security or integrity of such records 
and protect against unauthorized access to or use of such records or information that could result in 
substantial harm or inconvenience to any customer. 



Anti-Money Laundering and Customer Identification 

Astoria Federal is subject to OTS regulations implementing the Uniting and Strengthening America by 
Providing Appropriate Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001, or the USA 
PATRIOT Act. The USA PATRIOT Act gives the federal government powers to address terrorist 
threats through enhanced domestic security measures, expanded surveillance powers, increased 
information sharing and broadened anti-money laundering requirements. By way of mendments to the 
Bank Secrecy Act, Title I11 of the USA PATRIOT Act takes measures intended to encourage 
information sharing among bank regulatory agencies and law enforcement bodies. Further, certain 
provisions of Title 111 impose affirmative obligations on a broad range of financial institutions, 
including banks, thrifts, brokers, dealers, credit unions, money transfer agents and parties registered 
under the Commodity Exchange Act. 

Among other requirements, Title I11 of the USA PATRIOT Act and the related OTS regulations impose 
the following requirements with respect to financial institutions: 

Establishment of anti-money laundering programs. 
Establishment of a program specifying procedures for obtaining identifying information 
from customers seeking to open new accounts, including verifying the identity of customers 
within a reasonable period of time. 

* Establishment of enhanced due diligence policies, procedures and controls designed to 
detect and report money laundering. 
prohibition on correspondent accounts for foreign shell banks and compliance with 
recordkeeping obligations with respect to correspondent accounts of foreign banks. 

In addition, bank regulators are directed to consider a holding company's effectiveness in combating 
money laundering when ruling on FRA and Bank Merger Act applications. 

Federal Home Loan Bank System 

Astoria Federal is a member of the FHLB System which consists of 12 regional FHLBs. The FHLB 
provides a central credit facility primarily for member institutions. Astoria Federal, as a member of the 
FHLB-NY, is currently required to acquire and hold shares of capital stock in the FHLB-NY. Effective 
December 1,2005, the FHLB-NY implemented a new capital plan. The new capital plan resulted in an 
automatic exchange of shares of FHLB-NY stock held by members for shares of FHLB-NY Class B 
stock and changed the members' minimum stock investment requirements. The Class B stock has a par 
value of $100 per share and is redeemable upon five years notice, subject to certain conditions. The 
Class B stock has two subclasses, one for membership stock purchase requirements and the other for 
activity-based stock purchase requirements. The minimum stock investment requirement in the FHLB- 
NY CIass B stock is the sum of the membership stock purchase requirement, determined on an annual 
basis at the end of each calendar year, and the activity-based stock purchase requirement, determined on 
a daily basis. For Astoria Federal, the membership stock purchase requirement is 0.2% of the 
Mortgage-Related Assets, as defined by the FHLB-NY, which consists principally of residential 
mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities including CMOS and REMICs, held by Astoria Federal. 
The activity-based stock purchase requirement for Astoria Federal is equal to the sum of: ( 1 )  4.5% of 
outstanding borrowings from the FHLB-NY; (2) 4.5% of the outstanding principal balance of Acquired 
Member Assets, as defined by the FHLB-NY, and delivery commitments for Acquired Member Assets; 
(3) a specified dollar amount related to certain off-balance sheet items, which for Astoria Federal is 
zero; and (4) a specified percentage ranging from 0 to 5% of the carrying value on the FHLB-NY7s 
balance sheet of derivative contracts between the FHLB-NY and its members, which for Astoria 
Federal is also zero. The FHLB-NY can adjust the specified percentages and dollar amount from time 
to time within the ranges established by the FHLB-NY capital plan. Prior to December 1,2005, Astoria 
Federal was required to acquire and hold shares of capital stock in the FHLB-NY in an amount at least 
equal to 1% of the aggregate principal amount of its unpaid residential mortgage loans and similar 
obligations at the beginning of each year or 5% of its outstanding borrowings from the FHLB-NY, 
whichever was greater. 



Astoria Federal was in compliance with the FHLB-NY minimum stock investment requirements with 
an investment in FHLB-NY stock at December 31, 2005 of $145.2 million. Dividends from the 
FHLB-NY to Astoria Federal amounted to $6.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, $3.5 
million for the year ended December 3 1,2004 and $10.6 million for the year ended December 3 1,2003. 

Federal Reserve System 

FRF3 regulations require federally chartered savings associations to maintain non-interest-earning cash 
reserves against their transaction accounts (primarily NOW and demand deposit accounts). A reserve 
of 3% is to be maintained against aggregate transaction accounts between $7.8 million and $48.3 
million (subject to adjustment by the FRB) plus a reserve of 10% (subject to adjustment by the FRB 
between 8% and 14%) against that portion of total transaction accounts in excess of $48.3 million. The 
first $7.8 million of otherwise resewable balances (subject to adjustment by the FRB) is exempt from 
the reserve requirements. Astoria Federal is in compliance with the foregoing requirements. Since 
required reserves must be maintained in the form of either vault cash, a non-interest-bearing account at 
a Federal Reserve Bank or a pass-through account as defined by the FRB, the effect of this reserve 
requirement is to reduce Astoria Federal's interest-earning assets. FHLB System members are also 
authorized to borrow from the Federal Reserve "discount window," but FRE3 regulations require 
institutions to exhaust all FHLB sources before borrowing from a Federal Reserve Bank. 

Holding Company Regulation 

We are a unitary savings and loan association holding company within the meaning of the HOLA. As 
such, we are registered with the OTS and are subject to the OTS regulations, examinations, supervision 
and reporting requirements. In addition, the OTS has enforcement authority over us and our savings 
association subsidiary. Among other things, this authority permits the OTS to restrict or prohibit 
activities that are determined to be a serious risk to the subsidiary savings association. 

Gramm-Leach also restricts the powers of new unitary savings and loan association holding companies. 
Unitary savings and loan association holding companies that are "gandfathered," i.e., unitary savings 
and loan association holding companies in existence or with applications filed with the OTS on or 
before May 4, 1999, such as us, retain their authority under the prior law. All other unitary savings and 
loan association holding companies are limited to financially related activities permissible for bank 
holding companies, as defined under Gramm-Leach. Gramm-Leach also prohibits non-financial 
companies from acquiring grandfathered unitary savings and loan association holding companies. 

The HOLA prohibits a savings and loan association holding company (directly or indirectly, or through 
one or more subsidiaries) from acquiring another savings association or holding company thereof 
without prior written approval of the OTS; acquiring or retaining, with certain exceptions, more than 
5% of a non-subsidiary savings association, a non-subsidiary holding company, or a non-subsidiary 
company engaged in activities other than those permitted by the HOLA; or acquiring or retaining 
control of a depository institution that is not federally insured. In evaluating applications by holding 
companies to acquire savings associations, the OTS must consider the financial and managerial 
resources and future prospects of the company and institution involved, the effect of the acquisition on 
the risk to the insurance funds, the convenience and needs of the community and competitive factors. 

Federal Securities Laws 

We are subject to the periodic reporting, proxy solicitation, tender offer, insider trading restrictions and 
other requirements under the Exchange Act. 

Delaware Corporation Law 

We are incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware. Thus, we are subject to regulation by the 
State of Delaware and the rights of our shareholders are governed by the Delaware General Corporation 
Law. 



Federal Taxation 

General 

We report our income on a calendar year basis using the accrual method of accounting and are subject 
to federal income taxation in the same manner as other corporations. 

Corporate Alternative Minimum Tax 

In addition to the regular income tax, corporations (including savings and loan associations) generally 
are subject to an alternative minimum tax, or AMT, in an amount equal to 20% of alternative minimum 
taxable income to the extent the AMT exceeds the corporation's regular tax. The AMT is available as a 
credit against future regular income tax. We do not expect to be subject to the AMT. 

Tax Bad Debt Reserves 

Effective 1996, federal tax legislation modified the methods by which a thrift computes its bad debt 
deduction. As a result, Astoria Federal is required to claim a deduction equal to its actual loss 
experience, and the "reserve method" is no longer available. Any cumulative reserve additions (i.e., 
bad debt deductions) in excess of actual loss experience for tax years 1988 through 1995 were 
recaptured over a six year period. Generally, reserve balances as of December 3 1, 1987 will only be 
subject to recapture upon distribution of such reserves to shareholders. For a further discussion of bad 
debt reserves, see "Distributions." 

Distributions 

To the extent that Astoria Federal makes "nondividend distributions" to shareholders, such distributions 
will be considered to result in distributions from Astoria Federal's "base year reserve," (i.e., its reserve 
as of December 3 1, 1987), to the extent thereof, and then from its supplemental reserve for losses on 
loans, and an amount based on the amount distributed will be included in Astoria Federal's taxable 
income. Nondividend distributions include distributions in excess of Astoria Federal's current and 
accumulated earnings and profits, as calculated for federal income tax purposes, distributions in 
redemption of stock and distributions in partial or complete liquidation. However, dividends paid out 
of Astoria Federal's current or accumulated earnings and profits will not constitute nondividend 
distributions and, therefore, will not be included in Astoria Federal's taxable income. 

The amount of additional taxable income created from a nondividend distribution is an amount that, 
when reduced by the tax attributable to the income, is equal to the amount of the distribution. Thus, 
approximately one and one-half times the nondividend distribution would be includable in gross income 
for federal income tax purposes, assuming a 35% federal corporate income tax rate. 

Dividends Received Deduction and Other Matters 

We may exclude from our income 100% of dividends received from Astoria Federal as a member of the 
same affiliated group of corporations. The corporate dividends received deduction is generally 70% in 
the case of dividends received from unaffiliated corporations with which we will not file a consolidated 
tax return, except that if we own more than 20% of the stock of a corporation distributing a dividend, 
80% of any dividends received may be deducted. 

State and Local Taxation 

New York State Taxation 

New York State imposes an annual franchise tax on banking corporations, based on net income 
ailocable to New York State, at a rate of 7.5%. If, however, the application of an alternative minimum 
tax (based on taxable assets allocated to New York, "alternative" net income, or a flat minimum fee) 



results in a greater tax, an alternative minimum tax will be imposed. In addition, New York State 
imposes a tax surcharge of 17.0% of the New York State Franchise Tax, calculated using an annual 
franchise tax rate of 9.0% (which represents the 2000 annual franchise tax rate), allocable to business 
activities carried on in the Metropolitan Commuter Transportation District. These taxes apply to as, 
Astoria Federal and certain of Astoria Federal's subsidiaries. Certain other subsidiaries are subject to a 
general business corporation tax in lieu of the tax on banking corporations or are subject to taxes of 
other jurisdictions. The rules regarding the determination of net income allocated to New York State 
and alternative minimum taxes differ for these subsidiaries. 

Bad Debt Deduction 

New York State passed legislation that incorporated the former provisions of Internal Revenue Code, or 
IRC, Section 593 into New York State tax law. The impact of this legislation enabled Astoria Federal 
to defer the recapture of the New York State tax bad debt reserves that would have otherwise occurred 
as a result of the federal amendment to IRC 593. The legislation also enabled Astoria Federal to 
continue to utilize the reserve method for computing its bad debt deduction. Astoria Federal must meet 
certain definitional tests, primarily relating to its assets and the nature of its business to be a qualifying 
thrift and would then be permitted to establish a reserve for bad debts and to make annual additions 
thereto, which additions may, within specified formula limits, be deducted in arriving at its taxable 
income. Astoria Federal wilt be a qualifying thrift if, among other requirements, at least 60% of its 
assets are assets described in Section f 4S(h)(l) of the New York State tax law, or the 60% Test. 

Astoria Federal presently satisfies the 60% Test. Although there can be no assurance that Astoria 
Federal will satisfy the 60% Test in the future, we believe that this level of qualifying assets can be 
maintained by Astoria Federal. Astoria Federal's deduction for additions to its bad debt reserve with 
respect to quafifying bans may be computed using the experience method or a percentage equal to 32% 
of Astoria Federal's taxable income, computed with certain modifications, without regard to Astoria 
Federal's actual loss experience, and reduced by the amount of any addition permitted to the reserve for 
non-quali&ing loans, or NYS Percentage of Taxable Income Method. Astoria Federal's deduction with 
respect to non-qualifying loans must be computed under the experience method which is based on its 
actuaf loss experience. 

Under the experience method, the amount of a reasonable addition, in general, equals the amount 
necessary to increase the balance of the bad debt reserve at the close of the taxable year to the greater of 
(1) the amount that bears the same ratio to loans outstanding at the close of the taxable year as the total 
net bad debts sustained during the current and five preceding taxable years bears to the sum of the loans 
oubtanding at the close of those six years, or (2) the balance of the bad debt reserve at the close ofthe 
base year (assuming that the loans outstanding have not declined since then). The "base year" for these 
purposes is the last taxable year beginning before the NYS Percentage of Taxable Income Method bad 
debt deduction was taken. Any deduction for the addition to the reserve for non-qualifying loans 
reduces the addition to the reserve for qualifying real property loans calculated under the NYS 
Percentage of TaxabIe Income Method. Each year Astoria Federal reviews the most favorable way to 
calculate the deduction attributable to an addition to the bad debt reserve. 

The amount of the addition to the reserve for losses on qualifying real property loans under the NYS 
Percentage of Taxable Income Method cannot exceed the amount necessary to increase the balance of 
the reserve for losses on qualifying real property loans at the close of the taxable year to 6% of the 
balance of the qualifying real property loans outstanding at the end of the taxable year. Also, if the 
qualifying thrift uses the NYS Percentage of Taxabfe Income Method, then the qualifying thrift's 
aggregate addition to its reserve for losses on qualifying real property loans cannot, when added to the 
addition to the reserve for losses on non-qualifying loans, exceed the amount by which 12% of the 
amount that the total deposits or withdrawable accounts of depositors of the qualifying thrift at the close 
of the taxable year exceeded the sum of the qualifying thrift's surphs, undivided profits and reserves at 
the beginning of such year. 



New York City Taxation 

Astoria Federal is also subject to the New York City Financial Corporation Tax calculated, subject to a 
New York City income and expense allocation, on a similar basis as the New York State Franchise Tax. 
New York City has enacted legislation regarding the use and treatment of tax bad debt reserves that is 
substantially similar to the New York State legislation described above. A significant portion of 
Astoria Federal's entire net income for New York City purposes is allocated outside the jurisdiction 
which has the effect of significantly reducing the New York City taxable income of Astoria Federal. 

Delaware Taxation 

As a Delaware holding company not earning income in Delaware, we are exempt from Delaware 
corporate income tax but are required to file an annual report with and pay an annual franchise tax to 
the State of Delaware. 

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS 

The following is a summary of risk factors relevant to our operations which should be carefully 
reviewed. These risk factors do not necessarily appear in the order of importance. 

Changes in interest rates may reduce our net income. 

Our earnings depend largely on the relationship between the yield on our interest-earning assets, 
primarily our mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities, and the cost of our deposits and 
borrowings. This relationship, known as the interest rate spread, is subject to fluctuation and is affected 
by economic and competitive factors which influence market interest rates, the volume and mix of 
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, and the level of non-performing assets. 
Fluctuations in market interest rates affect customer demand for our products and services. We are 
subject to interest rate risk to the degree that our interest-bearing liabilities reprice or mature more 
slowly or more rapidly or on a different basis than our interest-earning assets. 

In addition, the actual amount of time before mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities are repaid 
can be significantly impacted by changes in mortgage prepayment rates and market interest rates. 
Mortgage prepayment rates will vary due to a number of factors, including the regional economy in the 
area where the underlying mortgages were originated, seasonal factors, demographic variables and the 
assumability of the underlying mortgages. However, the major factors affecting prepayment rates are 
prevailing interest rates, related mortgage refinancing opportunities and competition. 

Some of our borrowings contain features that would allow them to be called prior to their contractual 
maturity. This would generally occur during periods of rising interest rates. If this were to occur, we 
would need to either renew the borrowings at a potentially higher rate of interest, which would 
negatively impact our net interest income, or repay such borrowings. If we sell securities to fund the 
repayment of such borrowings, any decline in estimated market value with respect to the securities sold 
would be realized and could result in a loss upon such sale. 

During 2005, the Federal Open Market Committee, or FOMC, raised the federal funds rate eight times 
(a total of 200 basis points). As a result, U.S. Treasury yields at December 3 1 ,  2005 have increased 
from December 3 1 ,  2004, with the exception of the thirty year US. Treasury yield, which has 
decreased. Although U.S. Treasury yields have risen, yields on the longer end of the U.S. Treasury 
yield curve have not risen to the same degree as shorter term yields. This has resulted in a significant 
flattening of the US. Treasury yield curve, which began in the latter half of 2004 and continued during 
2005. Our short-term borrowings, as well as our deposits, are generally priced relative to short-term 
US. Treasury yields whereas our mortgage loans and mortgage-backed securities are generally priced 
relative to medium-term (two to five years) U.S. Treasury yields. The flattening of the yield curve 
reduces the spread between the yield on our interest-earning assets and the cost of our deposits and 
borrowings, thereby reducing our net income. 



Interest rates do and will continue to fluctuate, and we cannot predict future Federal Reserve Board 
actions or other factors that will cause rates to change. 

Changes in interest rates may reduce our stockholders' equig. 

At December 31, 2005, $1.84 billion of our securities were classified as available-for-sale. The 
estimated fair value of our available-for-sale securities portfolio may increase or decrease depending on 
changes in interest rates. In general, as interest rates rise, the estimated fair value of our fixed rate 
securities portfolio will decrease. Our securities portfolio is comprised primarily of fixed rate 
securities. We increase or decrease stockholders' equity by the amount of the change in estimated fair 
value of our available-for-sale securities portfolio, net of the related tax benefit, under the category of 
accumulated other comprehensive income/loss. Therefore, a decline in the estimated fair value of this 
portfolio will result in a decline in reported stockholders' equity, as well as book value per common 
share and tangible book value per common share. This decrease will occur even though the securities 
are not sold. If these securities are never sold, the decrease will be recovered over the life of the 
securities. 

Our results of operations are affected 6y economic conditions in the New York metropolitan area. 

Our retail banking and a significant portion of our lending business (41.6% of our mortgage loan 
portfolio at December 31, 2005) are concentrated in the New York metropolitan area. As a result of 
this geographic concentration, our results of operations largely depend upon economic conditions in this 
area. Decreases in real estate values could adversely affect the value of property used as collateral for 
our loans. Adverse changes in the economy caused by inflation, recession, unemployment or other 
factors beyond our control may also have a negative effect on the ability of our borrowers to make 
timely loan payments, which would have an adverse impact on our earnings. Consequently, a 
deterioration in economic conditions in the New York metropolitan area could have a material adverse 
impact on the quality of our loan portfolio, which could result in an increase in delinquencies, causing a 
decrease in our interest income as well as an adverse impact on our loan loss experience, causing an 
increase in our allowance for loan losses. Such a deterioration also could adversely impact the demand 
for our products and services, and, accordingly, on our results of operations. 

Strong competilion within our market areas could hurt ourpro$ts and slow growth. 

The New York metropolitan area has a high density of financial institutions, a number of which are 
significantly larger and have greater financial resources than we have. Additionally over the past 
several years, various large out-of-state financial institutions have entered the New York metropolitan 
area market. All are our competitors to varying degrees. 

We face intense competition both in making loans and attracting deposits. Our competition for loans, 
both locally and in the aggregate, comes principally from mortgage banking companies, commercial 
banks, savings banks and savings and loan associations. Our most direct competition for deposits 
comes from commercial banks, savings banks, savings and loan associations and credit unions. We 
also face competition for deposits from money market mutual funds and other corporate and 
government securities funds as well as from other financial intermediaries such as brokerage firms and 
insurance companies. Price conipetition for loans and deposits might result in us earning less on our 
loans and paying more on our deposits, which would reduce our net interest income. Competition also 
makes it more difficult to grow our loan and deposit balances. Our profitability depends upon our 
continued ability to compete successfully in our market areas. 

Our increased empftasis on multi-family and commercial real estate lending may expose us to 
increased lending risks. 

At December 3 1,2005, $3.90 billion, or 27.3%, of our total loan portfolio consisted of multi-family and 
commercial real estate loans. While we continue to primarily be a one-to-four family mortgage lender, 
over the past several years we have increased our emphasis on multi-family and commercial real estate 



loan originations and intend to continue to emphasize this type of lending. Multi-family and 
commercial real estate loans generally involve a greater degree of credit risk than one-to-four family 
loans because they typically have larger balances and are more affected by adverse conditions in the 
economy. Because payments on loans secured by multi-family properties and commercial real estate 
often depend upon the successful operation and management of the properties and the businesses which 
operate from within them, repayment of such loans may be affected by factors outside the borrower's 
control, such as adverse conditions in the real estate market or the economy or changes in government 
regulation. 

As a result of our efforts to continue to grow the multi-family and commercial real estate loan 
portfolios, we have increased our emphasis on originations of multi-family and commercial real estate 
loans in states other than New York. Originations in states other than New York represented 34.6% of 
our total originations of multi-family and commercial real estate loans in 2005, of which 85.9% were 
originated in New Jersey, Connecticut and Florida. We could be subject to additional risks with respect 
to multi-family and commercial real estate lending in states other than New York as we have less 
experience in these areas with this type of lending and less direct oversight of the borrowers. 

Astoria Federal's ability to pay dividends or lend funds to us is subject to regulatory limitations 
which, to the extent we need but are mt able to access such fundr, may prevent us from makirtg 
future dividend payments or principal and interest payments due on our debt obligations. 

We are a unitary savings and loan association holding company regulated by the OTS and almost all of 
our operating assets are owned by Astoria Federal. We rely primarily on dividends from Astoria 
Federal to pay cash dividends to our stockholders, to engage in share repurchase programs and to pay 
principal and interest on our debt obligations. The OTS regulates all capital distributions by Astoria 
Federal directly or indirectly to us, including dividend payments. As the subsidiary of a savings and 
loan association holding company, Astoria Federal must file a notice with the OTS at least 30 days prior 
to each capital distribution. However, if the total amount of all capital distributions (including each 
proposed capital distribution) for the applicable calendar year exceeds net income for that year to date 
plus the retained net income for the preceding two years, then Astoria Federal must file an application 
to receive the approval of the OTS for a proposed capital distribution. 

In addition, Astoria Federal may not pay dividends to us if, after paying those dividends, it would fail to 
meet the required minimum levels under risk-based capital guidelines and the minimum leverage and 
tangible capital ratio requirements or the OTS notified Astoria Federal that it was in need of more than 
normal supervision. Under the prompt corrective action provisions of the FDIA, an insured depository 
institution such as Astoria Federal is prohibited from making a capital distribution, including the 
payment of dividends, if, after making such distribution, the institution would become 
"undercapitalized" (as such term is used in the FDIA). Based on Astoria Federal's current financial 
condition, we do not expect that this provision will have any impact on our ability to obtain dividends 
from Astoria Federal. Payment of dividends by Astoria Federal also may be restricted at any time at the 
discretion of the appropriate regulator if it deems the payment to constitute an unsafe or unsound 
banking practice. 

There can be no assurance that Astoria Federal will be able to pay dividends at past levels, or at all, in 
the future. 

In addition to regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends, Astoria Federal is subject to certain 
restrictions imposed by federal law on any extensions of credit it makes to its affiliates and on 
investments in stock or other securities of its affiliates. We are considered an affiliate of Astoria 
Federal. These restrictions prevent affiliates of Astoria Federal, including us, from borrowing from 
Astoria Federal, unless various types of collateral secure the loans. Federal law limits the aggregate 
amount of loans to and investments in any single affiliate to 10% of Astoria Federal's capital stock and 
surplus and also limits the aggregate amount of loans to and investments in all affiliates to 20% of 
Astoria Federal's capital stock and surplus. 



If we do not receive sufficient cash dividends or borrowings from Astoria Federal, then we may not 
have sufficient funds to pay dividends, repurchase our common stock or service our debt obligations. 

We operate in a higltly regulated industv, which limits the manner and scope of our bminess 
activities. 

We are subject to extensive supervision, regulation and examination by the OTS and by the FDIC. As a 
result, we are limited in the manner in which we conduct our business, undertake new investments and 
activities and obtain financing. This regulatory structure is designed primarily for the protection of the 
deposit insurance funds and our depositors, and not to benefit our stockholders. This regulatory 
structure also gives the regulatory authorities extensive discretion in connection with their supervisory 
and enforcement activities and examination policies, including policies with respect to capital levels, 
the timing and amount of dividend payments, the classification of assets and the establishment of 
adequate loan loss reserves for regulatory purposes. In addition, we must comply with significant anti- 
money laundering and anti-terrorism laws. Government agencies have substantial discretion to impose 
significant monetary penalties on institutions which fail to comply with these laws. 

Changes in laws, government regulation and monetary policy may have a material eSfect on our 
restclts of operations. 

Financial institution regulation has been the subject of significant legislation and may be the subject of 
further significant legislation in the future, none of which is in our control. Significant new laws or 
changes in, or repeals of, existing laws, including with respect to federal and state taxation, may cause 
our results of operations to differ materially. In addition, cost of compliance could adversely affect our 
ability to operate profitably. Further, federal monetary policy significantly affects credit conditions for 
Astoria Federal, particularly as implemented through the Federal Reserve System, primarily through 
open market operations in U.S. government securities, the discount rate for bank borrowings and 
reserve requirements. A material change in any of these condit.ions would have a material impact on 
Astoria Federal, and therefore on our results of operations. 

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS 

None. 

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 

We operate 86 full-service banking offices, of which 50 are owned and 36 are leased. We own our 
principal executive office and the office for our mortgage operations, both located in Lake Success, 
New York. We also Iease office facilities for our wholly-owned subsidiaries Fidata in Norwalk, 
Connecticut, and Suffco in Farrningdale, New York. We believe such facilities are suitable and 
adequate for our operational needs. 

We are obligated under a lease commitment through 2017 for our previous mortgage operating facility 
in Mineola, New York which we no longer occupy. At December 31, 2005 this facility was fully 
sublet. 

For further information regarding our lease obligations, see Item 7, "MD&A" and Note 11 of Notes to 
Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data." 

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

In the ordinary course of our business, we are routinely made defendant in or a party to a number of 
pending or threatened legal actions or proceedings which, in some cases, seek substantial monetary 
damages from or other forms of relief against us. In our opinion, after consultation with legal counsel, 
we believe it unlikely that such actions or proceedings will have a material adverse effect on our 
financial condition, results of operations or liquidity. 



We are a party to two actions pending in the U.S. Court of Federal Claims against the United States, 
involving assisted acquisitions made in the early 1980's and supervisory goodwitl accounting utilized in 
connection therewith, or goodwill litigation, which could result in a gain. 

The trial in one of the actions, which is entitled The Long Island Savings Bank, FSB et a f  vs. The United 
States, or the LISB goodwill litigation, commenced on January 18,2005 and conciuded on July 7,2005. 
We asked the court to award damages totaling $594.0 million from the US. government for breach of 
contract in connection with a f 983 Assistance Agreement between the Long Island Savings Bank, FSB, 
which was acquired by us in 1998, and the Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation. The 
Court rendered a decision on September 15,2005 awarding us $435.8 million in damages from the US. 
govemment in this action. On December 14, 2005, the United States filed a notice of appeai. No 
assurance can be given as to the timing, content or ultimate outcome of any such appeal. No portion of 
the $435.8 million award has been recognized in our consolidated financial statements, Legal expense 
has been recognized as it was incurred. 

The other action, entitled Astoria Federal S a v i w  and Loan Association vs. United States, has not yet 
been scheduled for trial. The Court is currently considering a summary judgment motion filed by the 
U.S. govemment. 

The ultimate outcomes of the two actions pending against the United States and the timing of such 
outcomes are uncertain and there can be no assurance that we will benefit financialIy from such 
litigation. 

On or about February 24, 2005, the Attorney General of the State of New York, or the Attorney 
General, served on Astoria FederaI a subpoena duces tecum, or the Subpoena, seeking documents and 
information concerning, among other things, our contractual relationship with Independent Financial 
Marketing Group, Inc., or IFMG, IFMG Securities, Inc. and IFS Agencies, Inc., and the marketing and 
sale of Alternative Investment Products (i.e., financial products that are not bank instruments insured by 
the FDIC). On several occasions thereafter in 2005, and again in January 2006, the Attorney General 
supplemented the Subpoena with requests for additional documents and information. 

Our arrangements with IFMG impose on IFMG compliance, disclosure and oversight-related 
obligations in connection with their sale of Alternative Investment Products to our customers at our 
branch locations. In this regard, we believe we are in full compliance with the Interagency Statement 
on Retail Sales of Nondeposit Investment Products issued by the federal bank regulatory authorities and 
Part 536 of the OTS Regulations regarding Consumer Protection in the Safe of Insurance. 

We are cooperating with the Attorney General's inquiry. No charges of wrongdoillg on our part in 
connection with the sale of Alternative Investment Products have been filed by the Attorney General 
against us. Given the current status of the inquiry, no assurance can be given as to when the inquiry 
may be concluded, the ultimate result of the inquiry or any potential impact on our financial condition 
or results of operations. 

ITEM 4. SUBIknSSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 

No matter was submitted during the quarter ended December 3 1,2005 to a vote of our security holders 
through the solicitation of proxies or otherwise. 



PART I1 

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR ASTORIA FINANCIAL CORPORATION'S COMMON EQUITY, 
RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY 
SECUFUTIES 

Our common stock trades on the New York Stock Exchange, or NYSE, under the symbol "AF." The 
table below shows the high and low sale prices reported on the NYSE for our common stock during the 
periods indicated. 

2005 2004 
H i ~ h  Low H i ~ h  Low 

First Quarter $27.20 $24.30 $28.37 $23.63 
Second Quarter 28.85 23.80 25.73 22.17 
Third Quarter 30.20 25.70 24.82 22.2 1 
Fourth Quarter 30.35 24.43 27.81 23.15 

As of February 15, 2006, we had approximately 3,700 shareholders of record. As of December 3 1, 
2005, there were 104,967,280 shares of common stock outstanding. 

The following schedule summarizes the cash dividends paid per common share for 2005 and 2004. 

2005 2004 
First Quarter $0.20 $0.16 
Second Quarter 0.20 0.17 
Third Quarter 0.20 0.17 
Fourth Quarter 0.20 0.17 

In addition to cash dividends, on March 1 ,  2005, stockholders received one additional share of our 
common stock for every two shares owned pursuant to a three-for-two common stock split declared on 
January 19,2005 by our Board of Directors. 

On January 25, 2006, our Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.24 per common 
share, payable on March 1, 2006, to common stockholders of record as of the close of business on 
February 15, 2006. Our Board of Directors intends to review the payment of dividends quarterly and 
plans to continue to maintain a regular quarterly dividend in the future, dependent upon our earnings, 
financial condition and other factors. 

We are subject to the laws of the State of Delaware which generally limit dividends to an amount equal 
to the excess of our net assets (the amount by which total assets exceed total liabilities) over our 
statutory capital, or if there is no such excess, to our net profits for the current andlor immediately 
preceding fiscal year. We are also subject to certain financial covenants and other limitations pursuant 
to the terms of various debt instruments that have been issued by us, which could have an impact on our 
ability to pay dividends in certain circumstances. See Item 7, "MD&A - Liquidity and Capital 
Resources" for further discussion of such financial covenants and other limitations. Our payment of 
dividends is dependent, in large part, upon receipt of dividends from Astoria Federal. Astoria Federal is 
subject to certain restrictions which may limit its ability to pay us dividends. See Item 1, "Business - 
Regulation and Supervision" and Note 9 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, 
"Financial Statements and Supplementary Data" for an explanation of the impact of regulatory capital 
requirements on Astoria Federal's ability to pay dividends. See Item I,  "Business - Federal Taxation" 
and Note 12 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, "Financial Statements and 
Supplementary Data" for an explanation of the tax impact of the unlikely event that Astoria Federal ( 1 )  
makes distributions in excess of current and accumulated earnings and profits, as calculated for federal 
income tax purposes; (2) redeems its stock; or (3) liquidates. 



The following table sets forth the repurchases of our common stock by month during the three months 
ended December 3 1,2005. 

Total Number Maximum 
Total of Shares Number of Shares 

Number of Average Purchased as Part that May Yet Be 
Shares Price Paid of Publicly Purchased Under the 

Period Purchased ~ e r  Share Announced Plans Plans (1) 
October 1,2005 through 

October 3 1,2005 570,000 $26.68 570,000 2,192,300 
November 1,2005 through 

November 30,2005 1,120,000 $28.53 1,120,000 1,072,300 
December 1,2005 through 

December 3 1,2005 8 10,000 $29.32 8 10.000 262,300 
Total 2.500.000 $28.37 2.500.000 

(1) Excludes 10,000,000 shares that may yet be purchased under the eleventh stock repurchase plan, approved by 
our Board of Directors on December 21,2005, which commenced immediately following the completion of the 
tenth stock repurchase plan on January 10,2006. 

All of the shares repurchased during the three months ended December 3 1,2005 were repurchased under 
our tenth stock repurchase plan, approved by our Board of Directors on May 19, 2004, which authorized 
the purchase, at management's discretion, of 12,000,000 shares, or approximately 10% of our common 
stock then outstanding, over a two year period in open-market or privately negotiated transactions. 

On June 10,2005, our Chief Executive Officer, George L. Engelke, Jr., submitted his annual certification 
to the NYSE indicating that he was not aware of any violation by Astoria Financial Corporation of NYSE 
corporate governance listing standards as of the June 10,2005 certification date. 



ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

Set forth below are our selected consolidated fmancial and other data. This financial data is derived in part from, and 
should be read in conjunction with, our consolidated financial statements and related notes. 

(In Tholcsmds) 
Selected Financial Data: 
Total assets 
Federal funds sold and repurchase agreements 
Securities available-for-sale 
Securities held-to-matunity 
Loans receivable, net 
Deposits 
Borrowings, net 
Stockholders' equity 

At December 31, 
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 

For the Year Ended December 31, 
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 
Selected Operating Data: 
Interest income $ 1,082,987 $ 1,045,901 $ 1,057,291 $ 1,266,262 $ 1,438,563 
Interest expense 604,207 575,335 677,753 801,838 98 1,605 
Net interest income 478,780 470,566 379,538 464,424 456,958 
Provision for loan losses 2,307 4,028 
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 478,780 470,566 379,538 462,117 452,930 
Non-interest income 102,199 80,084 1 19,561 107,407 90,105 
Non-interest expense: 

General and administrative 228,734 225,011 205,877 195,827 178,767 
Extinguishment of debt 2,202 
Amortization of goodwill 19,078 

Total non-interest expense 228,734 225,O f 1 205,877 198,029 197,845 
Income before income tax expense and 

cumulative effect of accounting change 352,245 325,639 293222 37 1,495 345,190 
Income tax expense 1 18,442 106,102 96,376 123,066 120,036 
Income before cumulative effect of 

accounting change 233,803 219,537 196,846 248,429 225,154 
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax (2,294) 
Net income 233,803 219,537 196,846 248,429 222,860 
Preferred dividends declared 4,500 6,000 6,000 
Net income available to common shareholders $ 233,803 $ 219,537 $ 192,346 $ 242,429 $ 216,860 
Basic eaminas per common share $ 2.30 $ 2.03 $ 1.68 $ 1.94 $ 1.60 ., . 
Diluted earnings per common share 



At o r  For the Year Ended December 31, 
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 

Selected Financial Ratios and Other Data: 

Return on average assets 
Return on average stockholders' equity 
Return on average tangible stockholders' equity (1) 

Average stockholders' equity to average assets 
Average tangible stockholders' equity 

to average tangible assets (1 X2) 
Stockholders' equity to total assets 

Net interest rate spread 
Net interest margin 
Average interest-earning assets to average 

interest-bearing liabilities 

General and administrative expense to average assets 
Eaciency ratio (3) 

Cash dividends paid per common share 
Dividend payout ratio 

Asset Quality Ratios: 

Non-performing loans to total loans (4) 
Non-performing loans to total assets (4) 
Non-performing assets to total assets (4)(5) 
Allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans (4) 
Allowance for loan losses to non-accrual loans 
Allowance for loan losses to total loans 

Other Data: 

Number of depsit  accounts 
Mortgage loans serviced for others fin thousands) 
Full service banking o&es 
Regional lending oftices 
Full time equivalent employees 

(1) Average tangible stockholders' equity represents average stockholders' equity less average goodwill. 
(2) Average tangible assets represents average assets less average goodwill. 
(3) Efficiency ratio represents general and administrative expense divided by the sum of net interest income plus non-interest income. 
(4) Non-performing loans consist of at1 non-accrual loans and all mortgage loans delinquent 90 days or more as to their maturity date 

but not their interest due and exclude loans which have been restructured and are accruing and performing in accordance with the 
restructured terms. Restructured accruing loans totaled $1.6 million, $2.8 million, $3.9 million, $5.0 million and $5.4 mill~on at 
December 31,2005,2004,2003,2002 and 2001, respectively. 

(5) Non-performing assets consist of all non-performing loans and real estate owned. 



ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION 
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial 
Statements and Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements presented elsewhere in this report. 

Executive Summary 

The following overview should be read in conjunction with our MD&A in its entirety. 

As a premier Long Island community bank, our goal is to enhance shareholder value while building a 
solid banking franchise. We focus on growing our core businesses of mortgage lending and retail 
banking while maintaining superior asset quality and controlling operating expenses. Additionally, we 
continue to provide returns to shareholders through increased dividends and our stock repurchases. We 
have been successful in achieving this goal over the past several years and that trend has continued during 
2005. 

During the year ended December 3 1,2005, the national and local real estate markets remained strong and 
continued to support new and existing home sales. The FOMC raised the federal funds rate eight times 
during 2005. As a result, U.S. Treasury yields at December 3 1, 2005 have increased from December 3 1, 
2004, with the exception of the thirty year U.S. Treasury yield, which has decreased. Although U.S. 
Treasury yields have risen, yields on the longer end of the U.S. Treasury yield curve have not risen to the 
same degree as shorter term yields. This has resulted in a significant flattening of the US. Treasury yield 
curve, which began in the latter half of 2004 and continued during 2005. In addition, changes in 
medium- and long-term yields within individual quarters have resulted in variability in cash flows and 
refinance activity during 2005. 

As a result of the U.S. Treasury yield curve environment that prevailed during 2005, we pursued a 
strategy of shrinking the balance sheet through a reduction in the securities and borrowings portfolios 
through normal cash flow, while emphasizing deposit and loan growth. 

Our total loan portfolio increased during the year ended December 3 1,2005. This increase was a result of 
the increase in our mortgage loan portfolio due to the overall reduction in repayment activity in 2005 as 
compared to 2004, coupled with continued strong loan origination volume. 

Total deposits increased during the year ended December 31, 2005. This increase was primarily 
attributable to our certificates of deposit and our new Liquid CDs as a result of the continued success of 
our marketing campaigns which have focused on attracting these types of deposits. Growth in our 
certificates of deposit and Liquid CDs contributes to the management of interest rate risk, enables us to 
reduce our borrowing levels and continues to produce new customers from our communities, creating 
relationship development opportunities. 

Our securities and borrowings portfolios decreased from December 3 1,2004, which is consistent with our 
strategy of reducing these portfolios through normal cash flow in response to the continued flattening of 
the U.S. Treasury yield curve. 

During the third quarter of 2005 we entered into a sub-servicing agreement with DM1 to outsource our 
mortgage loan servicing activities. Pursuant to this sub-servicing agreement, effective December 1,2005, 
D M  has undertaken the servicing of our mortgage loan portfolio, including our portfolio of mortgage 
loans serviced for other investors. The decision to take this action was driven by economics as we 
continue to strive to increase operating efficiency in all aspects of our operations. While our individual 
mortgage loan balances are currently larger than in prior years, the number of loans we service has 
decreased over the past several years, thereby lowering operating efficiency. In addition, we 
implemented other company-wide cost saving initiatives in an effort to improve future operating 
efficiency. Our results of operations for year ended December 3 1,2005 include $1.9 million, before tax, 



in charges related to the outsourcing of our mortgage loan servicing activities and other company-wide 
cost saving initiatives. These initiatives, which resulted in staff reductions primarily in our mortgage 
servicing, retail banking and loan origination areas, are expected to result in annual net expense savings of 
approximately $5.0 million, before tax, beginning in 2006. 

Net income for 2005 increased fiom the prior year. This increase was primarily due to increases in net 
interest income and non-interest income. The increase in net interest income is attributable to an increase 
in interest income, partially offset by an increase in interest expense. The increase in interest income was 
primarily due to the increase in the average balance of interest-earning assets, coupled with a decrease in 
net premium amortization on our mortgage-backed securities and mortgage loan portfolios. The decrease 
in net premium amortization was primarily due to the reduction in repayment levels during 2005, as well 
as the reduced amount of unamortized premium remaining in our mortgage-backed securities portfolio. 
The increase in interest expense is primarily due to an increase in interest expense on certificates of 
deposit and Liquid CDs as a result of the increases in the average balances of these deposits, partially 
offset by the decrease in interest expense on borrowings primarily resulting from the decrease in the 
average balance of borrowings. The increase in non-interest income relates primarily to the other-than- 
temporary impairment write-down on our FHLMC perpetual preferred securities in the 2004 fourth 
quarter, coupled with an increase in customer service fees, partially offset by the absence of gains on 
sales of securities in 2005. 

We expect the operating environment to remain challenging throughout 2006 as rising short-term interest 
rates and relatively stable medium- and long-term interest rates exert hrther pressure on the net interest 
margin. As a result, we expect to continue our strategy of shrinking the balance sheet through a reduction 
in the securities and borrowings portfolios through normal cash flow, while we emphasize deposit and 
loan growth, all of which should continue to improve both the quality of the balance sheet and earnings. 
Overall, these activities should result in a further reduction in the balance sheet similar to the 2005 
reduction. Additionally, we anticipate that the net interest margin will be somewhat lower in 2006 as 
compared to 2005, but should not decline below an average of 2.00% for the full year. As we continue to 
reduce the size of the balance sheet during this challenging interest rate environment, we will continue to 
focus on the repurchase of our stock as a very desirable use of capital. 

Critical Accounting Policies 

Note 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, "Financial Statements and 
Supplementary Data" contains a summary of our significant accounting policies. Various elements of our 
accounting policies, by their nature, are inherently subject to estimation techniques, valuation 
assumptions and other subjective assessments. Our policies with respect to the methodologies used to 
determine the allowance for loan losses, the valuation of MSR and judgments regarding goodwill and 
securities impairment are our most critical accounting policies because they are important to the 
presentation of our financial condition and results of operations, involve a higher degree of complexity 
and require management to make difficult and subjective judgments which often require assumptions or 
estimates about highly uncertain matters, The use of different judgments, assumptions and estimates 
could result in material differences in our results of operations or financial condition. 

The following is a description of our critical accounting policies and an explanation of the methods and 
assumptions underlying their application. These critical accounting policies and their application are 
reviewed quarterly with the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors. 

Allowance for Loan Losses 

Our allowance for loan losses is established and maintained through a provision for loan losses based on 
our evaluation of the risks inherent in our loan portfolio. We evaluate the adequacy of our allowance on a 
quarterly basis. The allowance is comprised of both specific valuation allowances and general valuation 
allowances. 

Specific valuation allowances are established in connection with individual loan reviews and the asset 
classification process including the procedures for impairment recognition under Statement of Financial 



Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 114, "Accounting by Creditors for Impairment of a Loan, an 
Amendment of FASB Statements No. 5 and 15," and SFAS No. 1 18, "Accounting by Creditors for 
Impairment of a Loan - Income Recognition and Disclosures, an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 
114." Such evaluation, which includes a review of loans on which full collectibility is not reasonably 
assured, considers the estimated fair value of the underlying collateral, if any, current and anticipated 
economic and regulatory conditions, current and historical loss experience of similar loans and other 
factors that determine risk exposure to arrive at an adequate loan loss allowance. 

Individual Ioan loss reviews are completed quarterly for all classified loans. Individual loan loss reviews 
are generally completed annually for multi-family, commercial real estate and construction loans in 
excess of $2.5 million, commercial business loans in excess of $200,000, one-to-four family loans in 
excess of $1.0 million and debt restructurings. In addition, we generally review annually at least fifty 
percent of the outstanding balances of mufti-family, commercial real estate and construction loans to 
single borrowers with concentrations in excess of $2.5 million. 

The primary considerations in establishing specific valuation allowances are the appraised value of a 
loan's undertying collateral and the loan's payment history. Other current and anticipated economic 
conditions on which our specific valuation allowances rely are the impact that national andfor local 
economic and business conditions may have on borrowers, the impact that local real estate markets may 
have on coIIateral values and the level and direction of interest rates and their combined effect on real 
estate values and the ability of borrowers to service debt. We also review all regulatory notices, bulletins 
and memoranda with the purpose of identifying upcoming changes in regulatory conditions which may 
impact our calculation of specific valuation allowances. The OTS periodically reviews our specific 
reserve methodology during regulatory examinations and any comments regarding changes to reserves are 
considered by management in determining specific valuation allowances. 

Pursuant to our policy, loan losses are charged-off in the period the loans, or portions thereof, are deemed 
uncollectible. The determination of the loans on which full collectibility is not reasonably assured, the 
estimates of the fair value of the underlying collateral and the assessments of economic and regulatory 
conditions are subject to assumptions and judgments by management. Specific valuation allowances 
could differ materially as a result of changes in these assumptions and judgments. 

General valuation allowances represent loss allowances that have been established to recognize the 
inherent risks associated with our lending activities, but which, unlike specific allowances, have not been 
allocated to particular problem loans. The determination of the adequacy of the valuation allowance takes 
into consideration a variety of factors. We segment our loan portfolio into like categories by composition 
and size and perform analyses against each category. These include historical loss experience and 
delinquency levels and trends. We analyze our historical loan loss experience by category (loan type) 
over 3, 5, 10 and 12-year periods, Losses within each Ioan category are stress tested by applying the 
highest level of charge-offs and the lowest amount of recoveries as a percentage of the average portfolio 
balance during those respective time horizons. The resulting allowance percentages are used as an 
integral part of our judgment in developing estimated loss percentages to apply to the portfolio. We also 
consider the growth in the portfolio as well as our credit administration and asset management 
philosophies and procedures. In addition, we evaluate and consider the impact that existing and projected 
economic and market conditions may have on the portfolio as well as known and inherent risks in the 
portfolio. We also evaluate and consider the allowance ratios and coverage percentages of both peer 
group and regulatory agency data; however, our focus is primarily on our historical loss experience and 
the impact of current economic conditions. After evaluating these variables, we determine appropriate 
allowance coverage percentages for each of our portfolio segments and the appropriate level of our 
allowance for loan losses. 

Our allowance coverage percentages are used to estimate the amount of probable losses inherent in our 
Ioan portfolio in determining our general valuation allowances. Our evaluations of general valuation 
allowances are inherently subjective because, even though they are based on objective data, it is 
management's interpretation of that data that determines the amount of the appropriate allowance. 
Therefore, we annually review the actual performance and charge-off history of our portfolio and 
compare that to our previously determined alfowance coverage percentages and specific valuation 



allowances. In doing so, we evaluate the impact the previously mentioned variables may have had on the 
portfolio to determine which changes, if any, should be made to our assumptions and analyses. 

Our loss experience in 2005 has been consistent with our experience over the past several years. Our 
2005 analyses did not result in any change in our methodology for determining our general and specific 
valuation allowances or our emphasis on the factors that we consider in establishing such allowances. 
Accordingly, such analyses did not indicate that changes in our allowance coverage percentages were 
required. We believe our current allowance for loan losses is adequate to reflect the risks inherent in our 
loan portfolio. 

Actual results could differ from our estimates as a result of changes in economic or market conditions. 
Changes in estimates could result in a material change in the allowance for loan losses. While we befieve 
that the allowance for loan losses has been established and maintained at levels that reflect the risks 
inherent in our loan portfolio, future adjustments may be necessary if economic or market conditions 
differ substantially from the conditions that existed at the time of the initial determinations. 

For additional information regarding our aHowance for Ioan losses, see "Provision for b a n  Losses" and 
"Asset Quality." 

Valuation of MSR 

The cost of MSR is amortized over the estimated remaining lives of the loans serviced. MSR are carried 
at amortized cost less impairment, if any, which is recognized through a valuation allowance through 
charges to earnings. The initial recognition of originated MSR is based upon an allocation of the total 
cost of the related loans between the loans and the servicing rights based on their relative estimated fair 
values. The fair value of MSR is estimated by reference to quoted market prices of similar loans sold 
servicing released. Impairment exists if the carrying value of MSR exceeds the estimated fair value. We 
stratify our MSR by underlying loan type, primarily fixed and adjustable, and further stratify the fixed 
rate loans by interest rate. Individual impairment allowances for each stratum are established when 
necessary and then adjusted in subsequent periods to reflect changes in impairment. The estimated fair 
values of each MSR stratum are obtained through independent third party valuations through an analysis 
of future cash flows, incorporating numerous market based assumptions including market discount rates, 
prepayment speeds, servicing income, servicing costs, default rates and other market driven data, 
including the market's perception of future interest rate movements. All assumptions are reviewed for 
reasonableness on a quarterly basis to ensure they reflect current and anticipated market conditions. 

At December 3 1,2005, our MSR, net, had an estimated fair value of $1 6.5 million and were valued based 
on expected future cash flows considering a weighted average discount rate of 9.07%, a weighted average 
constant prepayment rate on mortgages of 15.84% and a weighted average life of 4.7 years. At December 
3 1, 2004, our MSR, net, had an estimated fair value of $16.8 million and were valued based on expected 
future cash flows considering a weighted average discount rate of 9.10%, a weighted average constant 
prepayment rate on mortgages of 15.33% and a weighted average life of 4.8 years. 

The fair value of MSR is highly sensitive to changes in assumptions. Changes in prepayment speed 
assumptions have the most significant impact on the fair value of our MSR. Generally, as interest rates 
decline, mortgage Ioan prepayments accelerate due to increased refinance activity, which results in a 
decrease in the fair value of MSR. As interest rates rise, mortgage loan prepayments slow down, which 
results in an increase in the fair value of MSR. Thus, any measurement of the fair value of our MSR is 
limited by the conditions existing and the assumptions utilized as of a particular point in time, and those 
assumptions may not be appropriate if they are applied at a different point in time. Assuming an increase 
in interest rates of 100 basis points at December 31, 2005, the estimated fair value of our MSR would 
have been $3.9 million greater. Assuming a decrease in interest rates of 100 basis points at December 3 1, 
2005, the estimated fair value of our MSR would have been $6.4 million lower. 



Goodwill Impairment 

Goodwill is presumed to have an indefinite useful life and is tested, at least annually, for impairment at 
the reporting unit Level. Impairment exists when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair 
value. For purposes of our goodwill impairment testing, we have identified a single reporting unit. We 
use the quoted market price of our common stock on our impairment testing date as the basis for 
determining the fair value of our reporting unit. If the fair value of our reporting unit exceeds its carrying 
amount, further evaluation is not necessary. However, if the fair value of our reporting unit is less than its 
carrying amount, further evaluation is required to compare the implied fair value of the reporting unit's 
goodwill to its carrying amount to determine if a write-down of goodwill is required. 

On September 30,2005, we pe&ormed our annual goodwill impairment test. We determined the fair value 
of our reporting unit to be in excess of its carrying amount by $1.44 billion. Accordingly, as of our 
annual impairment test date, there was no indication of goodwill impairment. We would test our goodwill 
for impairment between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances change that would more likely 
than not reduce the fair value of our reporting unit below its carrying amount. No events have occurred 
and no circumstances have changed since our annual impairment test date that would more likely than not 
reduce the fair value of our reporting unit below its carrying amount. The identification of additional 
reporting units or the use of other valuation techniques could result in materially different evaluations of 
impairment. 

Securities Impairment 

Our available-for-sale securities portfolio is carried at estimated fair value, with any unrealized gains and 
losses, net of taxes, reported as accumulated other comprehensive income/loss in stockholders' equity. 
Debt securities which we have the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classifted as held-to- 
maturity and are carried at amortized cost. The fair values of our securities, which are primarily fixed rate 
mortgage-backed securities at December 3 1, 2005, are based on published or securities dealers' market 
values and are affected by changes in interest rates. In general, as interest rates rise, the fair value of 
fixed rate securities will decrease; as interest rates fall, the fair value of fixed rate securities will increase. 
We conduct a periodic review and evaluation of the securities pordblio to detennine if the decline in the 
fair value of any security below its cost basis is other-than-temporary. We generally view changes in fair 
value caused by changes in interest rates as temporary, which is consistent with our experience. If we 
deem such decline to be other-than-temporary, the security is written down to a new cost basis and the 
resulting loss is charged to earnings as a component of non-interest income. At December 3 1, 2005, we 
had 228 securities with an estimated fair value totaling $6.33 billion which had an unrealized loss totaling 
$190.0 miliion. Of the securities in an unrealized loss position at December 31,2005, $3.37 billion, with 
an unrealized loss of $142.6 million, have been in a continuous unrealized loss position for more than 
twelve months. At December 3 1, 2005, the impairments are deemed temporary based on the direct 
relationship of the decline in fair value to movements in interest rates, the estimated remaining life and 
high credit quality of the investments and our ability and intent to hold these investments until there is a 
h11 recovery of the unrealized loss, which may be maturity. There were no other-than-temporary 
impairment write-downs during the year ended December 3 1,2005. 

During the 2004 fourth quarter, we recorded a $16.5 million other-than-temporary impairment write- 
down charge on $120.0 million face value of perpetual preferred stock issued by FHLMC which is 
included as a component of non-interest income in our 2004 results of operations. The FHLMC perpetual 
preferred securities are investment grade securities, rated AA- by Standard & Poor's and Aa3 by Moody's 
Investors Service, held in our available-for-sate securities portfolio. The decision to recognize the other- 
than-temporary impairment charge was based on a conservative interpretation of accounting literature. 
Similar to debt securities, changes in the estimated fair value of these FWLMC perpetual preferred 
securities are primarily attributable to changes in market interest rates. However, as these securities are 
equity instruments with no stated maturity date, they cannot be evaluated in the same manner as the 
changes in the estimated fair value of debt instruments, according to authoritative literature. While we 
believed the estimated fair value of these securities would have increased back to their amortized cost in 
the future, we could not have predicted with certainty at December 3 1, 2004 that such a recovery would 



have occurred in the near term, particularly since a recovery would have been predicated on a decline in 
market interest rates. The write-down does not change our expectation of the long-term value of these 
investment grade securities. 

In November 2005, the FASB issued Staff Position Nos. 1 15-1 and 124-1, "The Meaning of Other-Than- 
Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments," or FSP No. 115-1, which addresses 
the determination of when an investment is considered impaired, whether the impairment is other-than- 
temporary and how to measure an impairment loss. FSP No. 115-1 is effective for reporting periods 
beginning after December 15, 2005. We do not expect our application of FSP No. 115-1 to have a 
material impact on our financial condition or resuits of operations. For additional information, see 
"Impact of Accounting Standards and Interpretations" and Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial 
Statements in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data." 

Liquidity and Capital Res~urces 

Our primary source of funds is cash provided by principal and interest payments on loans and securities. 
The most significant liquidity challenge we face is the variability in cash flows as a result of mortgage 
refinance activity. As mortgage interest rates increase, customers' refinance activities tend to decelerate 
causing the cash flow from both our mortgage loan portfolio and our mortgage-backed securities portfolio 
to decrease. When mortgage rates decrease, the opposite tends to occur. Principal payments on loans and 
securities totaled $5.40 billion for the year ended December 3 1,2005 and $6.42 billion for the year ended 
December 3 I,  2004. The decrease in loan and security repayments was primarily the result of the lower 
levels of mortgage loan refinance activity we experienced in 2005 as compared to 2004. 

In addition to cash provided by principal and interest payments on loans and securities, our other sources 
of funds include cash provided by operating activities, deposits and borrowings. Net cash provided by 
operating activities totaled $27 1.6 million during the year ended December 3 1, 2005 and $277.4 million 
during the year ended December 31, 2004. Deposits increased $487.2 million during the year ended 
December 3 1 ,  2005 and $1.14 billion during the year ended December 3 1, 2004. The net increases in 
deposits for the years ended December 3 1, 2005 and 2004 reflect our continued emphasis on attracting 
customer deposits through competitive rates, extensive product offerings and quality service. As 
previously discussed, the net increase in deposits for the year ended December 3 1, 2005 is primarily 
attributable to an increase in certificates of deposit and our new Liquid CDs as a result of the success of 
our marketing campaigns which have focused on attracting these types of deposits. During the year 
ended December 3 1, 2005, $3.70 billion of certificates of deposit, with a weighted average rate of 2.71% 
and a weighted average maturity at inception of seventeen months, matured and $4.06 billion of 
certificates of deposit were issued or repriced, with a weighted average rate of 3.45% and a weighted 
average maturity at inception of thirteen months. See page 53 for further detail regarding deposit activity. 

Net borrowings decreased $1.53 billion during the year ended December 31, 2005 and decreased $162.2 
million during the year ended December 3 1, 2004. The decreases in net borrowings during the years 
ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 reflect our strategy of reducing the securities and borrowings 
portfolios through normal cash flow in response to the continued flattening of the US. Treasury yield 
curve. 

Our primary use of funds is for the origination and purchase of mortgage loans. Gross mortgage Loans 
originated and purchased during the year ended December 3 1,2005 totaled $4.32 billion, of which $3.45 
billion were originations and $874.5 million were purchases. This compares to gross mortgage loans 
originated and purchased during the year ended December 3 1,2004, totaling $4.35 billion, of which $3.19 
billion were originations and $1 .I6 billion were purchases. Total mortgage Ioans originated include 
originations of loans held-for-sale totaling $361.5 million during the year ended December 3 1, 2005 and 
$323.2 million during the year ended December 3 1,2004. Purchases of securities totaled $177.6 million 
during the year ended December 31, 2005 and $3.07 billion during the year ended December 31, 2004. 
The decrease in securities purchases during the year ended December 31, 2005 reflects the previously 
discussed strategy of reducing the securities and borrowings portfolios. 



We maintain liquidity levels to meet our operational needs in the normal course of our business. The 
levels of our liquid assets during any given period are dependent on our operating, investing and 
financing activities. Cash and due from banks and repurchase agreements, our most Liquid assets, totaled 
$352.0 million at December 31, 2005, compared to $406.4 million at December 31, 2004. Borrowings 
maturing over the next twelve months total $2.24 biHion with a weighted average rate of 3.21%. We have 
the flexibility to either repay or rollover these borrowings as they mature. In addition, we have $4.89 
billion in certificates of deposit and Liquid CDs with a weighted average rate of 3.48% maturing over the 
next twelve months. We expect to retain or replace a significant portion of such deposits based on our 
competitive pricing and historical experience. 

The following table details borrowing, certificate of deposit and Liquid CD maturities and their weighted 
average rates as of December 3 1,2005: 

Certificates of Deposit 
Borrowinm and Liquid CDs 

Weighted Weighted 
Average Average 

(D~llars in Millions) Amount Rate Amount Rate 

Contractual Maturity: 
2006 $2,244 (1) 3.21% $4,887 3.48% 
2007 1,870 (2) 3.04 1,630 4.06 
2008 2,650 (3) 5.01 920 4.12 
2009 3 00 3 .29 428 4.18 
2010 - - 186 4.29 
201 1 and thereafter 879 (4) 4.95 3 0 4.25 
Total $7.943 3.97% $8.08 1 3.73% 

( I )  Includes $820.0 million of overnight and other short-term borrowings with a weighted average rate of 
4.22%. 

(2) Includes $50.0 million of borrowings, with a weighted average rate of 5.62%, which are callable by the 
counterparty in 2006 and at various times thereafter. 

(3) Includes $2.13 billion of borrowings, with a weighted average rate of 5.27%, which are calfabie by the 
counterparty in 2006 and at various times thereafter. 

(4) Includes $500.0 million of borrowings, with a weighted average rate of 3.32%, which are callable by the 
counterparty in 2007 and at various times thereafter. 

Additional sources of liquidity at the holding company level have included issuances of securities into the 
capital markets, including private issuances of trust preferred securities through our subsidiary, Astoria 
Capital Trust I, and senior debt. Holding company debt obligations, which are included in other 
borrowings, are further described below. 

Our Junior Subordinated Debentures total $128.9 million, have an interest rate of 9.75%, mature on 
November 1,2029 and are prepayable, in whole or in part, at our option on or after November 1,2009 at 
declining premiums to November I ,  2019, after which the Junior Subordinated Debentures are prepayable 
at par value. The terms of the Junior Subordinated Debentures limit our ability to pay dividends or 
otherwise make distributions if we are in default or have elected to defer interest payments otherwise due 
under the Junior Subordinated Debentures. Such limitations do not apply, however, to dividends payable 
in our common stock, or our dividend reinvestment plan, our stock option pians or our stockholders rights 
plan. The Junior Subordinated Debentures were issued to Astoria Capital Trust I as part of the transaction 
in which Astoria Capital Trust I privately issued trust preferred securities. 

We have $60.0 million of 7.67% senior unsecured notes, which were issued in a private placement, 
mature in 2008 and require annual principai payments of $20.0 million, which began in 2004. The terms 
of these notes preclude a sale of more than 30% of our deposit liabilities and preclude us from incurring 
long-term debt, which excludes debt of Astoria Federal incurred in the ordinary course of business, 
including FHLB-NY advances, in excess of 90% of our consolidated stockholders' equity. The terms 
also require that we maintain a consolidated capita1 to assets ratio of not less than 4.0%; a non-performing 



asset ratio, net of our allowance for loan losses, of less than 3.5% of assets; and a consolidated interest 
coverage ratio of at least 3.0 to 1 .O. However, the terms of our 7.67% senior unsecured notes do not 
preclude our merger or sale of all or substantially all of our assets. As of December 3 1, 2005, we were in 
compliance with each of these covenants, and we do not anticipate these covenants will have a material 
effect on our operations. 

We have $250.0 million of 5.75% senior unsecured notes which are due in 2012 and are redeemable, in 
whole or in part, at any time at a "make-whole" redemption price, together with accrued interest to the 
redemption date. The terns of our $250.0 million 5.75% senior unsecured notes restrict our ability to 
sell, transfer or pledge as collateral the shares of Astoria Federal or any other significant subsidiary or of 
all, or substantially all, of the assets of Astoria Federal or any other significant subsidiary, other than in 
connection with a sale or transfer involving Astoria Financial Corporation. 

Our ability to continue to access the capital markets for additional financirtg at favorable terms may be 
limited by, among other things, market demand, interest rates, our capital levels, Astoria Federal's ability 
to pay dividends to Astoria Financial Corporation, our credit profile and ratings and our business model. 
For further discussion of ouy debt obligations, see Note 8 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
in Item 8, "Financial Statements and Supplementary Data." 

We also continue to receive periodic capital distributions from Astoria Federal, consistent with applicable 
laws and regulations. During 2005, Astoria Federal paid dividends to Astoria Financial Corporation 
totaling $200.0 million, amounting to 80.4% of Astoria Federal's net income for 2005. Astoria Financial 
Corporation's primary uses of funds include the payment of dividends, payment of principal and interest 
on its debt obligations and repurchases of common stock. Astoria Financial Corporation paid principal 
and interest on its debt obligations totaling $49,3 million in 2005. Our payment of dividends and 
repurchases of our common stock, which are further discussed below, totaled $262.1 million in 2005. 
Our ability to pay dividends, service our debt obligations and repurchase common stock is dependent 
primarily upon receipt of capital distributions from Astoria Federal. Since Astoria Federal is a federally 
chartered savings association, there are limits on its ability to make distributions to Astoria Financial 
Corporation. Additionally, all proposed distributions from Astoria Federal must be submitted to the OTS 
for review. For further discussion of limitations on capital distributions from Astoria Federal, see 
""Regulation and Supervision" in Item 1, "Business." 

We declared cash dividends on our common stock totaling $81.2 million during the year ended December 
3 1, 2005 and $72.0 million during the year ended December 3 1,2004. In addition to cash dividends, on 
March 1, 2005, stockholders received one additional share of our common stock for every two shares 
owned pursuant to a three-for-two common stock split declared on January 19, 2005. On January 25, 
2006, we declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.24 per share on shares of our common stock, payable 
on March 1,2006, to stockholders of record as of the close of business on February 15,2006. 

On May 19, 2004, our Board of Directors approved our tenth stock repurchase plan authorizing the 
purchase, at management's discretion, of 12,000,000 shares, or approximately 10% of our common stock 
then outstanding, over a two year period in open-market or privately negotiated transactions. During the 
year ended December 3 1,2005, we repurchased 6,582,500 shares of our common stock at an aggregate 
cost of $180.9 million. In total, as of December 31, 2005, we repurchased 11,737,700 shares of our 
common stock, at an aggregate cost of $308.6 million, under our tenth stock repurchase plan. On 
December 21,2005, our Board of Directors approved our eleventh stock repurchase plan authorizing the 
purchase, at management's discretion, of 10,000,000 shares, or approximately 10% of our common stock 
outstanding, through December 31, 2007 in open-market or privately negotiated transactions. Stock 
repurchases under our eleventh stock repurchase plan commenced immediately following the completion 
of the tenth stock repurchase plan on January 10, 2006. For further information on our common stock 
repurchases, see item 5, "Market for Astoria Financial Corporation's Common Equity, Related 
Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities." 

See "Financial Condition" for a further discussion of the changes in stockholders' equity. 



At December 3 1,2005, Astoria Federal's capital levels exceeded all of its regulatory capital requirements 
with a tangible capital ratio of 6.53%, leverage capital ratio of 6.53% and total risk-based capital ratio of 
12.53%. The minimum regulatory requirements are a tangible capital ratio of 1.50%, leverage capital 
ratio of 4.00% and total risk-based capital ratio of 8.00%. 

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obligations 

We are a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of our business in 
order to meet the financing needs of our customers and in connection with our overall interest rate risk 
management strategy. These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit, interest rate and 
liquidity risk. In accordance with GAAP, these instruments are either not recorded in the consolidated 
financial statements or are recorded in amounts that differ from the notional amounts. Such instmments 
primarily include lending commitments, lease commitments and derivative instruments as described 
befow. 

Lending commitments include commitments to originate and purchase loans and commitments to fund 
unused lines of credit. Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as 
there is no violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed 
expiration dates or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since some of the 
commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not 
necessarily represent future cash requirements. We evaluate creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis. 
Our maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the contractual amount of the instruments. 

In addition to our lending commitments, we have contractual obligations related to operating lease 
commitments. Operating lease commitments are obligations under various non-cancelable operating 
leases on buildings and land used for office space and banking purposes. 

Derivative instruments may include interest rate caps, locks and swaps which are recorded as either assets 
or liabilities in the consolidated statements of financial condition at fair value. We are exposed to credit 
risk in the event of non-performance by counterparties to derivative instruments. In the event of default 
by a counterpa*, we would be subject to an economic loss that corresponds to the cost to replace the 
agreement. We control the credit risk associated with our derivative instruments by dealing only with 
counterparties with the highest credit ratings, establishing counterparty exposure limits and monitoring 
procedures. 

Additionally, in connection with our mortgage banking activities, we have commitments to fund loans 
held-for-sale and commitments to sell loans which are considered derivative instruments. Commitments 
to sell loans totaled $42.9 million at December 31, 2005 and represent obligations to sell loans either 
servicing retained or servicing released on a mandatory delivery or best efforts basis. We enter into 
commitments to sell loans as an economic hedge against our pipeline of fixed rate loans which we 
originate primarily for sale into the secondary market. The fair values of our mortgage banking derivative 
instruments are immaterial to our financial condition and results of operations. 

The following table details our contractual obligations at December 3 1,2005. 

Pavments due bv period 
Less than One to Three to More than 

(In Thousandsi Totai One Year Three Years Five Years Five Years 
Contractual Obligations: 

Borrowings with original terms greater than three months $7,122,866 $ 1,424,000 $4,520,000 $300,000 $878,866 
Minimum rental payments due under non-cancelable 

operating leases 74,800 7,267 13,628 10,I 42 43,763 
Commitments to originate and purchase loans ( I )  497,644 497,644 
Commitments to fund unused lines of credit (21 432.528 432.528 
Total $8.127.838 $2.361.439 $4.533.628 $3 10,142 $922.629 

(I)  Commitments to originate and purchase loans include commitments to originate loans held-for-sale. 
(2) Unused lines of credit relate primarily to home equity lines of credit. 



In addition to the contractual obligations previously discussed, we have contingent liabilities related to 
assets sold with recourse and standby letters of credit. We are obligated under various recourse 
provisions associated with certain first mortgage loans we sold in the secondary market. The principal 
balance of loans sold with recourse amounted to $596.7 million at December 3 1, 2005. We estimate the 
liability for loans sold with recourse based on an analysis of our loss experience related to similar loans 
sold with recourse. The carrying amount of this liability was immaterial at December 3 1,2005. We also 
have a collateralized repurchase obligation due to the sale of certain long-term fixed rate municipal 
revenue bonds to an investment trust fund for proceeds that approximated par value. The trust fund has a 
put option that requires us to repurchase the securities for specified amounts prior to maturity under 
certain specified circumstances, as defined in the agreement. The outstanding option balance on the 
agreement totaled $23.0 million at December 3 1,2005. 

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by us to guarantee the performance of a 
customer to a third party. The guarantees generally extend for a term of up to one year and are fully 
collateralized. For each guarantee issued, if the customer defaults on a payment to the third party, we 
would have to perform under the guarantee. Outstanding standby letters of credit totaled $4.6 million at 
December 3 1,2005. 

See Note 1, Note 10 and Note I 1 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8, "Financial 
Statements and Supplementary Data," for additional information regarding our commitments, contingent 
liabilities and derivative instruments. 

Comparison of Financial Condition and Operating Results for the Years Ended December 31,2005 
and 2004 

Financial Condition 

Total assets decreased $1.04 billion to $22.38 billion at December 31, 2005, from $23.42 billion at 
December 31, 2004. The primary reason for the decrease in total assets was a decrease in securities, 
partially offset by an increase in loans receivable. 

Mortgage loans, net, increased $1.13 billion to $13.88 billion at December 31, 2005, from $12.75 billion 
at December 3 1,2004. This increase was due to increases in each of our mortgage loan portfolios. Gross 
mortgage loans originated and purchased during the year ended December 3 1,2005 totaled $4.32 billion, 
of which $3.45 billion were originations and $874.5 million were purchases. This compares to gross 
mortgage loans originated and purchased during the year ended December 3 1,2004 totaling $4.35 billion, 
of which $3.19 billion were originations and $1.16 billion were purchases. Total mortgage loans 
originated include originations of loans held-for-sale totaling $361.5 million during the year ended 
December 31, 2005 and $323.2 million during the year ended December 31, 2004. Mortgage loan 
repayments decreased to $2.82 billion for the year ended December 3 1, 2005, from $3.52 billion for the 
year ended December 3 1,2004, which reflects the lower levels of refinance activity previously discussed. 

Our mortgage loan portfolio, as well as our originations and purchases, continue to consist primarily of 
one-to-four family mortgage loans. Our one-to-four family mortgage loans increased $703.2 million to 
$9.76 billion at December 3 1,2005, from $9.05 billion at December 3 1,2004, and represented 68.2% of 
our total loan portfolio at December 31, 2005. The lower levels of loan prepayments and continued 
strength of the purchase mortgage market resulted in continued one-to-four family mortgage loan 
portfolio growth, which began in the 2004 fourth quarter. 

Our multi-family mortgage loan portfolio increased $267.9 million to $2.83 billion at December 3 1,2005, 
from $2.56 billion at December 31, 2004. Our commercial real estate loan portfolio increased $131.1 
million to $1.08 billion at December 31, 2005, from $944.9 million at December 31, 2004. These 
increases were the result of continued strong origination volume, coupled with reduced prepayment 
activity. Multi-family and commercial real estate loan originations totaled $952.9 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2005 and $1.05 billion for the year ended December 31, 2004. The average loan 
balance within our combined multi-family and commercial real estate portfolio continues to be less than 



$ I  .O million and the average loan-to-value ratio, based on current principal balance and original appraised 
value, continues to be less than 65%. 

Securities decreased $2.14 billion to $6.57 billion at December 31,2005, from $8.71 billion at December 
3 1,2004. This decrease was primarily the result of principal payments received of $2.28 billion, slightly 
offset by purchases during the 2005 first quarter totaling $177.6 million, and reflects our previously 
discussed strategy of reducing the securities and borrowings portfolios through normal cash flow in the 
current interest rate environment. Our securities portfolio is comprised primarily of fixed rate REMIC 
and CMO securities. The amortized cost of our fixed rate REMICs and CMOS totaled $6.40 billion at 
December 3 1, 2005 and had a weighted average current coupon of 4.30%, a weighted average collateral 
coupon of 5.75% and a weighted average life of 3.9 years. 

Deposits increased $487.2 million to $12.81 billion at December 31, 2005, from $12.32 billion at 
December 3 1, 2004, primarily due to increases in certificates of deposit and Liquid CDs, partially offset 
by decreases in savings and money market accounts. Certificates of deposit increased $613.1 million to 
$7.46 billion at December 31, 2005, from $6.85 billion at December 31, 2004. Our new Liquid CDs 
totaled $619.8 million at December 31, 2005. Our certificates of deposit and Liquid CDs increased 
primarily as a result of the continued success of our marketing campaigns previously discussed. We 
continue to experience intense competition for deposits. Savings accounts decreased $41 8.2 million since 
December 31, 2004 to $2.51 billion at December 31, 2005. Money market accounts decreased $316.6 
million since December 3 1,2004 to $648.7 million at December 3 1,2005. 

Total borrowings, net, decreased $1.53 billion to $7.94 billion at December 3 1,2005, from $9.47 billion 
at December 31, 2004, primarily due to decreases in reverse repurchase agreements and FHLB-NY 
advances. The net decrease in total borrowings reflects our previously discussed strategy of reducing the 
securities and borrowings portfoiios. 

Stockholders' equity decreased to $1.35 billion at December 3 1, 2005, from $1.37 billion at December 
31, 2004. The decrease in stockholders' equity was the result of common stock repurchased of $180.9 
million, dividends declared of $81.2 miffion and an increase in accumulated other comprehensive loss, net 
of tax, of $20.9 million, which was primarily due to the net decrease in the fair value of our securities 
available-for-sale. These decreases were partially offset by net income of $233.8 million, the effect of 
stock options exercised and the acceleration of vesting of stock options and related tax benefit of $20.5 
million and amortization relating to the earned portion of restricted stock and the allocation of shares held 
by the employee stock ownership plan, or ESOP, of $9.3 million. 

Results of Operations 

General 

Net income for the year ended December 31,2005 increased $14.3 miflion to $233.8 million, from $219.5 
million for the year ended December 3 1, 2004. Diluted earnings per common share increased to $2.26 
per share for the year ended December 3 1,2005, from $2.00 per share for the year ended December 3 1, 
2004. Return on average assets increased to 1.02% for the year ended December 3 1, 2005, from 0.97% 
for the year ended December 3 1, 2004. Return on average stockhotders7 equity increased to 17.06% for 
the year ended December 31, 2005, from 15.81% for the year ended December 31, 2004. Return on 
average tangible stoclolders' equity, which represents average stockholders' equity less average 
goodwill, increased to 19.72% for the year ended December 31, 2005, from 18.25% for the year ended 
December 31, 2004. The increases in the returns on average assets, average stockholders' equity and 
average tangible stockholders' equity for the year ended December 3 1,2005, compared to the year ended 
December 3 1,2004, were primarily due to the increase in net income. 

As previously discussed, our results of operations for the year ended December 3 1, 2005 include $1.9 
million, before tax ($1.3 million after tax), in charges related to the outsourcing of our mortgage loan 
servicing activities and other company-wide cost saving initiatives. 



Our results of operations for the year ended December 3 I ,  2004 include a $16.5 million, before tax ($9.6 
milfion after tax), other-than-temporary impairment write-down charge on $120.0 million face value of 
perpetual preferred stock issued by FHLMC. This charge reduced diluted earnings per common share by 
$0.09 per share for the year ended December 3 1,2004. This charge also reduced our return on average 
assets by 4 basis points, return on average stockholders' equity by 69 basis points, and return on average 
tangible stockholders' equity by 79 basis points for the year ended December 31, 2004. For a further 
discussion of the other-than-temporary impairment write-down, see "Critical Accounting Policies - 
Securities Impairment." 

Net Interest Income 

Net interest income represents the difference between income on interest-earning assets and expense on 
interest-bearing liabilities. Net interest income depends primarily upon the volume of interest-earning 
assets and interest-bearing liabilities and the corresponding interest rates earned or paid. Our net interest 
income is significantly impacted by changes in interest rates and market yield curves and their related 
impact on cash flows. See Item 7A, "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk," for 
further discussion of the potential impact of changes in interest rates on our results of operations. 

For the year ended December 3 1,2005, net interest income increased $8.2 million to $478.8 million, from 
$470.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase in net interest income for the year 
ended December 3 1, 2005 was the result of an increase in interest income, partially offset by an increase 
in interest expense. The increase in interest income was primarily due to an increase in the average 
balance of mortgage loans, coupled with a decrease in net premium amortization on our mortgage-backed 
securities and mortgage loan portfolios. Net premium amortization on our mortgage-backed securities 
and mortgage loan portfolios decreased $14.9 million to $17.1 million for the year ended December 31, 
2005, from $32.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The decrease in net premium 
amortization was primarily due to the lower repayment levels during 2005 as compared to 2004, as well 
as the reduced amount of unamortized premium remaining in our mortgage-backed securities portfolio. 
The increase in interest expense was primarily due to increases in the average balances of our certificates 
of deposit and our new Liquid CDs, partially offset by the decrease in the average balance of borrowings. 

The net interest margin increased to 2.19% for the year ended December 3 1, 2005, from 2.17% for the 
year ended December 31, 2004. The net interest rate spread increased to 2.1 1% for the year ended 
December 3 I ,  2005, from 2.09% for the year ended December 3 1,2004. The increases in the net interest 
margin and net interest rate spread were primarily due to the increase in the average yield on interest- 
earning assets, resulting primarily from the decrease in net premium amortization on our mortgage- 
backed securities and mortgage loan portfolios, previously discussed. The average balance of net interest- 
earning assets increased slightly to $666.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, from $665.7 
million for the year ended December 3 1,2004. 

The changes in average interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and their related yields and 
costs are discussed in greater detail under "Interest Income" and "Interest Expense," 



Analysis of Net Interest Income 

The following table sets forth certain information about the average balances of our assets and liabilities 
and their related yields and costs for the years ended December 3 1,2005,2004 and 2003. Average yields 
are derived by dividing income by the average balance of the related assets and average costs are derived 
by dividing expense by the average balance of the related liabilities, for the periods shown. Average 
balances are derived from average daily balances. The yields and costs include amortization of fees, 
costs, premiums and discounts which are considered adjustments to interest rates. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 
2005 2004 2003 

Average Average Average 
Average Yield/ Average Yield/ Average Yield/ 

fDoIfars in Thousands) Balance Interest Cost Balance Interest Cost Balanee Interest Cost 
Assets: 
Interest-earning assets: 

Mortgage loans (1): 
One-to-four family 
Multi-family, commercial 

real estate and construction 
Consumer and other loans (1) 
Total loans 
Mortgage-backed and 

other securities (2) 
Federal funds sold and 

repurchase agreements 
FNLB-NY stock 

Total interest-eaming assets 
Goodwill 
Other non-interest-earning assets 

Total assets 

Liabilities and stockholders' equity: 
Interest-bearing liabilities: 

Savings $ 2,742,417 
Money market 804,855 
NOW and demand deposit t ,569,419 
Liquid CDs 350.923 
Total core deposits 5,467,614 
Certificates of deposit 7.146.664 
Total deposits 12,614,278 
Borrowings 8,566,812 

Total interest-bearing liabilities 21,181,090 
Non-interest-bearing liabilities 333,522 

Total liabilities 21,514,612 
Stockholders' equity 1,370,543 
Total liabilities and 

stockholders' equity $ 22.885.155 

Net interest incornelnet 
interest rate spread (3) 

Net interest-eaming assets/ 
net interest margin (4) $ 666.439, 

Ratio of interest-eaming assets 
to interest-bearing liabilities 

(1) Mortgage loans and consumer and other loans include loans held-for-sale and non-performing loans and exclude the alIowance for loan losses. 
(2) Securities available-for-sale are reported at average amortized cost. 
(3) Net interest rate spread represents the difference between the average yield on average interest-earning assets and the average cost of average 

interest-bearing liabilities. 
(4) Net interest margin represents net interest income divided by average interest-earning assets. 



RateNolume Analysis 

The following table presents the extent to which changes in interest rates and changes in the volume of 
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities have affected our interest income and interest 
expense during the periods indicated. Information is provided in each category with respect to (1) the 
changes attributable to changes in volume (changes in volume multiplied by prior rate), (2) the changes 
attributable to changes in rate (changes in rate multiplied by prior volume), and (3) the net change. The 
changes attributable to the combined impact of volume and rate have been allocated proportionately to the 
changes due to volume and the changes due to rate. 

Year Ended December 31,2005 Year Ended December 31,2004 
Compared to Compared to 

Year Ended December 31,2004 Year Ended December 31,2003 
Increase (Decrease) Increase mecrease) 

fln Thousands) Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net 
Interest-earning assets: 

Mortgage loans: 
One-to-four family $27,254 $4,446 $ 3  1,700 $(4,895) $(3 3,420) $(38,3 15) 
Multi-family, commercial 

real estate and construction 27,606 (9,190) 18,416 44,943 (28,025) 16,918 
Consumer and other loans 2,306 7,542 9,848 3,050 (985) 2,065 
Mortgage-backed and 

other securities (4 1,344) 10,926 (30,41 8) (5,949) 2 1,429 15,480 
Federal funds sold and 

repurchase agreements 2,387 2,596 4,983 (627) 229 (398) 
FHLB-NY stock (989) 3,546 2,557 (3.046) (4.094) (7,140) 

Total 17.220 19,866 37,086 33,476 (44,866) ( 1 1.390) 
Interest-bearing liabilities: 

Savings (905) (905) 275 (1,553) (1,278) 
Money market (1,954) 3,088 1,134 (2,027) (1,528) (3,555) 
NOW and demand deposit 7 7 57 (662) (605) 
Liquid CDs 10,708 10,708 - 
Certificates of deposit 32,4 13 613 33,026 28,268 (10,652) 17,616 
Borrowinas (23.200) 8.102 (1 5.098) (22,627) (9 1,969) ( 1  14,596) 

Total 17,069 1 1,803 28.872 3.946 (106,364) (102,418) 
Net change in net interest 

income $ 151 $8.063 $ 8.214 $29.530 $ 61.498 $ 91.028 

Interest Income 

Interest income for the year ended December 3 1,2005 increased $37.1 million to $1.08 billion, from $1.05 
billion for the year ended December 3 1, 2004. This increase was primarily the result of an increase in the 
average yield on interest-earning assets to 4.96% for the year ended December 3 1,2005, from 4.83% for the 
year ended December 3 1,2004, coupled with an increase in the average balance of interest-earning assets to 
$21 -85 billion for the year ended December 3 1,2005, from $21.66 billion for the year ended December 3 1, 
2004. The increase in the average yield on interest-eaming assets was primarily the result of the decrease in 
net premium amortization on our mortgage-backed securities and mortgage loan portfolios, previously 
discussed, coupled with rising interest rates. The increase in the average balance of interest-earning assets 
was primarily due to increases in the average balances of loans and federal funds sold and repurchase 
agreements, partially offset by decreases in the average balances of mortgage-backed and other securities 
and FHLB-NY stock. 

Interest income on one-to-four family mortgage loans increased $3 1.7 million to $459.9 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2005, from $428.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, which was 
primarily the result of an increase of $566.8 million in the average balance of such loans, coupled with an 
increase in the average yield to 4.86% for the year ended December 31, 2005, from 4.81% for the year 
ended December 3 1,2004. The increase in the average balance of one-to-four family mortgage loans is the 
result of the strong levels of originations and purchases which have outpaced the levels of repayments over 



the past year. The increase in the average yield on one-to-four family mortgage loans is primarily due to 
the decrease in net premium amortization, previously discussed. 

Interest income on multi-family, commercial real estate and construction loans increased $1 8.4 million to 
$239.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, from $220.7 million for the year ended December 
3 1, 2004, which was primarily the result of an increase of $442.9 million in the average balance of such 
loans, partially offset by a decrease in the average yield to 6.19% for the year ended December 3 1, 2005, 
from 6.45% for the year ended December 31,2004. The increase in the average balance of multi-family, 
commercial real estate and construction loans reflects the continued strong levels of originations, which 
have outpaced the levels of repyments. Repayment activity within this portfolio is generaliy not as 
significant as our one-to-four family mortgage loan portfolio in part due to the prepayment penalties 
associated with these loans. The decrease in the average yield on multi-fmily, commercial real estate and 
construction loans reflects the significant growth in the portfolio in the relatively low interest rate 
environment. 

Interest income on consumer and other loans increased $9.9 million to $3 1.2 million for the year ended 
December 3 1,2005, from $21.3 million for the year ended December 3 1,2004, primarily due to an increase 
in the average yield to 5.92% for the year ended December 3 1 ,  2005, from 4.46% for the year ended 
December 3 1,2004, coupled with an increase of $47.9 million in the average balance of the portfolio. The 
increase in the average yield on consumer and other loans was primarily the result of an increase in the 
average yield on our home equity tines of credit which are adjustable rate ioans which generally reset 
monthly and are indexed to the prime rate. The prime rate increased 125 basis points during the latter half 
of 2004 and 200 basis points during 2005. The increase in the average balance of consumer and other loans 
was due to the increase in home equity lines of credit during the year as a result of the continued strong 
housing market and relativeiy Iow interest rate environment, Home equity Iines of credit represented 81 -6% 
of this portfolio at December 3 I ,  2005. 

Interest income on mortgage-backed and other securities decreased $30.4 million to $340.6 milIion for the 
year ended December 3 1,2005, from $373.0 million for the year ended December 3 1,2004. This decrease 
was primarily the result of a decrease of $937.1 n~illion in the average balance of the portfolio, partially 
offset by an increase in the average yield to 4.44% for the year ended December 3 1,2005, from 4.31% for 
the year ended December 3 1, 2004. The decrease in the average balance of mortgage-backed and other 
securities reflects our previously discussed strategy of reducing the securities and borrowings portfolios. 
The increase in the average yield on mortgage-backed and other securities reflects the previously discussed 
reduction in net premium amortization. Premium amortization and discount accretion on mortgage-backed 
and other securities changed by $9.5 million to net discount accretion of $1.4 million for the year ended 
December 3 I ,  2005, from net premium amortization of $8. I million for the year ended December 3 1,2004. 

Interest income on federal funds sold and repurchase agreements increased $5.0 million to $6.1 million for 
the year ended December 31, 2005, as a result of an increase in the average yield to 3.13% for the year 
ended December 3 I ,  2005, from f .32% far the year ended December 3 1,2004, coupled with an increase of 
$1 09.2 million in the average baiance of the portfolio. The increase in the average yield reflects the FOMC 
federal funds rate increases totaling $25 basis points during the fatter half of 2004 and 200 basis points 
during 2005. Dividend income on FHLB-NY stock increased $2.6 million to $6.0 million for the year 
ended December 3 1,2005, primarily as a result of increases in the dividend rates paid by the FHLB-NY. 

Interest Expense 

Interest expense for the year ended December 3 1, 2005 increased $28.9 million to $604.2 million, from 
$575.3 million for the year ended December 3 1,2004. This increase was primarily the result of an increase 
of $188.4 million in the average balance of interest-bearing liabilities to $21 .I 8 billion for the year ended 
December 3 I ,  2005, from $20.99 billion for the year ended December 3 I, 2004, coupled with an increase in 
the average cost of total interest-bearing liabilities to 2.85% for the year ended December 31, 2005, from 
2.74% for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase in the average balance of interest-bearing 
liabilities was due to an increase in the average balance of deposits, partially offset by a decrease in the 
average balance of borrowings. The increase in the average cost of total interest-bearing liabilities was 



primarily due to the impact of the significant increases in the average balances of certificates of deposit and 
Liquid CDs, which have a higher average cost than our other deposit products, and the impact of the 
increase in short-term interest rates, which began in the latter half of 2004, on our short-term borrowings. 

Interest expense on deposits increased $44.0 million to $281.4 million for the year ended December 31, 
2005, from $237.4 million for the year ended December 3 1, 2004, primarily due to an increase of $806.5 
million in the average balance of total deposits. The increase in the average balance of total deposits was 
primarily the result of increases in the average balances of certificates of deposit and Liquid CDs, partially 
offset by decreases in the average balances of money market and savings accounts, primarily as a result of 
continued intense competition for these types of deposits. The average cost of total deposits increased to 
2.23% for the year ended December 3 1,2005, from 2.0 1 % for the year ended December 3 1,2004, primarily 
due to the previously discussed significant increases in the average balances of certificates of deposit and 
Liquid CDs. 

Interest expense on certificates of deposit increased $33.0 million to $251.2 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2005, from $218.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, primarily due to an 
increase of $935.7 million in the average balance. The average cost of certificates of deposit increased 
slightly to 3.52% for the year ended December 31, 2005, from 3.51% for the year ended December 31, 
2004. During the year ended December 31, 2005, $3.70 billion of certificates of deposit, with a weighted 
average rate of 2.71% and a weighted average maturity at inception of seventeen months, matured and 
$4.06 billion of certificates of deposit were issued or repriced, with a weighted average rate of 3.45% and a 
weighted average maturity at inception of thirteen months. Interest expense on Liquid CDs totaled $10.7 
million for the year ended December 31, 2005. Our new Liquid CDs had an average balance of $350.9 
million and an average cost of 3.05% for the year ended December 3 1, 2005. The increases in the average 
balances of certificates of deposit and Liquid CDs were primarily a result of the success of om marketing 
campaigns which have focused on attracting these types of deposits. Growth in our certificates of deposit 
and Liquid CDs contributes to the management of interest rate risk, enables us to reduce our borrowing 
levels and continues to produce new customers from our communities, creating relationship development 
opportunities. 

Interest expense on borrowings for the year ended December 3 1, 2005 decreased $15.1 million to $322.8 
million, from $337.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, resulting from a decrease of $618.1 
million in the average balance, partially offset by an increase in the average cost to 3.77% for the year 
ended December 31,2005, from 3.68% for the year ended December 3 1,2004, The decrease in the average 
balance of borrowings was primarily the result of our previously discussed strategy of reducing the 
securities and borrowings portfolios. The increase in the average cost of borrowings reflects the impact of 
the increase in short-term interest rates over the past year on our short-term borrowings. 

Provision for Loan Losses 

During the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, no provision for loan losses was recorded. We 
review our allowance for loan losses on a quarterly basis. Our 2005 analyses did not indicate that a change 
in our allowance for loan losses was warranted. Our net charge-off experience during the year ended 
December 3 1,2005 was one basis point of average loans outstanding, compared to less than one basis point 
of average loans outstanding for the year ended December 3 1,2004. We believe our current allowance for 
loan losses is adequate to reflect the risks inherent in our loan portfolio. 

The allowance for loan losses totaled $81.2 million at December 31, 2005 and $82.8 million at December 
3 1, 2004. Net loan charge-offs totaled $1.6 million for the year ended December 3 1, 2005 compared to 
$363,000 for the year ended December 3 1, 2004. Non-performing loans increased $32.4 million to $65.0 
million at December 3 1,2005, from $32.6 million at December 3 1,2004. The allowance for loan losses as 
a percentage of non-performing loans decreased to 124.81% at December 31, 2005, from 254.02% at 
December 31, 2004, primarily due to the increase in non-performing loans from December 31, 2004 to 
December 3 I ,  2005. The allowance for loan fosses as a percentage of total loans was 0.56% at December 
31, 2005 and 0.62% at December 31, 2004. For further discussion of non-performing loans and the 
allowance for loan losses, see "Critical Accounting Policies" and "Asset Quality." 



Non-Interest Income 

Non-interest income for the year ended December 3 1,2005 increased $22.1 miIlion to $102.2 million, from 
$80.1 million for the year ended December 3 1, 2004. This increase was primarily due to the $16.5 million 
other-than-temporary impairment write-down of securities charge recorded in the 2004 fourth quarter, 
previously discussed under "Critical Accounting Policies - Securities Impairment," coupled with increases 
in customer service fees, other non-interest income and mortgage banking income, net, for the year ended 
December 3 1,2005. These increases were partially offset by the absence of gains on sales of securities for 
the year ended December 3 1,2005. 

Customer service fees increased $7.8 million to $66.3 million for the year ended December 3 1,2005, from 
$58.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. The increase was primarily due to an increase in 
insufficient fund fees related to transaction accounts resulting from the implementation of an enhanced 
overdraft protection program in the 2005 first quarter. 

Other non-interest income increased $1.7 million to $8.5 million for the year ended December 3 1, 2005, 
from $6.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, primarily due to gains recognized in the 2005 
second quafier in a trust account previously established for certain former directors, a gain recognized in the 
2005 second quarter on the sale of an inactive subsidiary and a gain recognized in the 2005 fourth quarter 
on the settlement of an insurance claim related to the fire at our Oakdale banking office in December 2004. 

Mortgage banking income, net, which includes loan servicing fees, net gain on sales of loans, amortization 
of MSR and valuation allowance adjustments for the impairment of MSR, increased $1.3 million to $6.0 
million for the year ended December 3 1, 2005, from $4.7 million for the year ended December 3 1, 2004. 
This increase was primarily due to a decrease in amortization of MSR attributable to the reduction in the 
level of mortgage loan repayments. 

There were no sales of securities during the year ended December 31, 2005. During 2004, we sold 
securities with an amortized cost of $1 65.5 million for a net gain of $4.7 million. 

Non-Interest Expense 

Non-interest expense increased $3.7 million to $228.7 million for the year ended December 3 1, 2005, from 
$225.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2004. This increase was primarily due to increases in 
advertising expense and other expense. 

Advertising expense increased $2.2 million to $8.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, from 
$6.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, primarily due to increased advertising related to, 
among other things, the introduction of a business banking marketing campaign in the 2005 first quarter. 

Other expense increased $1.6 million to $35.0 million for the year ended December 3 1, 2005, from $33.4 
miIlion for the year ended December 3 1, 2004, primarily due to, among other things, increased legal fees 
and other costs in the first half of 2005 as a result of the completion of the trial phase of the LISB goodwill 
litigation, various one-time charges of $58 1,000 associated with the outsourcing of our mortgage servicing 
and other company-wide cost saving initiatives, previously discussed, an increase in recruiting expenses and 
increased charitable contributions. See Item 3, "Legal Proceedings," for further discussion of goodwill 
litigation. The increase in charitable contributions was the result of contributions to benefit the Gulf Coast 
victims of Hurricane Katrina and to support the tsunami disaster relief efforts in South Asia. These 
increases were partially offset by a $3.2 million arbitration award settiement in the 2004 third quarter. 

Compensation and benefits expense increased slightly for the year ended December 3 1, 2005, compared to 
the year ended December 3 I ,  2004, primarily due to costs of $1 -3 million associated with the outsourcing of 
our mortgage loan servicing activities and other company-wide cost saving initiatives, previously discussed. 
Compensation and benefits expense also includes certain stock-based compensation costs in 2005. In 
December 2005, 196,828 shares of restricted stock were granted to select officers with a fair value of 
$29.02 per share on the grant date. Compensation cost related to restricted stock grants is recognized on a 



straight fine basis over the vesting period of approximately three years. Also in December 2005, we 
accelerated the vesting of certain outstanding unvested stock options in anticipation of our adoption of 
revised SFAS No. 123, "Share-Based Payment," or SFAS No. 123(R), effective January 1, 2006. 
Compensation costs refated to the acceleration of vesting totaled $1 1 f ,000 in 2005. See "Impact of 
Accounting Standards and Inteqre&tions" for a further discussion of the accelerated vesting and the impact 
of our adoption of SFAS No. 123(R). 

Our percentage of general and administrative expense to average assets was 1.00% for the year ended 
December 31,2005, compared to 099% for tbe year ended December 3 1,2804, Ow efficiency ratio, which 
represents general and administrative expense divided by the sum of net interest income plus non-interest 
income, decreased to 39.37% for the year ended December 31, 2005, from 40.86% for the year ended 
December 31, 2004, prirnaxily due to the previously discussed increases in non-interest income and net: 
interest income. 

Income Tax Expense 

For the year ended December 31, 2005, income tax expense totaled $1 18.4 million, representing an 
effective tax rate of 33.6%, compared to $l06,l million, representing an effective tax rate of 32.6%, for the 
year ended December 3 1,2004. 

Comparison of Financial Condition and Operating Results fur the Y a m  Ended December 31,2004 
and 2003 

Financial Condition 

Total assets increased $954.3 miffion to $23.42 bilfion at December 31, 2004, from $22.45 biItion at 
December 31, 2003. The primary reasons for the increase in total assets were &e increases in ioans 
receivable and mortgage-backed securities. This growth was funded primarily through an increase in 
deposits. 

Moegage foms, net, iscreased $497.4 mifiion to $12.75 billion at December 31,2004, from $12.25 bitlion 
at December 3 31, 2003. This increase was primarily due to an increase in our multi-family mortgage loan 
portfolio. Gross mortgage ioans originated and purchased during the year ended December 3 1,2004 totaled 
$4.35 biliion, of which $3, J 9 billion were originations and $1.16 billion were purchases. This compares to 
gross mortgage foans originated and purchased during the year ended December 31, 2003 totaling $7.29 
billion, of which $5.75 billion were originations and $1 5 4  bilIion were purchases. Total mortgage loans 
originated include origiz~ations of bans held-for-sate totaling $323.2 miltion during the year ended 
December 31, 2004 and $613.3 miffion during the year ended December 31, 2003. hfiiortgage Ioan 
repayments decreased to $3.52 billion for the year ended December 31, 2004, from $6.1 1 billion for the 
year ended December 31,2003. The decreases in the leveis of mortgage loan originations, purchases and 
repayments reflect the deciline in refinance activity in 2004 compared to 2003. 

Our mortgage loan po&otio, as welt as ow originations and purchases, continue to cwsist primarily of one- 
to-four family mortgage loans. During 2004, the reduction in repayment activity and continued strong loan 
origination volume, primarily in the fourth quarter, resulted in a modest increase in our one-to-four family 
Ioan portfblio fiom December 3 1,2003. Our one-to-four family mortgage loans increased $83.7 million to 
$9.05 billion at December 31, 2004, from $8,97 billion at December 31, 2003, and represented 68.7% of 
our total loan portfolio at December 31,2004. The strung growth we experienced in the fourth quarter of 
2004 offset the impact of repayments outpacing originations during the first nine months of 2004. 

While we continue to be primarily a one-to-four family mortgage lender, we have increased our emphasis 
on multi-family and comrnerciaI, real estate loan originations over the past several years. Our multi-family 
modgsge ban portfafie increased $328.5 miffio~ to $2-56 bittion at December 3 1, 2OW3 from $2.23 billion 
at December 3 1,2003- Our commercial real estate Ioan portfblio increased $64.6 miifion to $944.9 miliion 
at December 31, 2004, from $880.3 million at December 31, 2003. Mufti-family and commercial real 
estate loan originations totaled $1.05 billion for the year ended December 3 1,2004 and $1.65 billion for the 



year ended December 31,2003. As of December 31,2004, the average loan balance within our combined 
multi-family and commercial real estate portfolio continues to be less than $1.0 million and the average 
loan-to-value ratio, based on current principal balance and original appraised value, continues to be less 
than 65%. Prepayment activity within our multi-family and commercial real estate loan portfolio is 
generally not as significant as that which we have experienced in our one-to-four family mortgage loan 
portfolio due in part to the prepayment penalties associated with these loans. Consumer and other loans, 
net, increased $78.9 million to $5 17.1 million at December 3 1, 2004, from $438.2 million at December 3 1, 
2003. This increase is primarily in home equity lines of credit as a result of the continued strong housing 
market and low interest rate environment. 

Securities increased $262.1 million to $8.71 billion at December 31,2004, from $8.45 biftion at December 
31, 2003. This increase was primarily the result of purchases of TIxed rate REMfCs and CMOS totaling 
$3.07 billion, partially offset by principal payments received of $2.65 billion, sales of $165.5 miilion and 
the $16.5 million other-than-temporaty impairment write-down on our FHLMC perpetual preferred 
securities, previously discussed. During 2004, we continued to purchase mortgage-backed securities to 
effectively redeploy our securities and excess mortgage cash flows in addition to cash flows from deposit 
growth. At December 31, 2004, our securities portfolio is comprised primarily of fixed rate REMIC and 
CMO securities. The amortized cost of our fixed rate REMICs and CMOS totaled $8.44 billion at 
December 31, 2004. Included in this total is $1.49 billion of securities which have a remaining gross 
premium of $12.2 rnilfion, a weighted average current coupon of 4.94%, a weighted average coilatera1 
coupon of 6.00% and a weighted average Iife of 2.2 years. The remaining $6.95 billion of these securities 
have a remaining gross discount of $25.8 million, a weighted average current coupon of 4.20%, a weighted 
average collateral coupon of 5.73% and a weighted average life of 3.3 years. Included in the totals for 
discount securities are $81 9.8 million of securities at par, 

Deposits increased $1.13 billion to $12.32 billion at December 31, 2004, from $1 1.19 billion at December 
3 1,2003. The increase in deposits was primarily due to an increase of $1.35 billion in certificates of deposit 
to $6.85 billion at December 31, 2004 and an increase of $87.3 million in NOW and demand deposit 
accounts to $1.58 billion at December 31, 2004, partially offset by a decrease of $267.5 million in our 
money market accounts to $965.3 million at December 3 1,2004. The increase in our certificates of deposit 
was primarily the result of the success of our marketing campaigns. The decrease in our money market 
accounts is attributable to continued intense competition for these accounts. Certain Iocal competitors have 
continued to offer premium rates for money market and checking accounts. We have not offered premium 
rates on these accounts because we do not consider it a cost effective strategy. However, despite continued 
intense coinpetition for checking accounts, we have been successful in increasing our total NOW and 
demand deposit account balances during the year ended December 31, 2004, including our business 
checking deposits, due in large part to our concerted sales and marketing efforts, including our PEAK sales 
process. 

Total borrowings, net, decreased $162.2 million to $9.47 billion at December 31, 2004, from $9.63 billion 
at December 31, 2003. This decrease is primarily the result of a $155.0 million decrease in reverse 
repurchase agreements. The net decrease in total borrowings reflects the repayment of certain high cost 
borrowings that matured. 

Stockholders' equity decreased to $1.37 billion at December 31,2004, from $1.40 biftion at December 31, 
2003. The decrease in stockholders' equity was the result of common stock repurchased of $225.1 million 
and dividends declared of $72.0 million. These decreases were partially offset by net income of $219.5 
million, the effect of stock options exercised and related tax benefit of $24.1 million, a decrease in 
accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax, of $1 7.9 million, which was primarily due to the increase 
in the fair value of our securities available-for-sale, and the amortization of the allocated portion of shares 
held by the ESOP of $8.7 million. 



General 

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2004 increased $22.7 million to $219.5 million, from $196.8 
million for the year ended December 3 1,2003. Diluted earnings per common share totaled $2.00 per share 
for the year ended December 31,2004 and $1.66 per share for the year ended December 31,2003. Return 
on average assets increased to 0.97% for the year ended December 3 f ,2004, from 0.87% for the year ended 
December 31, 2003. Return on average stockhofders~quity increased to 15.81% for the year ended 
December 3 1, 2004, from 13.26% for the year ended December 3 1, 2003. Return on average tangible 
stoc~olderskquity increased to 18.25% for the year ended December 3 1,2004, from 15.15% for the year 
ended December 3 1,2003. The increase in the return on average assets is primarily due to the increase in 
net income. The increase in the returns on average stockholders' equity and average tangible stockholders" 
equity is primarily due to the increase in net income, coupled with the decrease in the average balance of 
stockholders' equity for the year ended December 31, 2004, compared to the year ended December 31, 
2003. 

As previously discussed, our results of operations for the year ended December 3 1, 2004 include a $1 6 S  
miflion, before-tax ($9.6 million, after-tax), other-than-temporary impairment write-down charge on $120.0 
miflion face value of perpetual preferred stock issued by FI-IILMC. This charge reduced diluted earnings per 
common share by $0.09 per share for the year ended December 3 1, 2004. This charge also reduced our 
return on average assets by 4 basis points, return on average stockholders' equity by 69 basis points, and 
return on average tangible stockholders' equity by 79 basis points. For a further discussion of the other- 
than-temporaw impairment write-down, see ""Critical Accounting Policies - Securities Impairment." 

Net Interest Income 

For the year ended December 3 1,2004, net interest income increased $91.1 million to $470.6 million, from 
$379.5 million for the year ended December 3 1,2003. The net interest margin increased to 2.17% for the 
year ended December 3 1,2004, from 1.78% for the p a r  ended December 3 1,2003. The increases in net 
interest income and the net interest margin for the year ended December 3 1,2004 were primarily the result 
of a decrease in interest expense, partially offset by a decrease in interest income. The decrease in interest 
expense was attributable to a decrease in our cost of funds, which is primarily due to the repayment and 
refinancing of various higher cost borrowings. The decrease in interest income was primarily due to the 
decrease in the yield on interest-earning assets as a result of the extraordinarily high fevel of mortgage loan 
and mortgage-backed securities repayments we experienced throughout 2003 resulting in reinvestment in 
assets at lower rates. Partially offsetting the negative impact of the reinvestment in assets at lower rates was 
an increase in the average balance of total interest-earning assets and a reduction in net premium 
amortization on mortgage-backed securities and mortgage loans. Net premium amortization on our 
mortgage-backed securities and mortgage loan portfoIios decreased $81.0 million to $32.0 million for the 
year ended December 31,2004, from $1 13.0 million for the year ended December 3 1,2003. 

The average balance of net interest-earning assets increased $241.3 million to $665.7 million for the year 
ended December 317 2004, from $424.4 million for the year ended December 3 1,2003. The increase in the 
average balance of net interest-earning assets was primarily the result of an increase of $343.2 million in the 
average balance of total interest-earning assets to $21.66 billion for the year ended December 31, 2004, 
from $21 3 2  bitlion for the year ended December 3 I, 2003, partialfy offset by an increase of $102.0 million 
in the average balance of total interest-bearing liabilities to $20.99 billion for the year ended December 3 1, 
2004, from $20.89 billion for the year ended December 3 1,  2003. Also contributing to the increase in the 
average balance of net interest-earning assets was the decrease in non-interest-earning assets, primarily as a 
resuit of the reduction in the monthly mortgage-backed securities principal payments receivable due to the 
reduction in the mortgage-backed securities cash Bow, The net interest rate spread increased to 2.09% for 
the year ended December 3 I ,  2004, from 1.72% for the year ended December 3 1,2003, primarily due to a 
decrease in the average cost of interest-bearing liabilities, partially offset by a decrease in the average yield 
on interest-earning assets. The average cost of interest-bearing liabilities decreased to 2.74% for the year 



ended December 31, 2004, from 3.24% for the year ended December 31, 2003. The average yield on 
interest-earning assets decreased to 4.83%. for the year ended December 31,2004, from 4.96% for the year 
ended December 3 1,2003. 

The changes in average interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and their related yields and 
costs are discussed in greater detail under "Interest Income" and "Interest Expense." 

Interest Income 

Interest income for the year ended December 31, 2004 decreased slightly to $1.05 billion, from $1.06 
billion for the year ended December 3 1, 2003. This decrease was primarily the result of a decrease in the 
average yield on interest-earning assets to 4.83% for the year ended December 3 1,2004, from 4.96% for the 
year ended December 3 1,2003, substantially offset by an increase of $343.2 million in the average balance 
of interest-earning assets to $21.66 billion for the year ended December 3 1, 2004, from $2 1.32 billion for 
the year ended December 31, 2003. The decrease in the average yield on interest-earning assets was 
primarily due to decreases in the average yields on mortgage loans, partially offset by an increase in the 
average yield on mortgage-backed and other securities. The decreases in the average yields on our 
mortgage loan portfolios are attributable to a reduction in coupon rates resulting from the extraordinarily 
high levels of repayments in these portfolios, primarily during 2003, resulting in reinvestment in those 
assets at lower rates, coupled with the significant growth in the multi-fmily, commercial real estate and 
construction loan portfolio in a relatively low interest rate environment. Partially offsetting this decrease in 
coupon rates was the significant decrease in net premium amortization as a result of the reduction in 
refinance activity in 2004. The increase in the average yield on mortgage-backed and other securities was 
primarily the result of the significant decrease in net premium amortization as a result of the reduction in 
refinance activity in 2004, as well as the reduced amount of unamortized premium remaining in our 
portfolio, partially offset by a reduction in coupon rates. The increase in the average balance of interest- 
earning assets was primarily due to increases in the average balances of multi-family, commercial real 
estate and construction loans and consumer and other loans, partially offset by decreases in the average 
balances of mortgage-backed and other securities, one-to-four family mortgage loans, and federal funds 
sold and repurchase agreements. 

Interest income on one-to-four family mortgage loans decreased $38.3 million to $428.2 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2004, from $466.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, which was the 
result of a decrease in the average yield to 4.8 1 % for the year ended December 3 1, 2004, from 5.19% for 
the year ended December 3 1,2003, coupled with a decrease of $96.4 million in the average balance of such 
loans. The decrease in the average yield on one-to-four family mortgage loans reflects the impact of the 
low interest rate environment as higher rate loans were repaid and replaced with lower yielding new 
originations and purchases throughout most of 2003. However, the yield has been positively impacted by a 
reduction of mortgage loan premium amortization as a result of the decreased refinance activity during 2004 
as compared to 2003. The decrease in the average balance of one-to-four family mortgage loans is the 
result of repayments continuing to outpace originations and purchases of one-to-four family mortgage ioans 
during the first nine months of 2004. However, as a result of reduced prepayment activity and continued 
strong purchase mortgage activity, during the 2004 fourth quarter, originations and purchases exceeded the 
levels of repayments resulting in a modest increase in the balance of the portfolio from December 3 1, 2003 
to December 3 1,2004. 

Interest income on multi-family, commercial real estate and construction loans increased $1 6.9 million to 
$220.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, from $203.8 million for the year ended December 
31, 2003, which was primarily the result of an increase of $661.9 million in the average balance of such 
loans, partially offset by a decrease in the average yield to 6.45% for the year ended December 3 1, 2004, 
from 7.39% for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase in the average balance of multi-family, 
commercial real estate and construction loans reflects our increased emphasis on originations of such loans 
over the past several years, coupled with the fact that repayment activity within this portfolio is generally 
not as significant as that which we have experienced on our one-to-four family mortgage loan portfolio in 
part due to the prepayment penalties associated with these loans. The decrease in the average yield on 
multi-family, commercial real estate and construction loans reflects the significant growth in this portfolio 



in the relatively low interest rate environment, coupled with a decrease of $3.4 miilion in prepayment 
penalties which totaled $12.6 million in 2004 compared to $16.0 million in 2003. 

Interest income on mortgage-backed and other securities increased $15.4 million to $371.0 miiIion for the 
year ended December 3 1,2004, from $355.6 miilion for the year ended December 3 1,2003. This increase 
was the result of an increase in the average yield to 4.31% for the year ended December 31, 2004, from 
4.06% for the year ended December 3 1,2003, partially offset by a decrease of $143.6 million in the average 
balance of the portfolio, The increase in the average yield on mortgage-backed and other securities reflects 
the reduction in net premium amortization during 2004. Net premium amortization decreased $60.5 million 
to $8.1 million for the year ended December 3 1,2004, from $68.6 million for the year ended December 3 1, 
2003. The benefit from the reduction in the amount of net premium amortization was partially offset by a 
reduction in coupon rates resulting from the substantiaI turnover we experienced in our mortgage-backed 
securities portfolio during 2003 as higher yielding securities paid off and were replaced with lower yielding 
securities. In 2004, we continued to purchase mortgage-backed securities to effectively redeploy our 
securities and excess mortgage cash flows, in addition to cash flows from deposit growth, which resulted in 
an increase in the balance of moagage-back4 and other securities at December 31, 2004, compared to 
December 3 1,2003. The decrease in the average balance of mortgage-backed and other securities for the 
year ended December 31, 2004, compared to the year ended December 31, 2003, is the result of the 
volatility in cash flows we experienced in 2004 on our mortgage-backed securities portfolio, due to the 
interest rate volatility which occurred between quarters in 2004, coupled with. a reduction in the Xevefs of 
other securities as a result of securities which were sold or called in 2003 and early 2004. 

Dividends on FHLB-NY stock totaled $3.5 million for the year ended December 3 1,2004 and $10.6 million 
for the year ended December 3 1,2003. The decrease in dividends received was primarily due to a decrease 
in the dividend rates paid by the FHLB-NY, coupled with a decrease in the average balance of FHLB-NY 
stock, reflecting the reduction in the level of FHLB-NY bornwings. The FHLB-NY suspended dividend 
payments in the 2003 fourth quarter but resumed payments in January 2004 at a reduced rate from that 
which they had paid prior to the suspension. 

Interest Expense 

Interest expense for the year ended December 31,2004 decreased $102.5 million to $575.3 million, from 
$677.8 million for the year ended December 31,2003. This decrease was primarily the result of a decrease 
in the average cost of interest-bearing liabilities to 2.74% for the year ended December 31, 2004, from 
3.24% for the year ended December 3 1,2003, slightly offset by an increase of $102.0 million in the average 
balance of interest-bearing liabilities to $20.99 billion for the year ended December 3 1, 2004, from $20.89 
billion for the year ended December 31, 2003. The decrease in the overall average cost of our interest- 
bearing liabilities primariiy reflects the impact of the repayment and refrnmcing of higher cost borrowings 
as they matured at substantially Iower rates. The siight increase in the average balance of interest-bearing 
liabilities was primarily due to an increase in the average balance of deposits, substantially offset by a 
decrease in the average balance of borrowings. 

Interest expense on deposits increased $12.1 million to $237.4 million for the year ended December 31, 
2004, from $225.3 million for the year ended December 3 1, 2003, reflecting an increase of $607.4 million 
in the average balance of total deposits which was primarily due to an increase in the average bsfance of 
certificates of deposit, partially offset by a decrease in the average balance of money market accounts. The 
average cost of deposits in each of the deposit categories decreased for the year ended December 3 1,2004, 
as compared to the year ended December 3 1, 2003, as a result of the low interest rate environment, 
However, our overaff average cost of deposits remained at 2.01 % for the year ended December 3 1, 2004, 
primarily due to the significant increase in the average balance of certificates of deposit which have a higher 
average cost than our other deposit products. 

lnterest expense on certificates of deposit increased $37.6 mi1Iion resulting from an increase of $791.3 
miflion in the average balance, partially offset by a decrease in the average cost to 3.5 1% for the year ended 
December 31, 2004, from 3.70% for the year ended December 31, 2003. The increase in the average 
balance of certificates of deposit was primariiy the result of the success of our marketing campaigns which 



have focused on attracting medium- and Jong-term certificates of deposit as part of our interest rate risk 
management strategy to extend liabilities as well as to enable us to reduce borrowings. During the year 
ended December 3 1, 2004, $3.90 billion of certificates of deposit, with a weighted average rate of 2.45% 
and a weighted average maturity at inception of sixteen months, matured and $5.02 billion of certificates of 
deposit were issued or repriced, with a weighted average rate of 2.66% and a weighted average maturity at 
inception of twenty months. 

Interest expense on money market accounts decreased $3.6 million reflecting a decrease of $3 14.4 million 
in the average balance, coupled with a decrease in the average cost to 0.59% for the year ended December 
31, 2004, from 0.71% for the year ended December 31, 2003. The decrease in the average balance of 
money market accounts is attributable to the continued intense competition for these accounts, previously 
discussed. The decrease in the average cost of money market accounts is a result of the low interest rate 
environment. 

Interest expense on savings accounts decreased $1.3 million which was attributable to a decrease in the 
average cost to 0.40% for the year ended December 3 1,2004, from 0.45% for the year ended December 3 1, 
2003, partially offset by an increase of $65.5 million in the average balance. Interest expense on NOW and 
demand deposit accounts decreased $605,000 as a result of a decrease in the average cost to 0.06% for the 
year ended December 3 1, 2004, from 0.1 0% for the year ended December 3 1, 2003, slightly offset by an 
increase of $65.0 million in the average balance of these accounts. The increases in the average balances of 
savings and NOW and demand deposit accounts are consistent with our emphasis on core deposit 
generation. 

Interest expense on borrowings decreased $1 14.6 million to $337.9 million for the year ended December 
3 1,2004, from $452.5 million for year ended December 3 1,2003, resulting from a decrease in the average 
cost of borrowings to 3.68% for the year ended December 31, 2004, from 4.67% for the year ended 
December 3 1,2003, coupled with a decrease of $505.4 million in the average balance. The decrease in the 
average cost of borrowings is the result of the repayment of certain higher cost borrowings as they matured 
and the refinancing of the remainder at substantiaHy lower rates. The decrease in the average balance of 
borrowings was primarily the result of the repayment of certain higher cost borrowings as they matured, 
primarily through the increase in certificates of deposits as a result of the success of our marketing 
campaigns, previously discussed. 

Provision for Loan Losses 

During the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, no provision for loan losses was recorded. We 
review our allowance for loan losses on a quarterly basis. Our 2004 analyses did not indicate that a change 
in our allowance for loan losses was warranted. Our net charge-off experience during the year ended 
December 3 1,2004 remained at an annualized rate of iess than one basis point: of average loans outstanding 
for the period. We believe our current allowance for loan losses is adequate to reflect the risks inherent in 
our Ioan portfolio. 

The allowance for loan losses totaled $82.8 million at December 31, 2004 and $83.1 million at December 
31, 2003. Net loan charge-offs totaled $363,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004 compared to 
$425,000 for the year ended December 31, 2003. Non-performing Ioans increased $2.9 million to $32.6 
million at December 3 1,2004, from $29.7 million at December 3 1,2003. The allowance for loan losses as 
a percentage of non-performing loans decreased to 254.02% at December 3 1, 2004, from 280.10% at 
December 31, 2003, primarily due to the increase in non-performing loans from December 31, 2003 to 
December 3 1, 2004. The allowance for Ioan losses as a percentage of total loans decreased to 0.62% at 
December 3 1, 2004, from 0.66% at December 3 1, 2003. For further discussion of non-performing loans 
and the allowance for loan losses, see "Critical Accounting Policies" and "Asset Quality." 

Non-Interest Income 

Non-interest income for the year ended December 3 1,2004 decreased $39.5 million to $80.1 million, from 
$1 19.6 miition for the year ended December 3 1,2003. All components of non-interest income for the year 



ended December 3 1 ,  2004 decreased as compared to the year ended December 3 1, 2003. However, the 
decrease in total non-interest income was primarily due to the $16.5 million other-than-temporary 
impairment write-down of securities, previously discussed, and the decreases in mortgage banking income, 
net, and other non-interest income. 

Mortgage banking income, net, decreased $5.6 million to $4.7 million for the year ended December 31, 
2004, from $10.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. This decrease was primarily due to 
decreases in net gain on sales of loans and loan servicing fees, partially offset by a decrease in amortization 
of MSR. Net gain on sales of loans decreased $8.6 million to $3.5 million for the year ended December 3 1, 
2004, from $12.1 million for the year ended December 3 I, 2003. The decrease in net gain on sales of loans 
was primarily due to a significant decrease in the volume of fixed rate loans originated and sold into the 
secondary market during 2004, coupled with less favorable pricing opportunities during the year ended 
December 3 1, 2004, as compared to the year ended December 3 1, 2003. Loan servicing fees decreased 
$2.1 million to $5.8 million for the year ended December 3 1, 2004, from $7.9 million for the year ended 
December 3 1,2003, primarily as a result of the decrease in the balance of loans serviced for others to $1.67 
billion at December 31, 2004, from $1.90 billion at December 31, 2003. The decrease in the balance of 
loans serviced for others was the result of repayments in that portfolio exceeding the level of new servicing 
volume from loan sales. Amortization of MSR decreased $6.0 million to $6.8 million for the year ended 
December 3 1, 2004, from $32.8 million for the year ended December 3 1, 2003. The decrease in MSR 
amortization is attributable to the reduction in the level of mortgage loan repayments as a result of the 
decrease in mortgage loan refinance activity previously discussed. We recorded a recovery in the valuation 
allowance of MSR of $2.2 million for the year ended December 3 1, 2004 compared to a recovery of $3.1 
million for the year ended December 3 1,2003. 

Other non-interest income decreased $7.7 million to $6.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, 
from $14.5 million for the year ended December 3 I ,  2003, primarily due to a $10.1 million gain on the sale 
of our interest in a joint venture real estate investment held by one of our wholly-owned subsidiaries in the 
2003 fourth quarter, partially offset by income in 2004 from an investment in a limited partnership. 

Net gain on sales of securities decreased $2.6 million to $4.7 million for the year ended December 3 1,2004, 
from $7.3 million for the year ended December 3 1,2003. During 2004, we sold mortgage-backed securities 
with an amortized cost of $145.2 million and other securities with an amortized cost of $20.3 million. 
During 2003, we sold mortgage-backed securities with an amortized cost of $1.40 billion and other 
securities with an amortized cost of $45.6 million. Net gains on sales of securities are used as a natural 
hedge to offset MSR valuation allowance adjustments. 

Income from BOLI decreased $2.9 million to $17.1 million for the year ended December 3 1, 2004, from 
$20.0 million for the year ended December 3 1,2003, primarily due to a reduction in the yield on the BOLI 
investment as a result of the low interest rate environment. Other loan fees decreased $2.8 million to $4.8 
million for the year ended December 3 1, 2004, from $7.6 million for the year ended December 3 1, 2003, 
primarily due to decreases in mortgage related fees due to the decrease in loan origination and refinance 
activity previously discussed. 

Non-Interest Expense 

Non-interest expense increased $19.1 million to $225.0 million for the year ended December 3 1,2004, from 
$205.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. This increase was primarily due to increases in 
compensation and benefits expense, occupancy, equipment and systems expense and other expense. 

Compensation and benefits expense increased $8.4 million to $1 18.7 million for the year ended December 
3 1, 2004, from $1 10.3 million for the year ended December 3 1, 2003. This increase was primarily 
attributable to increases in salary expense and ESOP expense, partially offset by a reduction in pension 
expense. The increase in salary expense was primarily attributable to an increase in corporate bonuses for 
2004 compared to 2003. No bonuses were paid to executive management for 2003. The increase in ESOP 
expense was primarily attributable to a higher average market value of our common stock during the year 
ended December 31, 2004 compared to the year ended December 31, 2003. Pension expense decreased 



primarily due to the increase in the expected return on plan assets in 2004 compared to 2003 as a result of 
the increase in the fair value of plan assets from December 3 I, 2002 to December 3 I, 2003. 

Occupancy, equipment and systems expense increased $4.7 million to $64.6 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2004, from $59.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. This increase was 
primarily due to increased furniture, fixtures and computer equipment expense and computer equipment 
depreciation, as a result of systems enhancements over the past two years, and an increase in office building 
expense, resulting from increased maintenance costs, primarily snow removal costs in the 2004 first quarter 
due to the harsh winter. 

Other expense increased $5.5 million to $33.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2004, from $27.9 
million for the year ended December 31, 2003, primarily due to a $3.2 million arbitration settlement 
resulting from the final disposition of a compensation dispute between us and three former directors of 
Long Island Bancorp, Inc, and increased legal fees and other costs as a result of increased activity in 
preparation for the trial phase of the LISB goodwill litigation. See Item 3, "Legal Proceedings," for hrther 
discussion of the LISB goodwill litigation. Additionally, we incurred $800,000 in consulting fees related to 
our implementation of the Sarbanes-Oxiey Act of 2002. 

Although non-interest expense increased in 2004, we continue to focus on expense control, with expense 
ratios that are significantly lower than our peer averages. Our percentage of general and administrative 
expense to average assets increased to 0.99% for the year ended December 3 1, 2004, from 0.91% for the 
year ended December 3 1, 2003, primarily due to the increase in general and administrative expense. The 
efficiency ratio decreased to 40.86% for the year ended December 31, 2004, from 41.25% for the year 
ended December 3 1,2003, primarily due to the increase in net interest income. 

Income Tax Expense 

For the year ended December 31, 2004, income tax expense totaled $106.1 million, representing an 
effective tax rate of 32.6%, compared to $96.4 million, representing an effective tax rate of 32.9%, for the 
year ended December 3 I, 2003. 

Asset Quality 

Non-performing assets increased $32.6 million to $66.1 million at December 31, 2005, from $33.5 million 
at December 3 1, 2004. Non-performing loans, the most significant component of non-performing assets, 
increased $32.4 million to $65.0 million at December 31, 2005, from $32.6 million at December 31, 2004. 
These increases were primarily due to increases in non-performing multi-family and one-to-four family 
mortgage loans. The increase in non-performing multi-family mortgage loans is primarily attributable to 
two large loans to unrelated borrowers. The first is a $5.4 million loan involving fraud. We have notified 
the applicable title insurance company of the existence of this fraud. They are defending our interest 
subject to a reservation of rights. The second is a $5.3 million loan where the borrower has become 
delinquent as a result of a large increase in his real estate taxes. The increase in non-performing one-to-four 
family mortgage loans is partially the result of an $1 1.5 million increase in loans which are classified as 
non-performing although they have only missed two payments, as previously discussed. At December 3 1, 
2005, non-performing multi-family loans totaled $26.3 million and had an average loan-to-value ratio of 
69.1% and an average debt service coverage ratio of 1.77 times. At December 3 1, 2005, non-performing 
one-to-four family mortgage loans totaled $35.7 million and had an average loan-to-value ratio of 64.9%. 
Loan-to-value ratios are based on current principal balance and original appraised value. While our non- 
performing foans at December 3 I ,  2005 have increased from December 3 1,2004, our non-performing loans 
continue to remain at low levels in relation to the size of our loan portfolio. The ratio of non-performing 
loans to total loans increased to 0.45% at December 3 1,2005, from 0.25% at December 3 1, 2004. Our ratio 
of non-performing assets to total assets increased to 0.30% at December 31,2005, from 0.14% at December 
3 1,2004. We have not experienced an increase in non-performing assets or delinquent loans as a result of 
the hurricanes in the Gulf Coast region of the United States during the latter half of 2005. See Item 1 ,  
"Business" for further discussion of our asset quality. 



Non-Performing Assets 

The following table sets forth information regarding non-performing assets. 

At December 31, 
(Dollars in Thousands) 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 
Non-accrual delinquent mortgage loans (1) $ 64,35 1 $3 1,462 $28,32 1 $3 1,997 $34,848 
Non-accrual delinquent consumer and other loans 500 544 792 1,485 99 1 
Mortgage loans delinquent 90 days or more and 

still accruin~ interest (21 176 573 563 1,035 1,277 
Total non-performing loans 65,027 32,579 29,676 34,517 37,116 
Real estate owned. net (3) 1.066 920 1,635 1.091 2,987 
Total non-performing assets $ 66.093 $33.499 $31.31 1 $35,608 $40.103 
Non-performing loans to total loans 0.45% 0.25% 0.23% 0.29% 0.31% 
Non-performing loans to total assets 0.29 0.14 0.13 0.16 0.16 
Non-performing assets to total assets 0.30 0.14 0.14 0.16 0.18 

(1) Includes multi-family and commercial real estate loans totaling $28.6 million, $1 1.5 million, $6.1 million, $2.9 
million and $3.6 million at December 31,2005,2004,2003,2002 and 2001, respectively. 

(2) Loans delinquent 90 days or more and still accruing interest consist solely of loans delinquent 90 days or more as 
to their maturity date but not their interest due. 

(3) Real estate acquired as a result of foreclosure or by deed in lieu of foreclosure is recorded at the lower of cost or 
fair value, less estimated selling costs. 

If all non-accrual loans had been performing in accordance with their original terms, we would have 
recorded interest income, with respect to such loans, of $3.8 million for the year ended December 3 1, 
2005, $1.8 million for the year ended December 3 1, 2004 and $1.9 million for the year ended December 
3 1, 2003. This compares to actual payments recorded as interest income, with respect to such Ioans, of 
$2.4 million for the year ended December 3 1, 2005, $1 -0 million for the year ended December 3 1, 2004 
and $1.2 million for the year ended December 3 1,2003. 

As previously discussed, we discontinue accruing interest on mortgage loans when such loans become 90 
days delinquent as to their interest due, even though in some instances the borrower has only missed two 
payments. As of December 31, 2005, $28.1 million of mortgage loans classified as non-performing had 
missed only two payments, compared to $12.3 million at December 3 1,2004. 

Excluded from non-performing assets are restructured loans that have complied with the terms of their 
restructure agreement for a satisfactory period and have, therefore, been returned to performing status. 
Restructured loans that are in compliance with their restructured terms totaled $1.6 million at December 
31, 2005, $2.8 million at December 31, 2004, $3.9 million at December 31, 2003, $5.0 million at 
December 3 1,2002 and $5.4 million at December 3 I ,  200 1. 

In addition to non-performing assets, we had $813,000 of potential problem loans at December 31, 2005 
compared to $4.1 million at December 31, 2004. Such loans are 60-89 days delinquent as shown in the 
following table. 



Delinquent Loans 

The following table shows a comparison of  delinquent loans at December 3 I ,  2005,2004 and 2003. 

Principal Balance of Loans Past Due 
60-89 Days 90 Days or More 

Number Number 
(Dollars in Thousands) of Loans Amount of Loans Amount 
At December 31,2005: 

Mortgage loans: 
One-to-four family 6 $ 174 152 $35,727 
Multi-family 1 101 26 26,256 
Commercial real estate 6 2,544 

Consumer and other loans 47 538 47 500 
Total delinauent loans 54 $ 813 23 1 $65.027 
Delinquent loans to total loans 0.0 1 % 0.45% 

At December 31,2004: 
Mortgage loans: 

One-to-four famif y 6 $ 805 98 $20,497 
Multi-family 4 460 12 8,843 
Commercial real estate 4 2,695 
Construction 2 1,994 

Consumer and other loans 56 880 57 544 
Total delinauent loans 68 $4.139 171 $32.579 
Delinquent loans to total loans 0.03% 0.25% 

At December 31,2003: 
Mortgage loans: 

One-to-four family 5 $ 192 143 $22,744 
Multi-family 1 60 10 3,448 
Commercial real estate - 4 2,692 

Consumer and other loans 83 587 90 792 
Total delin uent loans 1 247 29.676 
Delinquent loans to total loans 0.01% 0.23% 

Classified Assets 

The following table sets forth the carrying value of our assets, exclusive of general valuation allowances, 
classified as special mention, substandard or doubtful at December 31, 2005. There were no assets 
classified as loss at December 3 1,2005. 

Special Mention Substandard Doubtful 
Number Number Number 

(Dollars in Thousands) of Loans Amount of Loans Amount of Loans Amount 
Loans: 

Mortgage loans: 
One-to-four family - $ -  155 $35,749 4 $ 252 
Multi-family 9 19,307 27 23,013 1 5,357 
Commercial rea1 estate 1 1,140 4 1,383 1 1,012 
Construction 3 1,50 1 - - 

Consumer and other loans 47 500 
Total loans 13 2 1,948 233 60,645 6 6,62 1 
Real estate owned: 

One-to-four family 5 1,066 
Total classified assets 13 $2 1.948 238 $61 -71 1 6 $6.62 1 



Allowance for Losses 

The folIowing table sets forth changes in our allowances for losses on loans and RE0 for the periods 
indicated. 

At or For the Year Ended December 31. 
(Dollars in Thousands1 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 
Allowance for losses on loans: 
Balance at beginning of year $82,758 $83,121 $83,546 $82,285 $79,93 I 

Provision charged to operations 2,307 4,028 
Charge-offs: 

One-to-four family (749) (231) (1 94) (325) (506) 
Multi-family (83) (3) 
Commercial real estate (650) (268) (464) 
Construction (28 1) 
Consumer and other loans (7061 (6561 (1,142) (1.251) (1,554) 

Total charge-offs (2,105) (887) f 1,336) (2.208) (2,527) 
Recoveries: 

One-to-four family 140 78 111 24 1 263 
Multi-family 34 83 
Commercial real estate 20 29 1 
Construction 9 
Consumer and other loans 332 446 780 547 58 1 

Total recoveries 506 524 91 1 1.162 853 
Net charge-offs (1.599) (363) 1425) (1,046) ( 1,674) 

Balance at end of vear $81.159 $82.758 $83.121 $83.546 $82.285 

Net charge-offs to average loans outstanding 0.01% 0.00% 0.00% 0.01% 0.01% 
AIlowance for loan losses to tot& loans 0.56 0.62 0.66 0.69 0.68 
Allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans 124.81 254.02 280.10 242.04 22 1 .70 

Allowance for losses on REO: 
Balance at beginning of year $ - $ - $ 4  $ - $ 3  

Provision (recovery) recorded to operations 56 4 4 (64) 
Charge-offs (56) (8) (17) 
~ecoieries 78 

Balance at end of year $ $ $ $ 4 $ 

The following table sets forth our allocation of the allowance for loan losses by loan category and the 
percent of loans in each category to total loans receivable at the dates indicated. The portion of the 
allowance for loan losses allocated to each loan category does not represent the total available to absorb 
losses which may occur within the loan category, since the total allowance is available for losses 
applicable to the entire loan portfolio. . 

At December 31, 
2005 2004 2003 

% of Loans % of Loans YO of Loans 
to to to 

(Dollars in Thausandd Amount Total Loans Amount Total Loans Amount Total Loans 
One-to-four family $34,05 1 68.24% $36,697 68.68% $39,614 71.13% 
Multi-family 19,818 f 9.77 18,124 19.41 16,440 17.69 
Commercial real estate 1 1,437 7.52 1 1,785 7.17 1 1,006 6.98 
Construction 2,071 0.96 1,996 0.89 1,695 0.79 
Consumer and other loans 13.782 3.51 14.156 3.85 14.366 3.41 
1 83.121 100.00% 

At December 31. 

% of Loans % of Loans 
to to 

(Dollars in Thousands) Amount Total Loans Amount Total Loans 
One-to-four family $45,485 76.86% $49,122 83.59% 
Multi-family 12,449 13.35 8,612 9.05 
Commercial real estate 10,099 6.21 8,529 4.95 
Construction 786 0.47 1,329 0.42 
Consumer and other loans 14.727 3.1 I 14,693 1.99 
Total allowance for loan losses $83.546 100.00% $82.285 100.00% 



Impact of Accounting Standards and Interpretations 

In November 2005, the FASB issued FSP No. 115-1, which addresses the determination of when an 
investment is considered impaired, whether the impairment is other-than-temporary and how to measure 
an impairment loss. FSP No. 115-1 also addresses accounting considerations subsequent to the 
recognition of an other-than-temporary impairment on a debt security and requires certain disclosures 
about unrealized losses that have not been recognized as other-than-temporary impairments. FSP No. 
1 15-1 replaces the impairment guidance in Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 03-3, "The Meaning of 
Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments," with references to 
existing authoritative literature concerning other-than-temporary impairment determinations (principally 
SFAS No. 115, "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities," and SEC Staff 
Accounting Bulletin No. 59, "Accounting for Noncurrent Marketable Equity Securities"). Under FSP No. 
115-1, impairment losses must be recognized in earnings for the difference between the security's cost 
and its fair value at the financial statement date, without considering partial recoveries subsequent to that 
date. FSP No. 1 15-1 also requires that an investor recognize an other-than-temporary impairment loss 
when a decision to sell a security has been made and the investor does not expect the fair value of the 
security to fully recover prior to the expected time of sale. FSP No. 115-1 is effective for reporting 
periods beginning after December 15,2005. We do not expect our application of FSP No. 115-1 to have 
a material impact on our financial condition or results of operations. 

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R) which requires public entities to recognize the 
cost of employee services received in exchange for awards of equity instruments based on the grant-date 
fair value of those awards (with limited exceptions). The fair-value-based method in SFAS No. 123(R) is 
similar to the fair-value-based method in SFAS No. 123 in most respects. SFAS No. 123(R) applies to all 
awards granted after the required effective date and to awards modified, repurchased or cancelled after 
that date. Additionally, beginning on the required effective date, public entities will recognize 
compensation cost for the portion of outstanding awards for which the requisite service has not yet been 
rendered, based on the grant-date fair value of those awards calculated under SFAS No. 123 for either 
recognition or pro forma disclosures. The cumulative effect of initially applying SFAS No. 123(R), if 
any, is recognized as of the required effective date. For periods before the required effective date, public 
entities may elect, although they are not required, to retroactively restate financial statements for prior 
periods to recognize compensation cost on a basis consistent with the pro forma disclosures required for 
those periods by SFAS No. 123. SFAS No. 123(R) is effective as of the beginning of the first annual 
reporting period beginning after June 15, 2005. Our adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), effective January 1, 
2006, is expected to reduce our 2006 net income by approximately $1 .I  million with respect to our 
December 2005 option grants and approximately $1 60,000 with respect to option grants to directors made 
in January 2006, Additionaf equity grants that may be made in 2006 will also result in compensation 
expense. 

On December 22,2005, in anticipation of our adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), we accelerated the vesting 
of all outstanding unvested options which were granted to employees on December 17, 2003 and 
December 1 5, 2004. We recognized pre-tax compensation expense in 2005 of $1 1 1,000 as a result of the 
accelerated vesting of these options. The purpose of the acceleration was to eliminate compensation 
expense associated with these options in future periods upon our adoption of SFAS No. 123(R). The 
accelerated vesting eliminates pre-tax compensation expense of approximately $1 0.4 million which would 
have been recognized in future periods, including approximately $6.7 million in 2006. Shares acquired 
through the exercise of the accelerated options may not be sold prior to the earlier of the date the optionee 
terminates employment with us or the original vesting date. A number of the options which were 
accelerated were intended to qualify as incentive stock options when granted. The accelerated vesting 
disqualified most of such options from incentive stock option tax treatment. Upon the optionees' exercise 
of such disqualified options, we may realize certain tax benefits that would not have otherwise been 
available. 

See Note I and Note 16 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8, "Financial 
Statements and Supplementary Data," for additional disclosures regarding the impact of our adoption of 
SFAS No. 123(R). 



Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices 

The consolidated financial statements and notes thereto presented herein have been prepared in 
accordance with GAAP, which require the measurement of our financial position and operating results in 
terms of historical dollars without considering the changes in the relative purchasing power of money 
over time due to inflation. The impact of inflation is reflected in the increased cost of our operations. 
Unlike industrial companies, nearly all of our assets and liabilities are monetary in nature. As a result, 
interest rates have a greater impact on our performance than do the effects of general Ievels of inflation. 
Interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or, to the same extent, as the price of goods 
and services. 

ITEM 7A. Q U m I T A T m  AND QUALITATM DISCLOSfTRES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

As a financial institution, the primary component of our market risk is IRR. Net interest income is the 
primary component of our net income. Net interest income is the difference between the interest earned 
on our loans, securities and other interest-earning assets and the interest expense incurred on our deposits 
and borrowings. The yields, costs, and volumes of loans, securities, deposits and borrowings are directly 
affected by the levels of and changes in market interest rates. Additionally, changes in interest rates also 
affect the related cash flows of our assets and liabilities as the option to prepay assets or withdraw 
liabilities remains with our customers, in most cases without penalty. The objective of our IRR 
management policy is to maintain an appropriate mix and level of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet 
items to enable us to meet our growth andfor earnings objectives, while maintaining specified minimum 
capital levels as required by the OTS, in the case of Astoria Federal, and as established by our Board of 
Directors. We use a variety of analyses to monitor, control and adjust our asset and liability positions, 
primarily interest rate sensitivity gap analysis, or gap analysis, and net interest income sensitivity, or NII 
sensitivity, analysis. Additional IRR modeling is done by Astoria Federal in conformity with OTS 
requirements. In conjunction with performing these analyses we also consider related factors including, 
but not limited to, our overall credit profile, non-interest income and non-interest expense. We do not 
enter into financial transactions or hold financial instruments for trading purposes. 

Gap Analysis 

Gap analysis measures the difference between the amount of interest-earning assets anticipated to mature 
or reprice within specific time periods and the mount of interest-bearing liabilities anticipated to mature 
or reprice within the same time periods. The following table, referred to as the Gap Table, sets forth the 
amount of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities outstanding at December 3 1,2005 that we 
anticipate will reprice or mature in each of the future time periods shown using certain assumptions based 
on our historical experience and other market-based data available to us. The actual duration of mortgage 
loans and mortgage-backed securities can be significantly impacted by changes in mortgage prepayment 
activity. The major factors affecting mortgage prepayment rates are prevailing interest rates and related 
mortgage refinancing opportunities. Prepayment rates will also vary due to a number of other factors, 
including the regional economy in the area where the underlying collateral is located, seasonal factors, 
demographic variables and the assumability of the underlying mortgages. 

The Gap TabIe does not indicate the impact of general interest rate movements on our net interest income 
because the actual repricing dates of various assets and liabilities will differ from our estimates and it 
does not give consideration to the yields and costs of the assets and liabilities or the projected yields and 
costs to replace or retain those assets and liabilities. Callable features of certain assets and liabilities, in 
addition to the foregoing, may also cause actual experience to vary from that indicated. The uncertainty 
and volatility of interest rates, economic conditions and other markets which affect the value of these call 
options, as well as the financial condition and strategies of the holders of the options, increase the 
difficulty and uncertainty in predicting when the call options may be exercised. Among the factors 
considered in our estimates are current trends and historical repricing experience with respect to similar 
products. As a result, different assumptions may be used at different points in time. 



The Gap Table includes $2.18 billion of callable borrowings classified according to their maturity dates, 
in the more than one year to three years category, which are callable within one year and at various times 
thereafter. In addition, the Gap Table includes callable securities with an amortized cost of $107.8 
million classified according to their maturity dates, which are callable within one year and at various 
times thereafter. The classifications of callable borrowings and securities are consistent with our 
experience with these instruments in the current interest rate environment. As indicated in the Gap Table, 
our one-year cumulative gap at December 31, 2005 was negative 6.79%. This compares to a one-year 
cumulative gap of negative 2.87% at December 3 1,2004. The change in our one-year cumulative gap is 
primarily attributable to the increase in our certificates of deposit, including our Liquid CDs, as a result of 
the success of our various certificate of deposit campaigns throughout 2005 and 2004, partially offset by a 
decrease in our short-term borrowings. 

At December 31,2005 
More than More than 
One Year Three Years 

One Year to to More than 
fDolIars in Thousands) or Less Three Years Five Years Five Years Total 
Interest-earning assets: 

Mortgage loans ( I )  $4,28 1,54 1 $5,130,348 $3,980,822 $ 363,059 $13,755,770 
Consumer and other loans (I) 469,535 21,987 1 1,489 - 503,011 
Repurchase agreements 182,803 182,803 
Securities available-for-sale 418,554 677,356 60 1,047 232,393 1,929,350 
Securities held-to-maturity 1,442,630 2,014,629 1,273,99 1 7,570 4,73 8,820 
FHLB-NY stock 145,247 145,247 

Total interest-earning assets 6,795,063 7,844,320 5,867,349 748,269 2 1,255,OO 1 
Net unamortized purchase premiums 

and deferred costs (2) 27,263 28,323 22,335 1.903 79,824 
Net interest-earninp assets (3) 6322,326 7,872,643 5389,684 750.172 2 1,334,825 
Interest-bearing liabilities: 

Savings 1 16,785 233,572 233,572 1,926,968 2,s 10,897 
Money market 514,198 30,750 30,750 73,032 648,730 
NOW and demand deposit 79,175 158,348 158,348 1,173,988 1,569,859 
Liquid CDs 61 9,784 6 19,784 
Certificates of deposit 4,267,6 19 2,549,492 613,812 30,262 7,46 1, 185 
Borrowings, net (4) 2,743.285 4.5 1 8,722 299,066 378,215 7,939,288 

Total interest-bearing liabilities 8,340,846 7,490,884 1,335,548 3,582,465 20,749,743 
Interest sensitivitv eao (1.5 18.520) 381.759 4.554.136 (2.832.293) $ 585.082 
Cumulative interest sensitivity gao W.5 18.520) $(I. 136.761 t $3.41 7.375 $ 585.082 

CumuIative interest sensitivity 
gap as a percentage of total assets (6.79)% (5,08)% 15.27% 2.61% 

Cumulative net interest-earning 
assets as a percentage of 
interest-bearing liabilities 8 1.79% 92.82% 119.91% 102.82% 

( I )  Mortgage and consumer and other Ioans include loans held-for-sale and exclude non-performing loans and the ailowance 
for loan losses. 

(2) Net unamortized purchase premiums and deferred costs are prorated. 
(3) Includes securities available-for-sale at amortized cost. 
(4) Excludes the hedge accounting adjustment on our Junior Subordinated Debentures. 

NII Sensitivity Analysis 

In managing IRR, we also use an internal income simulation model for our NII sensitivity analyses. 
These analyses measure changes in projected net interest income over various time periods resulting from 
hypothetical changes in interest rates. The interest rate scenarios most commonly analyzed reflect 
gradual and reasonable changes over a specified time period, which is typically one year. The base net 
interest income projection utilizes similar assumptions as those reflected in the Gap Table, assumes that 
cash flows are reinvested in similar assets and liabilities and that interest rates as of the reporting date 



remain conslant over the projection period. For each alternative interest rate scenario, corresponding 
changes in the cash flow md repricing asmptions of eaqb financial instrument are made to determine 
the impact on net interest income. 

Assuming the entire yield curve was to increase 200 basasis pohts, through quarterly parallel increments of 
50 basis points and remain at that level thereafter, our projected net interest income for the twelve month 
period beginning January 1, 2006 would decrease by approximately 5.94% from the base projection. At 
December 31, 2004, in the up 200 basis point scenario, our projected net interest income for the twelve 
month period beginning January 1,2005 woufd have decreased by appruximaejy 4.50% from the base 
projection. Assuming the entire yiefd curve was to decrease 200 basis pints, &rough tpafteriy paralie1 
decrements of 50 basis points and remain at that level thereafter, our prqjected net interest income for the 
twelve month period beginning January 1, 2006 would increase by approximately 2.12% from the base 
projection. The interest rate environment which existed at December 31, 2004 prevented us from 
performing an income simulation for a decline in Interest rates ofthe same magnitude and timing as our 
rising inkrest rate simulation, since the assumptions which woufd have been used for a down 200 basis 
point interest rate scenario related to asset and liability pricing, market yields and customer behavior, 
given the low level of interest rates, would not have produced reasonable and meaningful results. 
However, assuming the entire yield curve was to decrease 100 basis points, through quarterly parallel 
decrements of 25 basis points, and remain at that [eve1 thereafter, our projected net interest income for the 
twefve month period beginning January 1,2005 would have decreased by appruximakly 1.12% from the 
base projection. At December 3 1,2005, in the down f 00 basis point scenario, our projected net interest' 
income for the twelve month period beginning January 1,2006 would increase by approximately 1.87% 
from the base projection. 

Various shortcomings are inherent in both the Gap Tabfe and NII sensitivity analyses. Certain 
assumptions may not reflect the manner in which a&ual yiefds and costs respond to market changes, 
Similarly, prepayment estimates and similar assumptions are subjective in nature, involve uncertainties 
and, therefore, cannot be determined with precision. Changes in interest rates may also affect our 
operating environment and operating strategies as well as those of our competitors. In addition, certain 
adjustable rate assets have firnitations on the magnitude of rate changes over specified periods of time. 
Accordingly, a.it3rough our NII sensitivity anaiyses may provide an indicatio~ of our fRR exposure, such 
analyses we not intended to and do not provide a precise forecast of the effect of changes in market 
interest rates on our net interest income and our actual results will differ, Additionally, certain assets, 
liabilities and items of income and expense which may be affected by changes in interest rates, albeit to a 
much lesser degree, and which do not affect net interest income, are excluded from this anaiysis. These 
inciude income from BOLI, changes in the fair value of MSR and the mark-to-market adjustments on 
certain derivative instrumertts. With respect to these items done, and assuming the entir~ yiefd curve was 
to increase 200 basis paints, through quarterly paraifel increments of 50 basis points and remain at that 
level thereafter, our projected net income for the twelve month period beginning January I ,  2006 would 
increase by approximately $4.8 million. Conversely, assuming the entire yieild curve was to decrease 200 
basis points, though quarterjy parallel decrements of 50 basis points, and remain at that kvei thereafter, 
our projected net income for the twefve month period beginning January 1, 2006 would decrease by 
approximately $9.3 million with respect to these items alone. 

For information regarding our credit risk, see "Asset Quality," in Item 7, "MMD&A." 

ITEM 8. FIXUWXAL STATEMENTS AM) SWP LEMENTARY DATA 

For our Consolidated Financial Statements, see the index on page 76. 

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGmEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING 
ANID FINANCIAL IIISCLUSUW 

None. 



ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

George L. Engelke, Jr., our Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer, and Monte N. Redman, our 
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our 
disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act, 
as of December 3 1, 2005. Based upon their evaluation, they each found that our disclosure controls and 
procedures were effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports we file and 
submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported as and when required 
and that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management as appropriate to allow 
timely decisions regarding required disclosure. 

Effective December 1, 2005, we outsourced our mortgage loan servicing activities under a sub-servicing 
agreement with DMI. Under this agreement, DM1 services mortgage loans on our behalf, where in the 
past we performed such activity ourselves. In connection with the outsourcing, we substantially changed 
our internal controls over financial reporting with respect to our mortgage loan servicing operation. Both 
prior to and following the transfer of servicing activities to DMI, we assessed the effectiveness of our 
internal controls over financial reporting related to our mortgage loan servicing operation, as part of our 
overall assessment of internal controls over financial reporting, and found such controls, both before and 
after the transfer of servicing activities, to be effective based upon the criteria set forth by the Committee 
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control - Integrated Framework. 

Except as noted in the preceding paragraph, there were no changes in our internal controls over financial 
reporting that occurred during the three months ended December 3 1, 2005 that have materially affected, 
or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting. 

See page 77 for our Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and page 78 for 
the related Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. 

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act Section 302 Certifications regarding the quality of our public disclosures have 
been filed with the SEC as exhibit 3 1.1 and exhibit 3 1.2 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 

ITEM 9B. OTHER I N F O m n O N  

None. 
PART III 

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF ASTORIA FINANCIAL 
CORPORATION 

Information regarding directors and executive officers who are not directors of Astoria Financial 
Corporation is presented in the tables under the heading "Board Nominees, Directors and Executive 
Officers" and under the heading "Committees and Meetings of the Board" in our definitive Proxy 
Statement to be utilized in connection with our Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on Nay 17, 
2006, which will be filed with the SEC within f 20 days from December 3 1 ,  2005, and is incorporated 
herein by reference. 

Audit Committee Financial Expert 

Information regarding the audit committee of our Board of Directors, including information regarding 
audit committee financial experts serving on the audit committee, is presented under the heading 
"Committees and Meetings of the Board" in our definitive Proxy Statement to be utilized in connection 
with our Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 17,2006, which will be filed with the SEC 
within 120 days from December 3 1,2005, and is incorporated herein by reference. 



The Audit Committee Charter is available on our investor relations website at http://ir.astoriafederal.com 
under the heading "Corporate Governance." In addition, copies of our Audit Committee Charter will be 
provided to shareholders upon written request to Astoria Financial Corporation, Investor Relations 
Department, One Astoria Federal Plaza, Lake Success, New York 1 1042 at no charge. 

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics 

We have adopted a written code of business conduct and ethics that applies to our directors, officers and 
employees, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, which is available on 
our investor relations website at http:Ni-r.astoriafederal.com under the heading "Corporate Governance." 
In addition, copies of our code of business conduct and ethics will be provided to shareholders upon 
written request to Astoria Financial Corporation, Investor Relations Department, One Astoria Federal 
Plaza, Lake Success, New York 1 1042 at no charge. 

Corporate Governance 

Our Corporate Governance Guidelines and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Charter 
are available on our investor relations website at http://ir.astoriafederal.com under the heading "Corporate 
Governance." In addition, copies of such documents will be provided to shareholders upon written 
request to Astoria Financial Corporation, Investor Relations Department, One Astoria Federal Plaza, Lake 
Success, New York 1 1042 at no charge. 

ITEM 11. EXFZUTJYE COMPENSATION 

Information relating to executive (and director) compensation is included under the headings "Summary 
Compensation Table," "Fiscal Year End OptionlSAR Values," "Pension Plans," "Director 
Compensation," "Emp1oyment Agreements," "Incentive Option Plans," that portion of the "Report of the 
Compensation Committee on Executive Compensation" entitled "Long-term Incentive Compensation," 
and "Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation" in our definitive Proxy Statement to 
be utilized in connection with our Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 17, 2006 which 
will be filed with the SEC within 120 days from December 31, 2005, and is incorporated herein by 
reference. 

The Compensation Committee Charter is available on our investor relations website at 
http:l/ir.astoriafederal.com under the heading "Corporate Governance." In addition, copies of our 
Compensation Committee Charter will be provided to shareholders upon written request to Astoria 
Financial Corporation, Investor Relations Department, One Astoria Federal Plaza, Lake Success, New 
York 1 1042 at no charge. 

ITEM 12. SECWTY OWNERSm OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND 
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 

Information relating to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and management is included under 
the headings "Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners" and "Security Ownership of 
Management" in our definitive Proxy Statement to be utilized in connection with our Annual Meeting of 
Shareholders to be held on May 17, 2006, which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days from 
December 3 1,2005, and is incorporated herein by reference. 



The following chart provides information as of December 3 1, 2005 with respect to compensation plans, 
including individual compensation arrangements, under which equity securities of Astoria Financial 
corpor&on are authorized for issuance: 

- 

Number of 
securities to be issued 

upon exercise of Weighted-Average 
outstanding options, exercise price of 
warrants and rights outstanding options, 

and vesting of shares of warrants, rights 

Plan Category (I) restricted stock and restricted stock (4) 
(a) (b) 

Equity compensation pfans 
approved by security 
holders (2) 11,325,528 $20. I4 

Number of securities 
remaining available for 
future issuance under 
equity compensation 

pfans (excluding 
securities reflected in 

column (a)) 
( 4  

Equity compensation plans 
not approved by security 
holders 

Total (3) 1 f ,325,528 $20.14 3,952,072 

(1) Excluded is any employee benefit plan that is intended to meet the qualification requirements of Section 401(a) of the 
Intenla1 Revenue Code, such as the Astoria Federal ESOP and the Astoria Federal Incentive Savings Plan. Also 
exciuded are warrants or rights issuable to all of our security holders as such on a pro rata basis, such as those issuable 
pursuant to the Rights Agreement between us and ChaseMeiion Shareholder Services, L.L.C., as Rights Agent, dated as 
of July 17, 1996, as amended. The oniy equity security issuable under the equity compensation plans referenced in the 
table is our common stock. All equity compensation plans reflected in the table include stock option plans or 
arrangements which provide for the issuance of our common stock upon the exercise of options. In addition, the 2005 
Re-designated, Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan for Officers and Employees of Astoria Financial 
Corporation, or the 2005 Plan, also provides for the grant of equity settled stock appreciation rights and awards of 
restricted stock or equity settled restricted stock units. Of the number of securities to be issued and the number of 
securities remaining available in the above table, t ,420,928 and 3,829,072, respectively, were authorized pursuant to 
the 2005 Pian. 

(2) With respect to "equity compensation plans approved by security holders," included are 27,000 shares of our common 
stock with respect to which options were granted pursuant to the terms and conditions of the merger agreement related 
to the acquisition of The Greater New York Savings Bank and 28,896 shares of our common stock with respect to 
which options were granted pursuant to the terms and conditions of the merger agreement related to the acquisition of 
Long Idand Bancorp, Inc. Both of these merger agreements were approved by our stockhoiders. Neither arrangement 
provides for the future issuance or grant of additional options, warrants, rights or restricted stock. 

(3) Of the shares available for future issuance, 3,829,072 were authorized pursuant to the 2005 Plan and 123,000 were 
authorized pursuant to the 1999 Stock Option Plan for Outside Directors of Astoria Financial Corporation, or the I999 
Plan. The 2005 Plan and the 1999 Plan provide for automatic adjustments to outstanding options or grants upon certain 
changes in capitalization. In the event of any stock split, stock dividend or other event generally affecting the number 
of shares of our common stock held by each person who is then a record holder of our common stock, the number of 
shares covered by each outstanding option, grant or award and the number of shares available for grant ar award under 
the plans shall be adjusted to account for such event. 

(4) Shares of restricted stock have an exercise price of zero. 

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHWS AND RELATED TMSACTIONS 

Information regarding certain relationships and related transactions is incfuded under the headings 
"Transactions with Certain Related Persons" and "Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider 
Participation'' in our definitive Proxy Statement to be utiiized in connection with our Annual Meeting of 
Shareholders to be held on May 17, 2006, which will be filed with the SEC within 120 days from 
December 3 1,2005, and is incorporated herein by reference. 



ITEM 14. PFUNCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES 

Information regarding principal accountant fees and services is included under the headings "Audit Fees," 
"Audit-Related Fees," "Tax Fees" and "All Other Fees" in our definitive Proxy Statement to be utilized in 
connection with our Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on May 17, 2006, which will be filed 
with the SEC within 120 days from December 3 1,2005, and is incorporated herein by reference. 

PART IV 

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 

(a) 1. Financial Statements 

See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements on page 76. 

2. Financial Statement Schedules 

Financial Statement Schedules have been omitted because they are not applicable or the required 
information is shown in the Consolidated Financial Statements or Notes thereto under Item 8, 
"Financial Statements and Supplementary Data." 

(b) Exhibits 

See Index of Exhibits on page 1 17. 
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MANAGEMENT REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING 

The management of Astoria Financial Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
adequate internal control over financial reporting. Astoria Financial Corporation's internal control system 
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance to the company's management and board of 
directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of published financial statements. 

Our internal control over financial reporting includes policies and procedures that pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect transactions and 
dispositions of assets; provide reasonable assurances that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and 
the directors of Astoria Financial Corporation; and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or 
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of Astoria Financial Corporation's assets 
that could have a material effect on our financial statements. 

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even 
those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial 
statement preparation and presentation. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future 
periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Astoria Financial Corporation management assessed the effectiveness of the company's internal control 
over financial reporting as of December 3 1, 2005. In making this assessment, we used the criteria set 
forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal Control- 
Integrated Framework. Based on our assessment we believe that, as of December 31, 2005, the 
company's internal control over financial reporting is effective based on those criteria. 

Astoria Financial Corporation's independent registered public accounting firm has issued an audit report 
on our assessment of, and the effective operation of, the company's internal control over financial 
reporting as of December 3 I ,  2005. This report appears on page 78. 



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To The Board of Directors andStockholders of Astoria Financial Corporation 

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management Report on 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Astoria Financial Corporation and subsidiaries (the 
"Company") maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, 
based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of 
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission ("'COSO). The Company's management is 
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the 
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
management's assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over 
financial reporting based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material 
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, 
evaluating management's assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of 
internal control, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 
We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 
control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance 
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the 
assets of the company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, 
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations 
of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention 
or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the company's assets that could have 
a material effect on the financial statements. 

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect 
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the 
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

In our opinion, management's assessment that the Company maintained effective internal control over 
financial reporting as of December 3 1, 2005, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria 
established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework. issued by COSO. Also, in our opinion, the 
Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 3 1, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by 
COSO. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States), the consolidated statements of financial condition of Astoria Financial Corporation 
and subsidiaries as of December 3 1, 2005 and 2004, and the related consolidated statements of income, 
changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended 
December 31, 2005, and our report dated March 8, 2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on those 
consolidated financial statements. 

New York, New York 
March 8,2006 



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

To The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Astoria Financial Corporation 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of Astoria Financial 
Corporation and subsidiaries (the "Company") as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related 
consolidated statements of income, changes in stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the years 
in the three-year period ended December 31, 2005. These consolidated financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these 
consolidated financial statements based on our audits. 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the mounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of Astoria Financial Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 3 1,2005 
and 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year 
period ended December 3 I,  2005, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight 
Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting as of 
December 3 1, 2005, based on criteria established in Internal Control-htegrated Framework issued by 
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and our report dated March 8, 
2006 expressed an unqualified opinion on management's assessment of, and the effective operation of, 
internal control over financial reporting. 

New York, New York 
March 8,2006 



ASTORTA FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDLARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION 

At December 31, 
(In T;ilousands, Except Share Data) 2005 2004 

ASSETS: 
Cash and due from banks $ 169,234 $ 138,809 
Repurchase agreements 182,803 267,578 
Available-for-sale securities: 

Encumbered 1,598,320 2,104,239 
Unencumbered 243 $03 1 302,644 

1,841,351 2,406,883 
Held-to-maturity securities, fair value of $4,627,013 and $6,306,760, respectively: 

Encumbered 4,500,867 5,273,385 

Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock, at cost 145,247 163,700 
Loans held-for-sale, net 23,651 23,802 
Loans receivable 14,392,293 13,263,279 
Allowance for loan losses (81,159) (82,758) 
Loans receivable, net 14,311,134 13,180,521 
Mortgage servicing rights, net 16,502 16,799 
Accrued interest receivable 80,3 18 79,144 
Premises and equipment, net 151,494 157,107 
Goodwill 185,151 185,151 
Bank owned life insurance 382,613 374,7 19 
Other assets 159,820 1 18,720 
Total assets $ 22,380,271 $ 23,415,869 

LIABILITIES: 
Deposits 
Reverse repurchase agreements 
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York advances 
Other borrowings, net 
Mortgage escrow h d s  
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 157,134 130,925 
Total liabilities 21,030,044 22,046,105 

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY: 
Preferred stock, $1 .OO par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized: 

Series A (1,800,000 shares authorized and -0- shares issued and outstanding) 
Series B (2,000,000 shares authorized and -0- shares issued and outstanding) 

Common stock, $.01 par value (200,000,000 shares authorized; 
166,494,888 shares issued; and 104,967,280 and 110,304,669 
shares outstanding, respectively) 

Additional paid-in capital 
Deferred compensation 
Retained earnings 
Treasury stock (6 l,X?7,608 and 56,190,2 19 shares, at cost, respectively) 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 
Unallocated common stock held by ESOP (6,465,273 and 6,802,146 

Total liabilities and stockholders' eauitv 

See acconzpanying Notes to Consolidded Financial Sturemeplts. 



ASTORlA FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLmATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 

For the Year Ended December 31, 
J'ln Thousands, Except Share Data) 2005 2004 2003 
Interest income: 

Mortgage loans: 
One-to-four family $ 459,929 $ 428,229 $ 466,544 
Multi-family, commercial real 

estate and construction 239,119 220,703 203,785 
Consumer and other loans 31,160 21,312 19,247 
Mortgage-backed and other securities 340,626 371,044 355,564 
Federal funds sold and repurchase agreements 6,123 1,140 1,538 
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York stock 6,030 3,473 10,613 

Total interest income 1,082,987 1,045,901 1,057,291 
Interest expense: 

Deposits 
Borrowings 322,808 337,906 452,502 

Total interest expense 604,207 575,335 677,753 
Net interest income 478,780 470,566 379,538 
Provision for loan losses - - - 
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 478,780 470,566 379,538 
Non-interest income: 

Customer service fees 66,256 58,524 59,841 
Other loan fees 4,980 4,805 7,556 
Net gain on sales of securities 4,65 1 7,346 
Other-than-temporary impairment write-down of securities (16,520) - 
Mortgage banking income, net 6,015 4,715 10,291 
Income ftom bank owaed life insurance 16,446 17,134 19,978 
Other 8,502 6,775 14,549 

Total non-interest income 102,199 80,084 119,561 
Non-interest expense: 

General and administrative: 
Compensation and benefits 
Occupancy, equipment and systems 
Federal deposit insurance premiums 
Advertising 
Other 35,047 33,377 27,907 

Total non-fnterest expense 228,734 225,011 205,877 
Income before income tax expense 352,245 325,639 293,222 
Income tax expense 118,442 106,102 96,376 
Net income $ 233,803 $ 219,537 $ 196,846 
Basic earninrrs r>er common share $ 2.30 $ 2.03 $ 1.68 " .  
Diluted earnings per common share $ 2.26 $ 2.00 $ 1.66 
Basic weighted average common shares 101,476,376 107,930,909 113,574,956 
Diluted weighted alrerage common and 

common equivalent shares 

See accompanying Notes to Comlidated Financial Statements. 



ASTORIA FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2005,2004 and 2003 

Accumulated Unallocated 
Additional Other Common 

Preferred Common Paid-in Deferred Retained Treasury Comprehensive Stock Held 
jIn Thousands, Except Share Data) Total Stock Stock Capital Compensation Earnings Stock Income (Loss) by ESOP 

Balance at December 31,2002 $ 1,553,998 

Comprehensive income: 
Net income 
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax: 

Net unrealized loss on securities 
Amoxtization of unrealized loss on securities 

transferred to held-to-mahuity 
Reclassfication of loss on cash flow hedge 
Minimum pension liability adjustment 

Compr&ensive income 
Common stock repurchased (10,610,700 shares) 
Redemption of preferred stock 
Dividends on common and preferred stock 

($0.57 per share and $2.25 per share, 
respectively) and amortization of 
purchase premium 

Exercise of stock options and related tax benefit 
(1,407,355 shares issued) 

Amortization relating to allocation of ESOP stock 

Balance at December 31,2003 1,396,531 - 1,665 798,583 1,480,991 (81 1,993) (46,489) (26,226) 

Comprehensive income: 
Net income 
Other comprehensive income (Ioss), net of tau: 

Net unrealized gain on securities 
Reclassification of loss on cash flow hedge 
Minimum pension liability adjustment 

Comprehensive income 
Common stock repurchased (9,067,500 shares) 
Didends on common stock ($0.67 per share) 
Exercise of stock options and related tax benefit 

(1,366,788 shares issued) 
Amoxthtion relating to allocation of ESOP stock 

Balance at December 31,2004 1,369,764 - 1,665 811,777 1,623,571 (1,013,726) (28,592) (24,93 1) 

Comprehensive income: 
Net income 233,803 233,803 
Other comprehensive (Ioss) income, net of tax: 

Net unrealized loss on securities (21,083) @1,083) 
Reclassification of loss on cash flow hedge 191 191 
Minimum pension liability adjustment (52) (52) 

Comprehensive income 212,859 
Common stock repurchased (6,582,500 shares) (180,944) - (180,944) 
Dividends on common stock ($0.80 per share) (81,199) (81,199) 
Exercise and acceleration of vesting of stock 

options and related tax benefit 
(1,048,283 shares issued) 20,488 4,385 (3,217) 19,320 

Restricted stock grants (196,828 shares) - (5,712) 1,966 3,746 
Amortization relating to earned portion of 

restricted stock and allocation of ESOP stock 9,259 7,940 76 1,243 

Balance at December 31, 2005 $1,350,227 S - $1,665 $824,102 $(5,636) $1,774,924 1(1,171,604) S(49,536) $(23,688) 

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. 



ASTORIA FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIAILUES 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Year Ended Deeeznber 31, 
(In Thousands) 2005 2004 2003 

Cash flows from operating activities: 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net 

cash provided by operating activkies: 
Net premium amortization on mortgage lows and 

mortgage-backed securities 
Net amortization on consumer and other loans, 

other securities and bornwings 
Net provision for real estate losses 
Depreciation and amortization 
Net gain on sales of loans and securities 
Other-than-temporary impaiment writedown of securities 
Gain on sale of joint venture real estate investmmt 
On'ginations of loans held-for-safe 
Proceeds from sales and principal repayments of Ioans held-for-sale 
Amortization relating to earned portion of restricted stock and 

allocation of ESOP stock 9,259 8,691 7,172 
(Increase) decrase in accrued interest receivable (1$174) (1,188) 10,952 
Mortgage servicing rights amortization, valuation allowance adjustments 

and capitalized amounts, net 297 1,153 2,459 
Income from bank owned life insurance, net of insurance proceeds received (7,894) (4,4091 (I 1,412) 
(Increase) decrease in other assets (26,232) (6,528) 12,376 
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses and other liabilities 27,530 (453) (8,929) 
Net cash provided by operating activities 271,558 277,436 358,196 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Originations of loans receivable (3,390,543) (3,205,083) (5,468,504) 
Loan purchases &rough third parties f 882,590) (1,171,606) (1,550,100) 
Principal payments on loans receivable 3,118,423 3,769,995 6,344,634 
Purchases of securities heid-to-maturity (177,599) (2,475,0961 (5,521,833) 
Purchases of securities available-for-sale (25) (596,765) (3,780,994) 
Principal payments on securities held-to-maturity 1,749,866 1,957,248 4,729,460 
Principal payments on securities available-for-sale 530,439 692,460 2,343,040 
Proceeds from sales of securities available-for-sale 170,189 t,457:010 
Net redemptions of FWLB-NY stock 18,453 49,750 34, 1 00 
Proceeds from sales of real estate owned, net 2,002 2,157 1,528 
Purchases of premises and equipma% net of proceeds from sales (8,333) (1 01478) (1 5,266) 
Net proceeds from sale of joint venture red estate investment 10,140 
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 960,093 (817,229) (1,416,7251 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Net increase in deposits 487,198 1,136.663 1 19,398 
Net (decrease) increase in borrowings with original terms of three months or less (1,360,000) 870,000 810,000 
Proceeds from bo~owings wifh original terms greater than three months 800,000 2,400,000 1,700,000 
Repayments of borrowings with original terns greater than three months (970,000) f3z435,000) (1,700,000) 
Net increase in mortgage escrow funds 2,841 13,453 4,282 
Common stock repurchased (1 80,944) (225,052) (195,471) 
Cash dividends paid to stockholders (81,199) (71,982) (72,076) 
Redemption of preferred stock (54,500) 
Cash received for options exercised 16,103 f 8,344 8,793 
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (1,286,001) 706,426 620,426 

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (54,350) 166,633 (438,103) 
Cash and cash equivaients at beginning of year 406,387 239.754 677,857 
Cash and cash eqkfalents at end of year $ 352,037 $ 406,387 $ 239,754 

Supplemental disclosures: 
Cash paid during the yeac 

Interest $ 606,084 $ 587,373 $ 680,504 

Income taxes $ 104,786 $ 99,892 s 88,478 

Additions to real estate owned .S 2,203 $ 1,443 $ 2,075 



ASTORIA FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(I )  Summary of SigniJicant Accounting Policies 

The following significant accounting and reporting policies of Astoria Financial Corporation and subsidiaries conform 
to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP, and are used in preparing and presenting these consolidated 
financial statements. 

(a} Basis of Presenration 

The accompanying consoiidated financial statements include the accounts of Astoria Financial Corporation and its 
wholly-owned subsidiaries: Astoria Federal Savings and Loan Association and its subsidiaries, referred to as Astoria 
Federal, and AF Insurance Agency, Inc. As used in this annual report, '"e," "us"and "our" refer to Astoria Financial 
Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries. All significant inter-company accounts and transactions have been 
eliminated in consolidation. 

In addition to Astoria Federal and AF Insurance Agency, Inc., we have another subsidiary, Astoria Capital Trust I, 
which is not consolidated with Astoria Financial Corporation for financial reporting purposes in accordance with 
Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, revised Interpretation No. 46, "Consolidation of Variable Interest 
Entities, an interpretation of ARB No. 5 1," or FIN 46(R). See Note 8 for a further discussion of Astoria Capital Trust I. 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires us to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. The 
determination of our allowance for loan losses, the valuation of mortgage servicing rights, or MSR, and judgments 
regarding goodwill and securities impairment are particularly critical because they involve a higher degree of 
complexity and subjectivity and require estimates and assumptions about highly uncertain matters. Actual results may 
differ from our estimates and assumptions. Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year aniounts to conform 
to the current year presentation. 

(b} Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For the purpose of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and due from banks and federal funds 
sold and repurchase agreements with original maturities of three months or less. Astoria Federal is required by the 
Federal Reserve System to maintain non-interest bearing cash reserves equal to a percentage of certain deposits. The 
reserve requirement totaled $46.8 million at December 3 1,2005 and $47.9 million at December 3 1,2004. 

(c} Repurchase Agreements (Securities Purchased Under Agreements to ReseII) 

We purchase securities under agreements to resell (repurchase agreements). These agreements represent short-term 
loans and are reflected as an asset in the consolidated statements of financial condition. We may sell, loan or otherwise 
dispose of such securities to other parties in the normal course of our operations. The same securities are to be resold at 
the maturity of the repurchase agreements. 

(4 Securities 

Management determines the appropriate classification of securities at the time of acquisition. Our available-for-sale 
portfolio is carried at estimated fair value, with any unrealized gains and losses, net of taxes, reported as accumulated 
other comprehensive income/loss in stockholders' equity. Debt securities which we have the positive intent and ability 
to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity and are carried at amortized cost. Premiums and discounts are 
recognized as adjustments to interest income using the interest method over the remaining period to contractual 
maturity, adjusted for estimated prepayments when applicable. Gains and losses on the sale of all securities are 
determined using the specific identification method and are reflected in earnings when realized. For the years ended 
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, we did not maintain a trading portfolio. We conduct a periodic review and 
evaluation of the securities portfolio to determine if the fair value of any security has declined below its carrying value 
and whether such decline is other-than-temporary. If such decline is deemed other-than-temporary, the security is 
written down to a new cost basis and the resulting loss is charged to earnings. 



ASTORIA FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued) 

(e) Loans Heldjor-Sale 

Generally, we originate fifteen year and thirty year fixed rate one-to-four family mortgage loans for sale to various 
government-sponsored enterprises, or GSEs, or other investors on a servicing released or retained basis. The sale of 
such loans is usually arranged through a master commitment on a mandatory delivery or best efforts basis. In addition, 
student loans are sold to the Student Loan Marketing Association generally before repayment begins during the grace 
period of the loan. 

Loans held-for-sale are carried at the lower of cost or estimated fair value, as determined on an aggregate basis. Net 
unrealized losses, if any, are recognized in a valuation allowance through charges to earnings. Premiums and discounts 
and origination fees and costs on loans held-for-sale are deferred and recognized as a component of the gain or loss on 
sale. Gains and losses on sales of loans held-for-sale are recognized on settlement dates and are determined by the 
difference between the sale proceeds and the allocated cost basis of the loans. 

O) Loans Receivable 

Loans receivable are carried at the unpaid principal balances, net of unamortized premiums and discounts and deferred 
loan origination costs and fees, which are recognized as yield adjustments using the interest method. We generally 
amortize these amounts over the contractual life of the related loans, adjusted for estimated prepayments when 
applicable. 

We discontinue accruing interest on mortgage loans when such loans become 90 days delinquent as to their interest due. 
We discontinue accruing interest on consumer and other loans when such loans become 90 days delinquent as to their 
payment due. In addition, we reverse all previously accrued and uncollected interest through a charge to interest 
income. While loans are in non-accrual status, interest due is monitored and income is recognized only to the extent 
cash is received until a return to accrual status is warranted. In some circumstances, we continue to accrue interest on 
mortgage loans delinquent 90 days or more as to their maturity date but not their interest due. 

The allowance for loan losses is increased by charges to earnings and decreased by charge-offs, net of recoveries. 
Pursuant to our policy, loan losses are charged-off in the period the loans, or portions thereof, are deemed uncollectible. 
Our periodic evaluation of the adequacy of the allowance is based on our past loan loss experience, trends in portfolio 
volume, quality, maturity and composition, the status and amount of impaired and other non-performing and past-due 
loans, known and inherent risks in the portfolio, adverse situations that may affect a borrower's ability to repay, the 
estimated fair value of any underlying collateral and current and prospective, as well as specific and general, economic 
conditions. 

We review certain loans for individual impairment and groups of smaller balance loans based on homogeneous pools. 
Loans we individually review for impairment are limited to multi-family mortgage loans, commercial real estate loans, 
construction loans, loans modified in a troubled debt restructuring and selected large one-to-four family mortgage loans. 
A loan is considered impaired when, based upon current information and events, it is probable that we will be unable to 
collect all amounts due, including principal and interest, according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. 
Impaired loans are principally measured using the market price of the loan, if one exists, the estimated fair value of the 
collateral, for collateral dependent loans, or the present value of expected future cash flows. Interest income on 
impaired non-accrual loans is recognized on a cash basis, while interest income on all other impaired loans is 
recognized on an accrual basis. 

(g) Mortgage Servicing Rights 

We recognize as separate assets the rights to service mortgage loans. The right to service loans for others is generally 
obtained through the sale of loans with servicing retained. The initial recognition of originated MSR is based upon an 
allocation of the total cost of the related loans between the loans and the servicing rights based on their relative 
estimated fair values. The fair value of MSR is estimated by reference to quoted market prices of similar loans sold 
servicing released. The cost of MSR is amortized over the estimated remaining lives of the loans serviced. MSR are 
carried at amortized cost less impairment, if any, which is recognized through a valuation allowance through charges to 
earnings. Fees earned for servicing loans are reported as income when the related mortgage loan payments are 
collected. 
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We assess impairment of our MSR based on the estimated fair vaIue of those rights on a stratum-by-stratum basis with 
any impairment recognized through a valuation allowance for each impaired stratum. We stratify our MSR by 
underlying loan type (primarily fixed and adjustable) and interest rate. The estimated fair values of each MSR stratum 
are obtained through independent third party valuations through an analysis of future cash flows, incorporating 
numerous market based assumptions including market discount rates, prepayment speeds, servicing income, servicing 
costs, default rates and other market driven data. Individual allowances for each stratum are then adjusted in 
subsequent periods to reflect changes in the measurement of impairment. Increases in the fair value of impaired MSR 
are recognized only up to the amount of the previously recognized valuation allowance. 

During the 2005 third quarter, we entered into a sub-servicing agreement with Dovenmuehle Mortgage, Inc., or DM,  to 
outsource our mortgage loan servicing activities. Pursuant to this sub-servicing agreement, effective December 1,2005, 
DM1 has undertaken the servicing of our mortgage loan portfolio, including our portfolio of mortgage loans serviced for 
other investors. Fees paid to DM1 are reported in non-interest expense. 

fi) Premises and Equipment 

Land is carried at cost. Buildings and improvements, leasehold improvements and furniture, fixtures and equipment are 
carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization totaling $126.7 million at December 31, 2005 and 
$122.9 million at December 31, 2004. Buildings and improvements and furniture, fixtures and equipment are 
depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are 
amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the term of the related leases or the estimated useful lives of 
the improved property. 

(if Goodwill 

Goodwill is presumed to have an indefinite useful life and is tested, at least annually, for impairment at the reporting 
unit level. For purposes of our goodwill impairment testing, we have identified a single reporting unit. We use the 
quoted market price of our common stock on our impairment testing date as the basis for determining the fair value of 
our reporting unit. If the fair value of our reporting unit exceeds its carrying amount, fiu-ther evaluation is not 
necessary. However, if the fair value of our reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, hrther evaluation is required 
to compare the implied fair value of the reporting unit's goodwill to its carrying amount to determine if a write-down of 
goodwill is required. 

As of December 31, 2005, the carrying value of our goodwill totaled $185.2 million. On September 30, 2005, we 
periormed our annual goodwill impairment test and determined the fair value of our reporting unit to be in excess of its 
carrying amount by $1.44 billion. Accordingly, as of our annual impairment test date, there was no indication of 
goodwill impairment. We would test our goodwill for impairment between annual tests if an event occurs or 
circumstances change that would more likely than not reduce the fair value of our reporting unit below its carrying 
amount. No events have occurred and no circumstances have changed since our annual impaiment test date that would 
more likely than not reduce the fair value of our reporting unit below its carrying amount. 

CI') Bank Owned L@e Insurance 

Bank owned life insurance, or BOLI, is carried at its contract value and is classified as a non-interest earning asset. 
Increases in the contract value are recorded as non-interest income in the consolidated statements of income and 
insurance proceeds received are recorded as a reduction of the contract value. The contract value consists of cash 
surrender value of $356.3 million at December 3 1,2005 and $350.3 million at December 3 1,2004, claims stabilization 
reserve of $19.1 million at December 31, 2005 and $15.7 million at December 3 1, 2004 and deferred acquisition costs 
of $7.2 million at December 3 1, 2005 and $8.7 million at December 3 1, 2004. Repayment of the claims stabilization 
reserve (funds transferred from the cash surrender value to provide for future death benefit payments) and the deferred 
acquisition costs (costs incurred by the insurance carrier for the policy issuance) is guaranteed by the insurance carrier 
provided that certain conditions are met at the date of a contract surrender. We satisfied these conditions at December 
3 1,2005 and 2004. 
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(A) Real Estate Owned 

Real estate acquired through foreclosure or by deed in lieu of foreclosure is initially recorded at the tower of cost or fair 
value, less estimated selling costs. Thereafter, we maintain an allowance for decreases in value which are charged to 
income along with any additional expenses incurred on the property. Fair value is estimated through current appraisals. 
Write-downs required at the time of acquisition are charged to the allowance for loan losses. Real estate owned, net, 
which is included in other assets, amounted to $1 .l million at December 3 1,2005 and $920,000 at December 3 1,2004. 

((,I Reverse Repurchase Agreements (Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase) 

We enter into sales of securities under agreements to repurchase with selected dealers and banks. Such agreements are 
accounted for as secured financing transactions since we maintain effective control over the transferred securities and 
the transfer meets the other criteria for such accounting. Obligations to repurchase securities sold are reflected as a 
liability in our consolidated statements of financial condition. The securities underlying the agreements are delivered to 
a custodial account for the benefit of the dealer or bank with whom each transaction is executed. The dealers or banks, 
who may setl, loan or otherwise dispose of such securities to other parties in the normal course of their operations, agree 
to reself us the same securities at the maturities of the agreements. We retain the right of substitution of collateral 
throughout the terms of the agreements. The securities underlying the agreements are classified as encumbered 
securities in our consolidated statements of financial condition. 

fm) Derivative instruments 

As part of our assetlliability management program, we utilize, from time-to-time, interest rate caps, floors, locks or 
swaps to reduce our sensitivity to interest rate fluctuations. These agreements are derivative instruments which are 
recorded as either assets or liabilities in the consolidated statements of financial condition at fair value. Changes in the 
fair values of derivatives are reported in our results of operations or other comprehensive income depending on the use 
of the derivative and whether it qualifies for hedge accounting. The key criterion for hedge accounting is that the 
hedging relationship must be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in those fair values or cash flows that are 
attributable to the hedged risk, both at inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis. 

Derivatives that qualify for hedge accounting treatment are designated as either a hedge of the fair value of a recognized 
asset or IiabiIity or of an unrecognized firm commitment (a fair value hedge) or a hedge of a forecasted transaction or 
the variability of cash flows to be received or paid related to a recognized asset or liability (a cash flow hedge). For fair 
value hedges, changes in the fair values of the derivative instruments are recognized in our results of operations 
together with changes in the fair values of the related assets and liabilities attributable to the hedged risk. For cash flow 
hedges, changes in the fair values of the derivative instruments are reported in other comprehensive income to the 
extent the hedge is effective. The gains and losses on derivative instruments that are reported in other comprehensive 
income are reflected in the results of operations in the periods in which the results of operations are impacted by the 
variability of the cash flows of the hedged item. Generally, net interest income is increased or decreased by amounts 
receivable or payable with respect to our derivatives which qualify for hedge accounting. We establish, at the inception 
of the hedge, the method we will use for assessing the effectiveness of the hedging derivative and the measurement 
approach for determining the ineffective aspect of the hedge (the amount by which hedge gains or losses differ from the 
corresponding gains or losses on the hedged item). The ineffective portion of any hedge is recognized currently in our 
results of operations. 

We also enter into derivative instruments with no hedging designations. Changes in the fair values of these derivatives 
that do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment are recognized currently in our results of operations. Generally, 
other non-interest expense is increased or decreased by changes in the fair values of our derivatives which do not 
qualify for hedge accounting. We do not use derivatives for trading purposes. 

(4 Income Tares 

Deferred income taxes are recognized for the tax consequences of temporary differences by applying enacted statutory 
tax rates, applicable to future years, to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax basis of 
existing assets and liabilities. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in 
income tax expense in the period that includes the enactment date. Tax benefits attributable to stock option exercises 
are credited to additional paid-in capital. 
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(0) Earnings Per Common Share 

Basic earnings per common share, or EPS, is computed by dividing net income less preferred dividends, if any, by the 
weighted-average common shares outstanding during the year. The weighted-average common shares outstanding 
includes the average number of shares of common stock outstanding less the weighted average number of unallocated 
shares held by the Employee Stock Ownership Plan, or ESOP, and the weighted average number of unvested shares of 
restricted stock. 

Diluted EPS is computed using the same method as basic EPS, but includes the effect of all dilutive potential common 
shares that were outstanding during the period, such as unexercised stock options and unvested shares of restricted 
stock, calculated using the treasury stock method. When applying the treasury stock method, we add: ( I )  the assumed 
proceeds fiom option exercises; (2) the tax benefit that would have been credited to additional paid-in capital assuming 
exercise of non-qualified stock options and vesting of shares of restricted stock; and (3) the average unamortized 
expense related to unvested shares of restricted stock. We then divide this sum by our average stock price to calculate 
shares repurchased. The excess of the number of shares issuable over the number of shares assumed to be repurchased 
is added to basic weighted average common shares to calculate diluted EPS. 

(p) Employee BeneJits 

Astoria Federal has a qualified, non-contributory defined benefit pension plan, or the Astoria Federal Pension Plan, 
covering employees meeting specified eligibility criteria. Astoria Federal's policy is to fund pension costs in 
accordance with the minimum funding requirement. Contributions are intended to provide not only for benefits 
attributed to service to date, but also for those expected to be earned in the future. In addition, Astoria Federal has non- 
qualified and unfunded supplemental retirement plans covering certain officers and directors. 

We also sponsor a defined benefit health care plan that provides for postretirement medical and dental coverage to 
select individuals. The costs of postretirement benefits are accrued during an employee's active working career. 

We record compensation expense related to the ESOP at an amount equal to the shares allocated by the ESOP 
multiplied by the average fair value of our common stock during the reporting period, plus cash contributions made to 
participant accounts. For EPS disclosures, ESOP shares that have been committed to be released are considered 
outstanding. ESOP shares that have not been committed to be released are excluded from outstanding shares on a 
weighted average basis for EPS calculations. The difference between the fair value of shares for the period and the cost 
of the shares allocated by the ESOP is recorded as an adjustment to additional paid-in capital. 

(q) Stock Incentive Plans 

We apply the intrinsic value method of Accounting Principles Board, or APB, Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock 
Issued to Employees," and related'interpretations in accounting for our stock incentive plans. Accordingly, no stock- 
based employee compensation cost is reflected in net income for stock option grants, as all options granted under our 
stock incentive plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of 
grant. However, we have recognized stock-based employee compensation cost for the year ended December 3 1, 2005 
related to restricted stock grants and the acceleration of vesting of certain stock option grants. Compensation cost 
related to restricted stock grants is recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. See Note 16 for a further 
discussion of the restricted stock grants and the acceleration of vesting of certain stock option grants. 



ASTORIA FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued) 

The following table illustrates the effect on net income and EPS if we had applied the fair value recognition provisions 
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS, No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation," to 
stock-based employee compensation. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 
fln Thousands, Except Per Share Data) 2005 2004 2003 
Net income: 

As reported $233,803 $219,537 $196,846 
Add: TotaI stock-based employee 

compensation expense included in net 
income as reported, net of related tax effects 118 - 

Deduct: Total stock-based employee 
compensation expense determined under 
fair value based method for ail awards, net 
of related tax effects ( 1  1.803) (5.072) (5,4 17) 

Pro forma $222.1 18 $2 14.465 $191.429 
Basic earnings per common share: 

As reported 
Pro forma 

Diluted earnings per common share: 
As reported 
Pro forma 

In December 2004, the FASB issued revised SFAS No. 123, "Share-Based Payment," or SFAS No. 123(R), which 
requires public entities to recognize the cost of employee services received in exchange for awards of equity 
instruments based on the grant-date fair value of those awards (with limited exceptions). The fair-value-based method 
in SFAS No. 123(R) is similar to the fair-value-based method in SFAS No. 123 in most respects. SFAS No. 123(R) 
applies to a11 awards granted after the required effective date and to awards modified, repurchased or cancelled after 
that date. Additionally, beginning on the required effective date, public entities will recognize compensation cost for 
the portion of outstanding awards for which the requisite service has not yet been rendered, based on the grant-date fair 
value of those awards calculated under SFAS No. 123 for either recognition or pro forma disclosures. The cumulative 
effect of initially applying SFAS No. 123(R), if any, is recognized as of the required effective date. For periods before 
the required effective date, public entities may elect, although they are not required, to retroactively restate financial 
statements for prior periods to recognize compensation cost on a basis consistent with the pro forma disclosures 
required for those periods by SFAS No. 123. SFAS No. 123(R) is effective as of the beginning of the first annual 
reporting period beginning after June 15, 2005. Our adoption of SFAS No. 123(R), effective January 1, 2006, is 
expected to reduce our 2006 net income by approximately $1.1 million with respect to our December 2005 option 
grants and approximately 5 160,000 with respect to option grants to directors made in January 2006. Additional equity 
grants that may be made in 2006 will also result in compensation expense. 

(r) Segment Reporting 

As a community-oriented financial institution, substantially ail of our operations involve the delivery of loan and 
deposit products to customers. We make operating decisions and assess performance based on an ongoing review of 
these community banking operations, which constitute our only operating segment for financial reporting purposes. 

(2) Repurefiase Agreeinen fs 

Repurchase agreements averaged $195.9 million during the year ended December 31, 2005 and $85.8 million during 
the year ended December 3 1, 2004. The maximum amount of such agreements outstanding at any month end was 
$272.5 million during the year ended December 3 1,2005 and $267.6 million during the year ended December 3 1,2004. 
As of December 3 1,2005, two repurchase agreements totaling $182.8 million were outstanding. As of December 3 I ,  
2004, three repurchase agreements totaling $267.6 million were outstanding. The fair value of the securities held under 
these agreements was $188.2 million as of December 31,2005 and $273.8 million as of December 31,2004. None of 
the securities held under repurchase agreements were sold or repfedged during the years ended December 3 1,2005 and 
2004. 
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(3) Securities 

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of securities available-for-sale and held-to-maturity at December 3 1, 2005 
and 2004 are as follows: 

At December 31,2005 
Gross Gross Estimated 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair 
(In Thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value 
Available-for-sale: 

Mortgage-backed securities: 
REMICs and CMOs: 

GSE issuance $ 1,645,961 $ 100 $ (78,749) $ 1,567,312 
Non-GSE issuance 6 1,735 14 (331 1) 57,938 

GSE pass-through certificates 91.211 2,003 (90) 93,124 
Total mortgage-backed securities 1,798,907 2.1 17 (82,650) 1.7 18.374 
Other securities: 

FNMA and FHLMC preferred stock 123,495 32 (3,032) 120,495 
Other securities 2,503 2 (23) 2,482 

Total other securities 125.998 34 (3.055) 122,977 
Total securities available-for-sale $ 1.924.905 $ 2.151 $ (85.705) $ 1.841.351 
Held-to-maturity: 

Mortgage-backed securities: 
REMICs and CMOs: 

GSE issuance $ 4,346,63 1 $ 1 17 $ (96,022) $ 4,250,726 
Non-GSE issuance 354,395 (8,296) 346,099 

GSE pass-through certificates 5,737 191 (2) 5,926 
Total mortgage-backed securities 4,706,763 308 (104,320) 4,602,751 
Obligations of states and political 

subdivisions and coruorate debt securities 24,190 72 24.262 
Total securities held-to-maturitv $ 4.730.953 $ 380 $(104,320) $ 4.627.013 

At December 31.2004 
Gross Gross Estimated 

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair 
(In Thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value 
Available-for-sale: 

Mortgage-backed securities: 
REMICs and CMOs: 

GSE issuance $ 2,125,549 $ 605 $ (48,252) $ 2,077,902 
Non-GSE issuance 78,974 39 (3,298) 75,715 

GSE pass-through certificates 123,029 3,628 (87) 126,570 
Total mortgage-backed securities 2,327.552 4,272 (5 1.637) 2,280.187 
Other securities: 

FNMA and FHLMC preferred stock 123,495 53 123,548 
Other securities 3.152 10 (14) 3,148 

Total other securities 126,647 63 (14) 126.696 
Total securities available-for-sale $ 2.454.199 $ 4.335 $ (5 1.65 1) $ 2.406.883 
Held-to-maturity: 

Mortgage-backed securities: 
REMICs and CMOs: 

GSE issuance $5,772,676 $25,353 $(19,144) $5,778,885 
Non-GSE issuance 480,053 1,128 (4,474) 476,707 

GSE pass-through certificates 9,154 537 9,691 
Total mortgage-backed securities 6,26 1,883 27,018 (23,618) 6,265,283 
Obligations of states and political 

subdivisions and corporate debt securities 4 1 .053 424 4 1,477 
Total securities held-to-maturitv $ 6.302.936 $ 27.442 $ (23.618) $ 6,306.760 
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The following tables set forth the estimated fair values of securities with gross unrealized losses at December 3 1, 
2005 and 2004, segregated between securities that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position for less than 
twelve months at the respective dates and those that have been in a continuous unrealized loss position for twelve 
months or longer. 

At December 31,2005 
Less Than Twelve Months Twelve Months or Longer Total 

Gross Gross Gross 
Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized 

(In Thousands) Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses 
Available-for-sale: 

Mortgage-backed securities: 
REMICs and CMOs: 

GSE issuance $ 107,888 $ (2,377) $1,453,323 $(76,372) $1,561,211 $(78,749) 
Non-GSE issuance 1,310 (2) 55,709 (3,809) 57,019 (3,811) 

GSE pass-through certificates 7,583 (34) 2,436 (56) 10,019 (90) 
Other securities: 

FNMA and FHLMC preferred stock 120,448 (3,032) 120,448 (3,032) 
Other securities 250 (1) 1,080 (22) 1.330 (23) 

Total temporarily impaired securities 
available-for-sale $ 237.479 $ (5.446) $1.5 12.548 $(80.259) $1.750.027 $(85.705). 

Held-to-maturity: 
Mortgage-backed securities: 

REMICs and CMOs: 
GSE issuance $2,630,15 1 $(40,881) $1,599,067 $(55,141) $4,229,218 $(96,022) 
Non-GSE issuance 91,948 (1,049) 254,109 (7,247) 346,057 (8,296) 

GSE  ass-through certificates 55 (1) 45 (I)  100 (2) 
Total temporarily impaired securities 

held-to-maturitv $2.722.154 $(41.93 I l $1.853.22 1 $162.389) $4.575.375 $f 1 04.320i 

At December 31,2004 
Less Than Twelve Months Twelve Months or Longer Total 

Gross Gross Gross 
Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized Estimated Unrealized 

(In Thousands) Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses 
Available-for-sale: 

Mortgage-backed securities: 
REMICs and CMOs: 

GSE issuance $1,031,174 $ (6,691) $888,198 $(41,561) $1,919,372 $(48,252) 
Non-GSE issuance 4,74 1 (15) 67,567 (3,283) 72,308 (3,298) 

GSE pass-through certificates 3,956 (46) 1,650 (41) 5,606 
Other securities 1,093 (12) 414 (2) 1.507 

(87) 
(14) 

Total temporarily impaired securities 
available-for-sale $1.040.964 $ (6.7641 $957.829 $144.8871 $1.998.793 $151.6511 

Held-to-maturity : 
Mortgage-backed securities: 

REMICs and CMOs: 
GSE issuance $2,239,767 $(17,025) $ 93,244 $ (2,119) $2,333,011 $(19,144) 
Non-GSE issuance 341.904 (4,474) - 34 1,904 14.474) 

Total temporarily impaired securities 
held-to-maturitv $2.581.671 $(2 1.499) $ 93.244 $ (2.1 19) $2.674.9 15 S(23.618) 

The number of securities which had an unrealized loss totaled 228 at December 3 1, 2005 and 142 at December 3 1 ,  
2004. Of the securities in an unrealized loss position, 93.6% at December 3 1, 2005 and 91.1% at December 3 1 ,  
2004, based on estimated fair value, are obligations of GSEs. At December 3 1,2005 and 2004, substantially all of 
the securities in an unrealized loss position had a fixed interest rate and the cause of the temporary impairment is 
directly related to the change in interest rates. In general, as interest rates rise, the fair value of fixed rate securities 
will decrease; as interest rates fall, the fair value of fixed rate securities will increase. We generally view changes in 
fair value caused by changes in interest rates as temporary, which is consistent with our experience. Therefore, as of 
December 3 1 ,  2005 and 2004, the impairments are deemed temporary based on the direct relationship of the decline 
in fair value to movements in interest rates, the estimated remaining life and high credit quality of the investments 
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and our ability and intent to hold these investments until there is a fill recovery of the unrealized loss, which may be 
maturity. 

In November 2005, the FASB issued Staff Position Nos. 1 15-1 and 124-1, "The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary 
Impairment and Its Application to Certain Investments," or FSP No. 115-1, which addresses the determination of 
when an investment is considered impaired, whether the impairment is other-than-temporary and how to measure an 
impairment loss. FSP No. 115-1 also addresses accounting considerations subsequent to the recognition of an other- 
than-temporary impairment on a debt security and requires certain disclosures about unrealized losses that have not 
been recognized as other-than-temporary impairments. FSP No. 115-1 replaces the impairment guidance in 
Emerging Issues Task Force, or EITF, Issue No. 03-1, "The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its 
Application to Certain Investments," with references to existing authoritative literature concerning other-than- 
temporary impairment determinations (principally SFAS No. 1 15, "Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and 
Equity Securities," and Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 59, 
"Accounting for Noncurrent Marketable Equity Securities"). Under FSP No. 115-1, impairment losses must be 
recognized in earnings for the difference between the security's cost and its fair value at the financial statement date, 
without considering partial recoveries subsequent to that date. FSP No. 115-1 also requires that an investor 
recognize an other-than-temporary impairment loss when a decision to sell a security has been made and the investor 
does not expect the fair value of the security to filly recover prior to the expected time of sale. FSP No. 11 5-1 is 
effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2005. We do not expect our application of FSP No. 
115-1 to have a material impact on our financial condition or results of operations. 

During the year ended December 3 1, 2004, we recorded a $16.5 million other-than-temporary impairment write- 
down on $120.0 million of FHLMC perpetual preferred securities which is included as a component of non-interest 
income. There were no other-than-temporary impairment write-downs recorded for the years ended December 3 1, 
2005 and 2003. 

There were no sales of securities from the available-for-sale portfolio during the year ended December 31, 2005. 
During the year ended December 3 1, 2004, proceeds from sales of securities from the available-for-sale portfolio 
totaled $170.2 million resulting in gross realized gains totaling $4.7 million. During the year ended December 31, 
2003, proceeds from sales of securities from the available-for-sale portfolio totaled $1.46 billion resulting in gross 
realized gains totaling $14.6 million and gross realized losses totaling $7.3 million. 

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of debt securities at December 31, 2005, by contractual maturity, 
excluding mortgage-backed securities, are summarized in the following table. Actual maturities will differ from 
contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to prepay obligations with or without prepayment 
penalties. In addition, issuers of certain securities have the right to call obligations with or without prepayment 
penalties. 

At December 31,2005 
Estimated 

Amortized Fair 
(In Thousands) Cost Value 
Available-for-sale: 

Due in one year or less $ 1,753 $ 1,741 
Due after one year through five years 750 74 1 

Total available-for-sale $ 2.503 $ 2.482 
Held-to-maturity: 

Due after one year through five years $ 9,992 $10,064 
Due after ten years 14,198 14,198 

Total held-to-maturitv $24.190 $24.262 

The balance of accrued interest receivable for securities totaled $24.0 million at December 31, 2005 and $31.6 
million at December 3 1,2004. 

As of December 3 1, 2005, the amortized cost of the callable securities in our portfolio totaled $124.1 million, of 
which $107.8 million are callable within one year and at various times thereafter. 
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(4) Loans Receivable 

Loans receivable, net are summarized as follows: 

At December 31, 
(In Thousads) 2005 2004 
Mortgage loans: 

One-to-four family $ 9,757,920 $ 9,054,747 
Multi-family 2,826,807 2,558,935 
Commercial real estate 1,075,914 944,859 
Construction 137,012 1 17,766 

13,797,653 12,676,307 
Net deferred loan origination costs 8,119 3,400 
Net unamortized ~remiums 74.032 66,427 

Total mortgage loans, net 13,879.804 12,746.134 
Consumer and other loans: 

Home equity 460,064 466,087 
Commercial 24,644 21,819 
Other 17.796 19.3 82 

502,504 507,288 
Net deferred loan origination costs 9,443 9,180 
Net unamortized premiums 542 677 

Total consumer and other loans. net 5 12,489 517,145 
Total loans 14,392,293 13,263,279 
Allowance for Ioan losses f81.159) 032,758) 
Loans receivable. net $14.311.134 $13.180.521 

Accrued interest receivable on all loans totaled $56.2 million at December 3 1,2005 and $47.4 million at December 
3 1,2004. 

Our one-to-four family loans receivable consist primarily of adjustable rate mortgage, or ARM, loans which consist 
primarily of hybrid and interest only ARM loans. We currently offer hybrid ARM loans which initially have a fixed 
rate for one, three, five, seven or ten years and convert into one year ARM loans at the end of the initial fixed rate 
period and require the borrower to make principal and interest payments during the entire loan term. We also offer 
interest only ARM loans, which have an initial fixed rate for three, five or seven years and convert into one year 
interest only ARM loans at the end of the initial fixed rate period. Interest only ARM loans require the borrower to 
pay interest only during the first ten years of the loan term. After the tenth anniversary of the loan, principal and 
interest payments are required to amortize the loan over the remaining loan term. Our portfolio of one-to-four family 
interest only ARM loans totaled $4.97 billion, or 54.0% of our one-to-four family ARM loans, at December 31,2005 
and $3.13 billion, or 37.2% of our one-to-four family ARM loans, at December 31, 2004. During 2005, we began 
originating interest only multi-family and commercial real estate loans to qualified borrowers. The interest only 
loans do not comprise a significant portion of the totaI multi-family and commercial real estate loan portfolio at 
December 3 1,2005. We do not originate negative amortization or payment option ARM loans. 

At December 31, 2005, $8.06 billion, or 58.4%, of our total mortgage loan portfolio was secured by properties 
located in 43 states, other than New York, and the District of Columbia. We have a concentration of greater than 
5.0% of our total mortgage loan portfolio in six states: 41.6% in New York, 12.5% in New Jersey, 8.9% in 
Connecticut, 6.6% in Virginia, 6.4% in Illinois and 5.5% in Maryland. 

Included in loans receivable were non-accrual loans totaling $64.9 million at December 3 I, 2005 and $32.0 million 
at December 31, 2004. If all non-accrual loans had been performing in accordance with their original terms, we 
would have recorded interest income, with respect to such loans, of $3.8 million for the year ended December 31, 
2005, $1.8 million for the year ended December 3 1, 2004 and $1.9 million for the year ended December 3 1,2003. 
This compares to actual payments recorded as interest income, with respect to such loans, of $2.4 million for the 
year ended December 3 1 ,  2005, $1.0 million for the year ended December 3 1, 2004 and $1.2 million for the year 
ended December 31, 2003. Loans deiinquent 90 days or more and still accruing interest totaled $176,000 at 
December 3 1,2005 and $573,000 at December 3 1, 2004. These loans are delinquent 90 days or more as to their 
maturity date but not their interest due. 
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The following tables summarize information regarding our impaired mortgage loans: 

At December 31,2005 
Allowance 

Recorded for Loan Net 
/In Thousands) Investment Losses Investment 
One-to-four family $ 7,650 $ (633) $ 7,017 
Multi-family, commercial real estate 

and construction 30,729 (6,245) 24,484 
Total imuaired mortgage loans $ 38.379 $(6.878) $ 31.501 

At December 31,2004 
Allowance 

Recorded for Loan Net 
(In Thousands) Investment Losses Investment 
One-to-four family $ 5,703 $ (398) $ 5,305 
Multi-family, commercial real estate 

and construction 12.371 (1,824) 10,547 
Total imuaired mortgage loans $ 18.074 $(2.222) $ 15.852 

Our average recorded investment in impaired loans was $21.6 million for the year ended December 31,2005, $12.9 
million for the year ended December 31, 2004 and $15.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. Interest 
income recognized on impaired loans, which was not materially different from cash-basis interest income, amounted 
to $1.3 million for the year ended December 3 1, 2005, $616,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004 and 
$597,000 for the year ended December 3 1,2003. 

(5) Allowance for Loan Losses 

Activity in the allowance for loan losses is summarized as follows: 

For the Year Ended December 31. 
(In Thousands) 2005 2004 2003 
Balance at beginning of year $82,758 $83,121 $83,546 
Provision charged to operations 
Charge-offs (net of recoveries of $506, 

$524 and $91 1, respectivelv) (1,599) (363) (425) 
Balance at end of vear $81.159 $82.758 $83.121 

(6) Mortgage Servicing Rights 

We own rights to service mortgage loans for investors with aggregate unpaid principal balances of $1 S O  billion at 
December 31, 2005 and $1.67 billion at December 31, 2004, which are not reflected in the accompanying 
consolidated statements of financial condition. As described in Note I(g), effective December 1, 2005, we 
outsourced our mortgage loan servicing to a third party under a sub-servicing agreement. 

MSR activity is summarized as follows: 

For the Year Ended December 31, 
(In Thousands) 2005 2004 2003 
Amortized cost at beginning of year $26,189 $29,552 $35,093 
Additions 2,223 3,409 7,225 
Amortization (5,239) (6,772) (1 2,766) 
Amortized cost at end of year 23,173 26,189 29,552 
Valuation allowance (6,671) (9,390) (1 1,600) 
MSR. net $16.502 $16.799 $17.952 
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At December 31, 2005, our MSR, net, had an estimated fair value of $16.5 million and were valued based on 
expected future cash flows considering a weighted average discount rate of 9.07%, a weighted average constant 
prepayment rate on mortgages of 15.84% and a weighted average life of 4.7 years. At December 3 1, 2004, our 
MSR, net, had an estimated fair value of $16.8 million and were valued based on expected future cash flows 
considering a weighted average discount rate of 9.10%, a weighted average constant prepayment rate on mortgages 
of 15.33% and a weighted average life of 4.8 years. As of December 3 1,2005, estimated future MSR amortization 
through 2010, based on the prepayment assumptions utilized in the December 31, 2005 MSR valuation, is as 
follows: $3.6 million for 2006, $3.1 million for 2007, $2.6 million for 2008, $2.2 million for 2009 and $1.9 million 
for 2010. Actual results will vary depending upon the level of repayments on the loans currently serviced. 

Mortgage banking income, net, is summarized as follows: 

For the Year Ended December 31. 
(In Thousands) 2005 2004 2003 
Loan servicing fees $ 5,021 $ 5,768 $ 7,851 
Net gain on sales of loans 3,5 14 3,509 12,124 
Amortization of MSR (5,239) (6,772) (12,766) 
Recoverv of valuation allowance on MSR 2.7 1 9 2,210 3,082 
Total mortgage banking income. net $ 6.015 $ 4,715 $ 10.291 

(7) Deposits 

Deposits are summarized as follows: 

At December 31, 
2005 2004 

Weighted Weighted 
Average Percent Average Percent 

fDollars in Thousands) Rate Balance of Total Rate Balance of Total 
Core deposits: 

Savings 0.40% $ 2,510,897 19.61% 0.40% $ 2,929,120 23.78% 
Money market 0.95 648,730 5.06 0.80 965,288 7.83 
NOW 0.10 942,9 19 7.36 0.10 961,497 7.80 
Non-interest bearing NOW 

and demand deposit 626,940 4.89 - 619,217 5.02 
Liquid CDs - 3.66 619,784 - 4.84 - - 

Total core deposits 0.74 5,349,270 4 1.76 0.37 5,475,122 44.43 
Certificates of deposit 3.73 7.46 1.185 58.24 3.46 6,848,135 55.57 
Total de~osits 2.48% $ 12.810.455 100.00% 2.09% $ 12.323-257 100.00% 

Liquid certificates of deposit, or Liquid CDs, were introduced in January 2005 and have maturities of three months, 
require the maintenance of a minimum balance and allow depositors the ability to make periodic deposits to and 
withdrawals from their account. We consider Liquid CDs as part of our core deposits, along with savings accounts, 
money market accounts and NOW and demand deposit accounts. Certificates of deposit include all time deposits 
other than Liquid CDs. 

The aggregate amount of certificates of deposit and Liquid CDs with balances equal to or greater than $1 00,000 was 
$2.3 1 billion at December 3 1,2005 and $1.58 billion at December 3 1,2004. 
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Certificates of deposit and Liquid CDs at December 3 1,2005 have scheduled maturities as follows: 

Weighted Percent 
Average of 

Year Rate Balance Total 
(In Thousands) 

2006 3.48% $4,887,403 60.49% 
2007 4.06 1,629,648 20.17 
2008 4.12 919,844 11.38 
2009 4.18 427,668 5.29 
2010 4.29 186,144 2.30 
20 1 1 and thereafter 4.25 30,262 0.37 
Total 3.73% $8.080.969 100.00% 

Interest expense on deposits is summarized as follows: 

For the Year Ended December 31, 
[In Thousands) 2005 2004 2003 
Savings $ 11,015 $ 1 1,920 $ 13,198 
Money market 7,513 6,379 9,934 
Interest-bearing NOW 928 92 1 1,526 
Liquid CDs 10,708 
Certificates of deposit 25 1,235 2 18.209 200,593 
Total interest ex~ense  on de~osits  $28 1.399 $237.429 $225.25 1 

(8) Borrowings 

Borrowings are summarized as follows: 

At December 31, 
2005 2004 

Weighted Weighted 
Average Average 

(Dollars in Thousands) Amount Rate Amount Rate 
Reverse repurchase agreements $5,780,000 3.57% $7,080,000 3.54% 
FHLB-NY advances 1,724,000 4.50 1,934,000 2.81 
Other borrowings, net 433.526 7.19 455,835 7.2 1 
Total borrowings. net $7.937.526 3.97% $9.469.835 3.57% 

Reverse Repurchase Agreements 

At December 31, 2005 and 2004, substantially all of the outstanding reverse repurchase agreements had original 
contractual maturities between one and ten years and were primarily secured by mortgage-backed securities. 
Reverse repurchase agreements with the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York, or FHLB-NY, may also be secured 
by certain qualifying mortgage loans pursuant to a blanket collateral agreement with the FHLB-NY. 
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The fdlowing is a summary of infomation relating to reverse repurchase agreements: 

At December 31, 
[In Thouscm~N 2005 2004 
Amortized cost of collateral (including accrued interest): 

Mortgage-backed securities $6,253,654 $7,480,040 
Mortgage loans - 77,123 

Estimated fair value of collateral (including accrued interest): 
Mortgage-backed securities 6,076,473 7,430,135 
Mortgage loans 78,184 

At or For the Year Ended December 31, 
{DoIIars in Thousands) 2005 2004 2003 
Average balance during the year $6,75 1,096 $6,904,483 $6,642,945 
Maximum balance at any month end during the year 7,580,000 7,085,000 7,235,000 
Balance outstanding at end of the year 5,780,000 7,080,000 7,235,000 
Weigfited average interest rate during the year 3.54% 3.81% 5.01% 
Weighted average interest rate at end of the year 3-57 3.54 4.62 

Reverse repurchase agreements at December 3 1,2005 have contractual maturities as follows: 

Year Amount 
(&I Thousan&) 

2006 $I ,300,000 
2007 1,750,000 
2008 1,930,000 
2009 300,000 
2015 500,000 
Total $5.780.000 

Of the $1.30 billion of reverse repurchase agreements maturing in 2006, $100.0 million are due in jess than 30 days, 
$200.0 million are due in 30 to 90 days and $1.00 billion are due after 90 days. At December 3 1,2005, $1.68 billion 
of reverse repurchase agreements which mature after December 3 1,2006 are callable in 2006 and at various times 
thereafier. The $500.0 million of reverse repurchase agreements which mature in 2015 are callable in 2007 and at 
various times thereafter and have floating interest rates which are indexed to the three-month LlBOR m d  reset 
quarterly. The remaining reverse repurchase agreemeats have fixed interest rates. 

FHLB-NY Advances 

Pursuant to a blanket collateral agreement with the FHLB-NY, advances are secured by all of our stock in the 
FHLB-NY, certain qualifying mortgage loans and mort~ge-backed and other securities not otherwise pledged in an 
amount at least equal to i 10% of the advances outstanding. The following is a summary of information refating to 
FHLB-NY advances: 

At or For the Year Ended December 31, 
(Dollars in Thousands) 2005 2004 2003 
Average balance during the year $1,370,70 1 $13 f 6, f 97 $2,574,091 
Maximum balance at any month end during the year 1,813,000 3,134,000 3,s 17,000 
Balance outstanding at end of the year X ,724,000 1,934,000 1,924,000 
Weighted average interest rate during the year 3.64% 2.24% 3.30% 
Weighted average interest rate at end of the year 4.50 2.8 1 2.32 
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FHLB-NY advances at December 3 1,2005 have contractual maturities as follows: 

Year Amount 
(In Thousands) 

2006 $ 924,000 
2007 100,000 
2008 700,000 
Total $1.724.000 

Of the $924.0 million of FHLB-NY advances maturing in 2006, $40.0 million are due overnight, $780.0 million are 
due in less than 30 days, $4.0 million are due in 30 to 90 days and $100.0 million are due after 90 days. At 
December 3 1, 2005, $500.0 million of FHLB-NY advances which mature after December 3 1, 2006 are callable in 
2006 and at various times thereafter. 

At December 3 1,2005, we had a 12-month commitment for overnight and one month lines of credit with the FHLB- 
NY totaling $200.0 million, of which $40.0 million was outstanding under the overnight and $50.0 million was 
outstanding under the one month line of credit. Both lines of credit are priced at the federal funds rate plus a spread 
(generally between 10 and 15 basis points) and reprice daily. 

Other Borrowings 

During the quarter ended December 31, 2002, we issued $250.0 million of senior unsecured notes due in 2012 
bearing a fixed interest rate of 5.75%. The notes, which are designated as our 5.75% Senior Notes due 2012, Series 
B, are registered with the SEC. We may redeem all or part of the notes at any time at a "make-whole" redemption 
price, together with accrued interest to the redemption date. The carrying amount of the 5.75% senior unsecured 
notes, net of deferred costs, was $247.5 million at December 3 1,2005 and $247.1 million at December 3 1,2004. 

On July 3, 2001, we issued $100.0 million of senior unsecured notes. The notes, which were issued in a private 
placement, mature in 2008, bear a fixed interest rate of 7.67%, were placed with a limited number of institutional 
investors and are not registered with the SEC. The notes require annual principal payments of $20.0 million which 
began in 2004. The carrying amount of the 7.67% senior unsecured notes, net of deferred costs, was $59.8 million 
at December 3 1,2005 and $79.6 million at December 3 1,2004. 

On October 28, 1999, our finance subsidiary, Astoria Capital Trust I, issued $125.0 million aggregate liquidation 
amount of 9.75% Capital Securities due November 1, 2029, or Capital Securities, in a private placement, and $3.9 
million of common securities (which are the only voting securities of Astoria Capital Trust I), which are 100% 
owned by Astoria Financial Corporation, and used the proceeds to acquire Junior Subordinated Debentures issued 
by Astoria Financial Corporation. The Junior Subordinated Debentures total $128.9 million, have an interest rate of 
9.75%, mature on November 1, 2029 and are the sole assets of Astoria Capital Trust I. The Junior Subordinated 
Debentures are prepayable, in whole or in part, at our option on or after November 1, 2009 at declining premiums to 
November 1, 2019, after which the Junior Subordinated Debentures are prepayable at par value. The Capital 
Securities have the same prepayment provisions as the Junior Subordinated Debentures. Astoria Financial 
Corporation has hlly and unconditionally guaranteed the Capital Securities along with all obligations of Astoria 
Capital Trust I under the trust agreement relating to the Capital Securities. 

We have two interest rate swap agreements, designated as fair value hedges, that have the effect of converting 
$125.0 million of the Junior Subordinated Debentures from a 9.75% fixed rate instrument into a variable rate, 
LIBOR-based instrument. The carrying amount of the Junior Subordinated Debentures has been adjusted for 
changes in estimated fair value to satisfy hedge accounting requirements. See Note 10 for additional information on 
the interest rate swap agreements. The carrying amount of the Junior Subordinated Debentures, net of deferred costs 
and including fair value hedge adjustments, was $126.2 million at December 3 1, 2005 and $129.1 million at 
December 3 1,2004. 

The terms of our other borrowings subject us to certain debt covenants. We were in compliance with these debt 
covenants at December 3 1,2005. 
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Other borrowings at December 3 1,2005 have contractual maturities as follows: 

Year Amount 
(In Thousands) 

2006 $ 20,000 
2007 20,000 
2008 20,000 
20 12 and thereafter 378.866 
Total $438.866 

Interest expense on borrowings is summarized as follows: 

For the Year Ended December 31. 
(Dollars in Thousan&] 2005 2004 2003 
Reverse repurchase agreements $242,255 $267,527 $337,057 
FHLB-NY advances 50,400 41,016 85,629 
Other borrowings 30.153 29,363 29.8 16 
Total interest ex~ense on borrowings $322,808 $337.906 $452.502 

(9) Stockholders' Equity 

On May 19, 2004, our Board of Directors approved our tenth stock repurchase plan authorizing the purchase, at 
management's discretion, of 12,000,000 shares, or approximately 10% of our common stock then outstanding, over 
a two year period in open-market or privately negotiated transactions. During 2005, we repurchased 6,582,500 
shares of our common stock at an aggregate cost of $180.9 million. In total, as of December 31,2005, 11,737,700 
shares of our common stock, at an aggregate cost of $308.6 million, have been repurchased under our tenth stock 
repurchase plan. On December 21, 2005, our Board of Directors approved our eleventh stock repurchase plan 
authorizing the purchase, at management's discretion, of 10,000,000 shares, or approximately 10% of our common 
stock outstanding, through December 31, 2007 in open-market or privately negotiated transactions. Stock 
repurchases under our eleventh stock repurchase plan commenced immediately following the completion of the 
tenth stock repurchase plan on January 10,2006. 

On October 1, 2003 we redeemed all of our outstanding shares of 12% Noncumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock, 
Series B, or Series B Preferred Stock, at a redemption price of $54.5 million plus accrued and unpaid dividends up 
to the redemption date. The Series B Preferred Stock had a par value of $1 .OO per share and a liquidation preference 
of $25.00 per share. 

In 1996, we adopted a Stockholders Rights Plan, or the Rights Plan, and declared a dividend of one preferred share 
purchase right, or Right, for each outstanding share of our common stock. Each Right, initially, will entitle 
stockholders to buy a one one-hundredth interest in a share of a new series of our preferred stock at an exercise price 
of $100.00 upon the occurrence of certain events described in the Rights Plan. We have reserved 1,800,000 shares 
of our Series A Preferred Stock for the Rights Plan. Unless extended by the Board of Directors, the Rights Plan is 
scheduled to expire on September 3,2006. 

We have a dividend reinvestment and stock purchase plan, or the Plan. Pursuant to the Plan, 300,000 shares of 
authorized and unissued common shares are reserved for use by the Pian, should the need arise. To date, all shares 
required by the Plan have been acquired in open market purchases. 

We are subject to the laws of the State of Delaware which generally limit dividends to an amount equal to the excess 
of our net assets (the amount by which total assets exceed total liabilities) over our statutory capital, or if there is no 
such excess, to our net profits for the current and/or immediately preceding fiscal year. Our ability to pay dividends, 
service our debt obligations and repurchase our common stock is dependent primarily upon receipt of dividend 
payments liom Astoria Federal. The Office of Thrift Supervision, or OTS, regulates all capital distributions by 
Astoria Federal directly or indirectly to us, including dividend payments. Astoria Federal must file an application to 
receive the approval of the OTS for a proposed capital distribution if the total amount of all capital distributions 
(including each proposed capital distribution) for the applicable calendar year exceeds net income for that year to 
date plus the retained net income for the preceding two years. Astoria Federal may not pay dividends to us if: (I) 
after paying those dividends, it would fail to meet applicable regulatory capital requirements; (2) the OTS notified 
Astoria Federal that it was in need of more than normal supervision; or (3) after making such distribution, the 
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institution would become "undercapitalized" (as such term is used in the Federal Deposit Insurance Act). Payment 
of dividends by Astoria Federal also may be restricted at any time at the discretion of the appropriate regulator if it 
deems the payment to constitute an unsafe and unsound banking practice. 

(10) Derivative Instruments 

As further discussed below, we use a variety of derivative instruments in connection with our overall interest rate 
risk management strategy. We are exposed to credit risk in the event of non-performance by counterparties to 
derivative instruments. In the event of default by a counterparty, we would be subject to an economic loss that 
corresponds to the cost to replace the agreement. We control the credit risk associated with our derivative 
instruments by dealing only with counterparties with the highest credit ratings, establishing counterparty exposure 
limits and monitoring procedures. 

Fair Value Hedges 

We have two interest swap agreements designated and accounted for as fair value hedges aggregating $125.0 million 
(notional amount) to effectively convert $125.0 million of our Junior Subordinated Debentures from a fixed to a 
variable rate instrument in order to protect the fair value of our Junior Subordinated Debentures due to changes in 
interest rates. These two interest rate swap agreements were entered into in 2002 as fair value hedges of the $125.0 
million Capital Securities issued by Astoria Capital Trust I. As a result of our adoption of FIN 46(R), effective 
January 1, 2004, we redesignated these interest rate swap agreements as fair value hedges of the debt Astoria 
Financial Corporation issued to Astoria Capital Trust I. Under these agreements, we receive a fixed interest rate of 
9.75% and pay a floating interest rate which is tied to the three-month LIBOR plus 400 basis points. The maturity 
dates, call features, deferral provisions and other critical terms of these derivative instruments match the terms of 
both the Capital Securities and the Junior Subordinated Debentures. No net gains or losses have been recognized in 
earnings with respect to these hedges. A $1.8 million liability was recorded at December 31, 2005 and a $1.4 
million asset was recorded at December 3 1,2004, which represent the fair value of the interest rate swap agreements 
as of those dates. A corresponding adjustment was made to the carrying amount of the Junior Subordinated 
Debentures to recognize the change in their fair value. See Note 8 for additional information regarding our Junior 
Subordinated Debentures. On March 8,2006, we terminated our outstanding interest rate swap agreements at a cost 
of $5.5 million, pre-tax, which will be reflected in our consolidated results of operations for the quarter ending 
March 3 1,2006. 

Free-Standing Derivative Instruments 

In connection with our mortgage banking activities, we had certain ffee-standing derivative instruments at December 
31, 2005 and 2004. We had commitments to fund loans held-for-sale and commitments to sell loans which are 
considered derivative instruments under SFAS No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
Activities." The fair values of these derivative instruments are immaterial to our financial condition and results of 
operations. 

In 2002 and 2001 we purchased interest rate cap agreements as an economic hedge against rising interest rates and 
subsequent increases in our cost of funds. The interest rate cap agreements, which did not qualify for hedge 
accounting treatment, were included in other assets at their fair values. Changes in the fair values of the agreements 
were included in non-interest expense. The agreements, which had a total notional amount of $300.0 million, had 
various maturity dates from July 2004 to January 2005. The fair values of these agreements and changes therein 
were immaterial to our financial condition and results of operations in 2005,2004 and 2003. 

Cash Flow Hedges 

In September 2002, in connection with our anticipated issuance of the 5.75% senior unsecured notes, we entered 
into an interest rate lock agreement designated and accounted for as a cash flow hedge of a forecasted transaction. 
The agreement was settled at the same time as the notes and the loss, net of tax, which is included in accumulated 
other comprehensive loss/income, is being reclassified into interest expense as a yield adjustment in the same 
periods in which the related interest on the 5.75% senior unsecured notes affects earnings. The remaining after-tax 
amount included in accumulated other comprehensive loss/income totaled $1.3 million at December 3 1, 2005 and 
$1.5 million at December 31, 2004. The after-tax amount to be reclassified into results of operations during 2006 
totals $191,000. See Note 8 for additional information regarding our 5.75% senior unsecured notes. 
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(21) Commitments and Contingencies 

Lease Commitments 

At December 3 1,2005, we were obligated through 2035 under various non-cancelable operating leases on buildings 
and land used for office space and banking purposes. These operating leases contain escalation clauses which 
provide for increased rental expense, based primarily on increases in real estate taxes and cost-of-living indices. 
Rent expense under the operating leases totaled $7.8 million for the year ended December 3 1,2005, $7.5 million for 
the year ended December 3 1,2004 and $7.2 million for .the year ended December 3 1,2003. 

The minimum rental payments due under the terms of the non-cancelable operating leases as of December 3 1,2005, 
which have not been reduced by minimum sublease rentals of $29.3 million due in the future under non-cancelable 
subleases, are summarized below: 

Year Amount 
(In Thousands;) 

2006 $ 7,267 
2007 7,027 
2008 6,60 1 
2009 5,367 
2010 4,775 
20 1 1 and thereafter 43.763 
Total $74.800 

Outstanding Commitments 

We had outstanding commitments as follows: 

At December 31, 

Mortgage loans - commitments to extend credit (1)  $470,388 $553,061 
Mortgage loans - commitments to purchase 27,256 63,223 
Home equity loans - unused lines of credit 362,107 328,5 10 
Consumer and commercial loans - unused lines of credit 70,42 1 68,484 
Commitments to sell loans 42,870 56,034 

( I )  Includes commitments to originate loans held-for-sale. Excluding commitments to originate loans held-for-sale, 
which are fixed rate loans, substantially all of the remaining mortgage loan commitments to extend credit are 
for ARM loans. 

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any condition 
established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination clauses and 
may require payment of a fee. Since some of the commitments are expected to expire without being drawn upon, 
the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent fbture cash requirements. We evaluate creditworthiness 
on a case-by-case basis. Our maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the contractual amount of the 
instruments. 

Assets Sold with Recourse 

We are obligated under various recourse provisions associated with certain first mortgage loans we sold in the 
secondary market. The principal balance of loans sold with recourse amounted to $596.7 million at December 3 1, 
2005 and $565.8 million at December 3 1 ,  2004. We estimate the liability for loans sold with recourse based on an 
analysis of our toss experience related to similar loans sold with recourse. The carrying amount of this liability was 
immaterial at December 3 1,2005 and 2004. 

We have collateralized repurchase obligations due to the sale of certain long-term fixed rate municipal revenue 
bonds and Federal Housing Administration project loans to investment trust funds for proceeds that approximated 
par value. The trust fitnds have put options that require us to repurchase the securities or loans for specified amounts 
prior to maturity under certain specified circumstances, as deftned in the agreements. The outstanding option 
baiance on the remaining agreements totaled $23.0 million at December 31,2005 and $34.9 million at December 3 1, 
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2004. Various GSE mortgage-backed securities, with an amortized cost of $36.3 million and a fair value of $36.9 
million at December 31,2005, have been pIedged as collateral. 

Guarantees 

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by us to guarantee the peFfomance of a customer to a 
third party. The guarantees generaHy extend for a term of up to one year and are fully collateralized. For each 
guarantee issued, if the customer defaults on a payment to the third party, we would have to perform under the 
guarantee. Outstanding standby letters of credit totaled $4.6 million at December 31, 2005 and $5.2 million at 
December 3 I ,  2004. The fair value of these obligations is immaterial at December 31,2005 and 2004. 

Litigation 

In the ordinary course of our business, we are routinely made defendant in or a party to a number of pending or 
threatened legal actions or proceedings which, in some cases, seek substantial monetary damages fmm or other 
forms of relief against us. Xn our opinion, after consultation with legal counsel, we believe it unlikely that such 
actions or proceedings will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations or 
liquidity. 

We are a party to two actions pending in the US.  Court of Federal Claims against the United States, involving 
assisted acquisitions made in the early 1980's and supervisory goodwifl accounting utilized in connection therewith, 
which could result in a gain. 

The trial in one of the actions, which is entitled The Long Island Savinas Bank FSB et a1 vs. The United States, 
commenced on January 18, 2005 and concluded on July 7,2005. We asked the Court to award damages totaling 
$594.0 million from the U.S. government for breach of contract in connection with a 1983 Assistance Agreement 
between the Long lsland Savings Bank, FSB, which was acquired by us in 1998, and the Federal Savings and Loan 
Insurance Corporation. The Court rendered a decision on September 15, 2005 awarding us $435.8 million in 
damages from the US. government in this action. On December 14,2005, the United States %led a notice of appeal. 
No assurance can be given as to the timing, content or ultimate outcome of any such appeal. No portion of the 
$435.8 million award has been recognized in our consolidated financial statements. Legal expense has been 
recognized as it was incurred. 

The other action, entitled Astoria Federal Savinzs and Loan Association vs. United States, has not yet been 
scheduled for trial. The Court is currently considering a summary judgment motion filed by the U S .  government. 

The ultimate outcomes of the two actions pending against the United States and the timing of such outcomes are 
uncertain and there can be no assurance that we will benefit financially from such litigation. 

On or about February 24, 2005, the Attorney General of the State of New Vork, or the Attorney General, served on 
Astoria Federal a subpoena duces tecum, or the Su oena, seeking documents and infomation concerning, among 
other things, our contractual relationship with Independent Financial Marketing Group, Inc., or IFMG, IFMG 
Securities, Inc. and IFS Agencies, fnc., and the marketing and sale of Alternative Investment Products (i.e., financial 
products that are not bank instruments insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or FDIC). On several 
occasions thereafter in 2005, and again in January 2006, the Attorney General supplemented the Subpoena with 
requests for additional documents and information. 

Our arrangements with IFMG impose on IFMG compliance, disclosure and oversight-related obligations in 
connection with their sale of Alternative Investment Products to our customers at our branch locations. In this 
regard, we believe we are in full compliance with the Interagency Statement on Retail Sales of Nondeposit 
Investment Products issued by the federal bank regulatory authorities and Part 536 of the OTS Regulations 
regarding Consumer Protection in the Sale of Insurance. 

We are cooperating with the Attorney General's inquiry. No charges of wrongdoing on our part in connection with 
the sate of Alternative Investment Products have been filed by the Attorney General against us. Given the current 
status of the inquiry, no assurance can be given as to when the inquiry may be concluded, the ultimate result of the 
inquiry or any potential impact on our financial condition or results of operations. 
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(12) Income Taes  

Income expense is summarized as follows: 

For the Year Ended December 31, 
(In Thowands1 2005 2004 2003 
Current 

Federal $1 14,606 $103,276 $93,383 
State and local 6,103 6.688 5,107 

Total current 120,709 109,964 98.490 
Deferred 

Federal (1,3163 (1,8991 (547) 
State and focal (95 11 (1,963) (1.567) 

Tot& deferred (2,267) (3.8623 (2.1 143 
Total income tax exuense $1 1 8,442 $106,102 $96.376 

Total income tax expense differed &om the amounts computed by applying the federal income tax rate to income 
before income tax expense as a result of the following: 

Far the Year Ended December 31, 
(In Thousands1 2005 2004 2003 
Expected income tax expense at statutory federal rate $123,286 $113,974 $102,628 
State and local taxes, net of federai tax benefit 3,349 3,071 2,301 
Tax exempt income (principally on bank owned life insurance) (6,2701 (6,791) (7,889) 
Reversal of deferred tax valuation allowance - (3,396) 
Other. net (1,923) (4,1521 2,732 
Total income tax exuense $1 18.442 $106.102 $26.3'76 

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred 
tax liabilities are as follows: 

At December 31, 
(In Tiiousands) 2005 2004 
Deferred tax assets: 

Allowances and tax reserves $ 20,747 $ 20,732 
Compensation and benefits 8,662 6,4 1 7 
Tax credits 3,129 3,129 
Mark-to-market elected for tax purposes 1,462 1,476 
Net matized loss on securities available-for-sale 34,885 19,594 
Unrealized loss on securities impairment write-down 6,895 6,895 
Other 5,633 3.47 8 

Total auss deferred tax assets 81,413 61.721 
Deferred tax liabilities: 

Mortgage loans (13,701) (1 4,974) 
Premises and equipment (8,973) (733 16) 
Mortga3e servicing rights (3,1071 (1.285L 

Total gross deferred tax liabilities (25.78 11 (23,275) 
Net deferred tax assets $ 55.632 $ 38.446, 

We believe that our future results of operations and tax planning strategies will enable us to generate sufficient 
taxable income to enable us to realize ow deferred tax assets. At December 5 1,2005, we had altemative minimum 
tax credit carryforwards for federal tax purposes of approximately $3.1 million, 

Astoria Federal's retained earnings at December 31, 2005 and 2004 include base year bad debt reserves, which 
amounted to approximately $159.1 million, for which no federal income tax liability has been recognized. This 
represents the balance of the bad debt reserves created for tax purposes as of December 3 1, 1987. These amounts 
are subject to recapture in the unlikely event that Astoria Federal (1) makes distributions in excess of current and 
accumulated earnings and profits, as calculated for federal income tax purposes, (2) redeems its stock, or (3) 
1 iquidates. 
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(13) Earnings Per Share 

The following table is a reconciiiation of basic and diluted EPS: 

For the Year Ended Derember 31, 
2005 2004 2003 

Basic Diluted Basic Diluted Basic Diiuted 
/In 7Ruusanda Exceut Per Share Datd EPS EPS (1) EPS EPS (2) EPS EPS (31 
Net income $233,803 $233,803 $2 19,537 $2 19,537 $196,846 $196,846 
Preferred dividends declared (4.500) 14.500) 

Total weighted average basic 
common shares outstanding 10 1,476 101,476 107,931 107,931 114,575 114,575 

Effect of dilutive securities: 
Ontions and unvested restricted stock 1,933 1.876 1.367 

Total weighted average diluted 
common shares outs tan din^ 1 01.476 103.409 107.931 109.807 114.575 1 15.942 

pet ea&s ner common share $2.30 $2.26 $2.03 $2.00 $1.68 $1.66 

(1 )  Options to purchase 1,224,100 shares of common stock at $29.02 per share were outstanding as of December 
31, 2005, but were not included in the computation of diluted EPS because the options' exercise price was 
greater than the average market price of the common shares for the year ended December 3 1,2005. 

(2) Options to purchase 1,948,800 shares of common stock at $26.63 per share were outstanding as of December 
31, 2004, but were not included in the computation of diluted EPS because the options' exercise price was 
greater than the average market price of the common shares for the year ended December 3 1,2004. 

(3) Options to purchase 1,501,200 shares of common stock at prices between $19.92 per share and $24.40 per share 
were outstanding as of December 3 1, 2003, but were not included in the computation of diluted EPS because 
the options' exercise prices were greater than the average market price of the common shares for the year ended 
December 3 1,2003. 
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(14) Comprehensive I~tcome 

The components of accumulated other comprehensive loss at December 3 1,2005 and 2004 and the changes during 
the year ended December 3 1,2005 are as follows: 

At Current At 
December 31, Period December 31, 

/In Thousan& 2004 Chawe 2005 
Net unrealized loss on securities avaiiabl'e-for-sale $(27,0 13) $(2 1,083) $(48,096) 
Loss on cash flow hedge ( 1,489) 191 (1,298) 
Minimum pension liability adjustment 190) (52) (142) 
Accumulated other corn~rehensive loss $(28.592) $t20.9441 $649.5361 

The components of other comprehensive income, other than net income, for the years ended December 3 f ,  2005, 
2004 and 2003 are as follows: 

Before Tax Tax After Tax 
(ln Thousands) Amount Benefit (Expense) Amount 

For the Year Ended December 31,2005 
Net unrealized holding losses on securities arising during the year $(36,374) $15,291 $(2 1,083) 
Reclassification adjustment for loss on cash flow hedge 

included in net income 330 (139) 191 
Minimum pension liability adiustment (90) 3 8 (52)  
Other com~rehensive loss fX36.1341 a 5 . 1 9 0  $120.944) 

For the Year Ended December 31,2004 
Net unrealized gains on securities available-for-sale: 

Net unrealized holding gains on securities arising during the year $ 18,755 $ (7,468) $ 11,287 
Reclassification adjustment for net losses included in net income I 1,869 (5.408) 6.461 __ 

30,624 (12,876) 17,748 
Reclassification adjustment for loss on cash flow hedge 

included in net income 329 (1 38) 191 
Minimum pension liabilitv adiustment (73) 3 1 (42) 
Other comarehensive income $ 30.880 $ 12.983) $ 17.897 

For the Year Ended December 31,2003 
Net unrealized losses on securities available-far-sale: 

Net unrealized holding losses on securities arising during the year $ (91,405) $ 39,111 $ (52,294) 
Reclassification adjustment for net gains included in net income (3.346) 2.414 (4.932) 

(98,751) 41,525 (57,226) 
Amortization of net unrealized loss on securities transferred to 

held-to-maturity 1,337 (562) 775 
klassificatian adjustment for loss on cash flow hedge 

included in net income 330 f 139) 191 
Minimum pension fiabiliw adjustment 150) 2 1 (29) 
Qther com~rehensive loss $ (97.134) $40.845 $156.289) 
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Pension Plans and Other Postretirement Benefits 

The following tables set forth information regarding our defined benefit pension plans and other postretirement benefit plan. 

Other Postretirement 
Pension Benefits Benefits 

At o r  For the Year Ended At or  For The Year Ended 
December 31. December 31, 

(In Thousands) 2005 2004 2005 2004 
Change in benefit obligation: 

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $1 76,55 1 $165,494 $ 18,678 $ 16,386 
Service cost 3,264 3,265 5 04 512 
Interest cost 9,856 9,786 1,037 1,087 
Amendments 1,318 943 - 
Actuarial loss 7,863 6,866 5 69 2,170 
Benefits paid (8.833) (8,860) ( 1,276) (1,477) 

Benefit obligation at end of vear 190,019 176,55 1 20,455 18,678 
Change in plan assets: 

Fair vahe of plan assets at beginning of year 154,07 1 149,944 - 
Actual return on plan assets t 0,506 12,304 
Employer contribution 69 1 683 1,276 1,477 
Benefits paid (8,833) (8.860) { 1.276) C 1,477) 

Fair value of plan assets at end of year E 56,435 154.07 1 - - 
Funded status (33,584) (22,480) (20,455) (1 8,678) 
Unrecognized net actuarial loss (gain) 48,941 42,255 213 (356) 
Unrecognized prior service cost 1.79 1 694 1 .026 124 
Net amomt recognized $ 17.148 S 20.469 $(19.216) $(I 8.910) 
Amounts recognized in the consolidated 

statements of financial condition: 
Prepaid benefit cost $ 34,360 $36,796 $ - $ - 
Accrued benefit liability (1 8,807) ( I  6,6201 (19,216) (1 8,9f 0) 
Intangible asset 1,350 138 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss Cpre-tax basis) 245 155 
Net amount recoenized $ 17.148 $20.469 $(19,216\ $(18.910) 

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $168.6 million at December 31, 2005 and 
$158.5 million at December 3 1, 2004. The measurement date for our defined benefit pension plans and other postretirement 
benefit plan is December 3 1, 

Assumptions used to determine 
the benefit obligation: 

Pension Benefit PIans: 
Astoria Federal Pension Plan 
Astoria Federal Excess Benefit and 

Supplemental Benefit Plans 
Astoria Federal Directors' Retirement Plan 
The Greater Directors' Retirement Plan 
Long Island Bancorp, Inc., or LIB, Directors' 

Retirement Plan 

Rate of 
Discount Rate Compensation Increase 

2005 - - 2004 - 2005 - 2004 

5.50 6.00 NIA NIA 

Other Postretirement Benefit Plan: 
Astoria Federal Retiree Health Care Plan 5.59 5.75 NIA N/A 
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The components of net periodic cost are as follows: 

Other Postretirement 
Pension Benefits Benefits 

For the Year Ended December 3 k  For the Year Ended December 31, 
(In thou sands^ 2005 2004 2003 2005 2004 2003 
Service cost $ 3,264 $ 3,265 $2,700 $ 5 0 4  $ 5 1 2  $ 360 
Interest cost 9,856 9,786 9,570 1,037 1,087 995 
Expected return on plan assets (1 1,974) (1 3,648) (9,956) - 
Amortization of prior service cost 22 1 161 160 4 1 4 1 40 
Recognized net actuarial loss (gain) 2,645 2,540 3,368 (152) 
Amortization of transition asset (35) ( 1 04) 
Net veriodic cost $ 4.012 $ 4.069 $5.738 $1 .582 $1.640 $1,243 

Expected Return Rate of 
Assumptions used to determine 
the net periodic cost: 

Pension Benefit Plans: 
Astoria Federal Pension Plan 
Astoria Federal Excess Benefit and 

Supplemental Benefit Plans 
Astoria Federal Directors' Retirement Plan 
The Greater Directors' Reirement Plan 
LIB Directors' Retirement Plan 

Other Postretirement Benefit Plan: 
Astoria Federal Retiree Health Care Plan 

Discount Rate 
2005 2004 - 

on Pian Assets Compensation Increase 
2005 200$ - 2005 - 2004 

NIA NIA 8-00 8 .OO 
NIA N/A 4.00 4.00 
N/A NlA NiA NfA 
N/A NIA NI A NIA 

NIA NiA NIA NIA 

To determine the expected return on plan assets, we consider the long-term historical return information on plan assets, 
the mix of investments that comprise plan assets and the historical returns on indices comparable to the fund classes in 
which the plan invests. 

The assumed health care cost trend rates are as follows: 

At December 31. 
2005 2004 

Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year 7.00% 7.50% 
Rate to which the cost trend rate is assumed to decline (the ultimate trend rate) 5.00% 5.00% 
Year that the rate reaches the ultimate trend rate 2009 2009 

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plan. A one- 
percentage point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects: 

One Percentage One Percentage 
(In Thousan& Point Increase Point Decrease 
Effect on total service and interest cost components $ 249 $ (193) 
Effect on the postretirement benefit obligation 2,418 (1,918) 

We adopted FASB Staff Position No. 106-2, "Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare 
Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003," or FSP No. 106-2, effective December 3 1, 2004. 
Upon adoption of FSP No, 106-2, we determined our other postretirement benefit plan (the Astoria Federal Retiree 
Health Care Plan) to be "actuarially equivalent," as defined, and determined the effects of the Medicare Prescription 
Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003, or Medicare Act, were not a "significant event," as defined. The 
impact of our adoption of FSP No. 106-2 was a reduction of $850,000 in the accumulated postretirement benefit 
obligation at December 3 I ,  2004. The reduction to the net periodic cost of our other postretirement benefit plan for 
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the year ended December 3 1, 2005 was immaterial to our financial condition and results of operations and there was 
no impact on the net periodic cost for the year ended December 31, 2004. At the end of 2005, the Astoria Federal 
Retiree Health Care Plan was changed to require Medicare-eligible retirees to enroll in a Medicare Part D equivalent 
prescription drug plan in order to maintain their prescription drug coverage under the Astoria Federal Retiree Health 
Care Plan. As a result, we will not be eligible to receive a federal subsidy for prescription drug costs for these retirees 
and there is no reduction for a federal subsidy in the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at December 3 1 ,  
2005. However, the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation at December 3 1,2005 has been reduced to reflect 
the reduction in future prescription drug coverage premiums that we will recognize as a result of requiring our 
Medicare-eligible retirees to enroll in the Medicare Part D equivalent prescription drug plan offered by our insurance 
carrier. 

Included in the tables of pension benefits on pages 106 and 107 are the Astoria Federal Excess Benefit and 
Supplemental Benefit Plans, Astoria Federal Directors' Retirement Plan, The Greater Directors' Retirement Plan and 
the LIB Directors' Retirement Plan, which are unfunded plans. The projected benefit obligation and accumulated 
benefit obligation for these plans are as follows: 

At December 31, 
(In Thousands) 2005 2004 
Projected benefit obligation $22,304 $18,685 
Accumulated benefit obligation 16,226 13,891 

The following table sets forth the asset allocations, by asset category, for the Astoria Federal Pension Plan: 

Pfan Assets At December 31, 
2005 2004 

Asset Category: 
Equity securities (1) 14.53% 13.39% 
Other (2) 85.47 86.6 1 

Total 100.00% 100.00% 

(1) Equity securities include Astoria Financial Corporation common stock with a fair value of $22.7 million, or 14.5% 
of total plan assets, at December 3 1,2005 and $20.6 million, or 13.4% of total plan assets, at December 3 1,2004. 

(2) Primarily comprised of investments in various insurance company pooled separate accounts and trust company 
trust funds. 

The overall strategy of the Astoria Federal Pension Plan Investment Policy is to have a diverse portfolio that 
reasonably spans established riskfreturn levels, preserves liquidity and achieves the rate of return specified in the 
actuarial valuation. The strategy allows for a moderate risk approach in order to achieve greater long-term asset 
growth. The asset mix within the various insurance company pooled separate accounts and trust company trust funds 
can vary but should not be more than 80% in equity securities, 50% in debt securities, 25% in liquidity funds and 15% 
in Astoria Financial Corporation common stock. The Astoria Federal Pension Plan will not acquire Astoria Financial 
Corporation common stock to the extent that, after the acquisition, such common stock would represent more than 
10% of total plan assets. Within equity securities, the mix is further clarified to have ranges not to exceed 10% in any 
one company, 30% in any one industry, 50% in funds that mirror the S&P 500, 50% in large-cap equity securities, 
20% in mid-cap equity securities, 20% in small-cap equity securities and 10% in international equities. 

We expect to contribute $721,000 to our unfunded defined benefit pension plans and $1.1 million to our other 
postretirement benefit plan to cover expected benefit payments in 2006. 

Total benefits expected to be paid under our defined benefit pension plans and other postretirement benefit plan as of 
December 3 1,2005, which reflect expected future service, as appropriate, are as follows: 

Pension Other Postretirement 
Year Benefits Benefits 

(In Thousands) 
2006 $ 9,335 $1,408 
2007 9,419 1,386 
2008 9,577 1,295 
2009 10,082 1,289 
2010 10,384 1,288 
201 1-2015 56,724 6,I 17 
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Incentive Savings Plan 

Astoria Federal maintains a 401(k) incentive savings plan, or the 401(k) Plan, which provides for contributions by both 
Astoria Federal and its participating employees. Under the 401(k) Plan, which is a qualified, defined contribution 
pension plan, participants may contribute up to 15% of their pre-tax base salary, generally not to exceed $14,000 for 
the calendar year ended December 3 1,2005. Matching contributions, if any, may be made at the discretion of Astoria 
Federal. No matching contributions were made for 2005, 2004 and 2003. Participants vest immediately in their own 
contributions and after a period of five years for Astoria Federal contributions. 

Employee Stock Ownership Plan 

Astoria Federal maintains an ESOP for its eligible employees, which is also a defined contribution pension plan. To 
fund the purchase of the ESOP shares, the ESOP borrowed funds from us. The ESOP loans bear an interest rate of 
6.00%, mature on December 3 1,2029 and are collateralized by our common stock purchased with the loan proceeds. 
Astoria Federal makes scheduled discretionary contributions to fund debt service. Astoria Federal's contributions, 
prior to 2010, may be reduced by dividends paid on unallocated shares and investment earnings realized on such 
dividends. Beginning in 2010, dividends paid on unallocated shares will be credited to participant accounts as 
investment earnings. Dividends paid on unallocated shares, which reduced Astoria Federal's contribution to the 
ESOP, totaled $5.4 million for the year ended December 3 1,2005, $4.8 million for the year ended December 3 1,2004 
and $4.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2003. The ESOP loans had an aggregate outstanding principal 
balance of $32.9 million at December 3 1,2005 and $33.8 million at December 3 1,2004. 

Shares purchased by the ESOP are held in trust for allocation among participants as the loans are repaid. Pursuant to 
the loan agreements, the number of shares released annually is based upon a specified percentage of aggregate eligible 
payroll for our covered employees. Shares allocated to participants totaled 336,873 for the year ended December 3 1, 
2005, 337,935 for the year ended December 3 1,2004 and 387,657 for the year ended December 3 1, 2003. Through 
December 3 1,2005, 8,603,289 shares have been allocated to participants. As of December 3 1,2005,6,465,273 shares 
which had a fair value of $190.1 million remain unallocated. In addition to shares allocated, Astoria Federal makes an 
annual cash contribution to participant accounts. This cash contribution totaled $2.4 million for the year ended 
December 3 1,2005, $1.9 million for the year ended December 3 1,2004 and $1.6 million for the year ended December 
31, 2003, and will total not less than $1.2 million each year through 2009. Beginning in 2010, the only cash 
contributions Astoria Federal is required to make are to fund debt service. 

We recorded compensation expense relating to the ESOP of $1 1.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, 
$10.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2004 and $8.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, which 
was equal to the shares allocated by the ESOP multiplied by the average fair value of our common stock during the 
year of allocation, plus the cash contribution made to participant accounts. 

(16) Stock Incentive Plans 

In 2005, we adopted the 2005 Re-designated, Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan for Officers and Employees 
of Astoria Financial Corporation, or the 2005 Employee Stock Incentive Plan. In 1999, we adopted the 1999 Stock 
Option Plan for Outside Directors of Astoria Financial Corporation, or the 1999 Directors' Option Plan. As a result of 
the adoption of these plans, all previous employee and director option plans were frozen and no further option grants 
were made pursuant to those plans. The number of shares reserved for option, restricted stock andlor stock 
appreciation right grants was 5,250,000 under the 2005 Employee Stock Incentive Plan. The number of shares 
reserved for option grants was 525,000 under the 1999 Directors' Option Plan. At December 31, 2005, remaining 
shares available for issuance of future grants totaled 3,829,072 under the 2005 Employee Stock Incentive Plan and 
123,000 under the 1999 Directors' Option Plan. 

Options and restricted stock granted under the 2005 Employee Stock Incentive Plan vest approximately three years 
after the grant date, with a maximum term of seven years for option grants. Options granted to employees under plans 
other than the 2005 Employee Stock Incentive Plan have a maximum term of ten years. Under plans involving grants 
of options or restricted stock to employees, in the event the grantee terminates hidher employment due to death, 
disability, retirement or in the event we experience a change in control, as defined and specified in such plans, all 
options and restricted stock granted immediately vest. Under plans involving grants to outside directors, all options 
granted have a maximum term of ten years and are exercisable immediately on their grant date. Options granted under 
all plans were granted in tandem with limited stock appreciation rights exercisable only in the event we experience a 
change in control, as defined by the plans. 
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On December 22, 2005, we accelerated the vesting of all outstanding unvested options which were granted to 
employees on December 17,2003 and December 15,2004 under the 2003 Employee Option Plan. On December 22, 
2005 there were 1,402,950 unvested shares under the December 17, 2003 grants with an exercise price of $24.40 per 
share and a vest date of January 10, 2007 and 1,897,200 unvested shares under the December 15,2004 grants with an 
exercise price of $26.63 and a vest date of January 10, 2008. The fair value of our stock on the effective date of the 
acceleration was $29.72 per share, therefore, these options were in-the-money at the time of the acceleration. We 
recognized pre-tax compensation expense in 2005 of $1 1 1,000 as a result of the accelerated vesting of these options. 
The purpose of the acceleration was to eliminate compensation expense associated with these options in future periods 
upon our adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) effective January 1, 2006. The accelerated vesting eliminates pre-tax 
compensation expense of approximately $10.4 million, which would have been recognized in hture periods, including 
approximately $6.7 million in 2006. Subsequent to December 22, 2005, shares acquired through the exercise of 
options granted on December 17, 2003 or December 15, 2004 may not be sold prior to the earlier of the date the 
optionee terminates employment with us or the original vesting date. A number of the options which were accelerated 
were intended to qualify as incentive stock options when granted. The accelerated vesting disqualified most of such 
options from incentive stock option tax treatment. Upon the optionees' exercise of such disqualified options, we may 
realize certain tax benefits that would not have otherwise been available. 

In December 2005, 196,828 shares of restricted stock were granted to select officers with a fair value of $29.02 per 
share on the grant date. There was no other restricted stock activity for the years ended December 3 1,2005,2004 and 
2003. 

Option activity in our stock incentive plans is summarized as follows: 

For the Year Ended December 31, 
2005 2004 2003 

Weighted Weighted Weighted 
Average Average Average 

Number Exercise Number Exercise Number Exercise 
of Options Price of Options Price of Options Price 

Outstanding at beginning of year 10,922,133 $19.02 10,345,493 $16.83 10,262,826 $14.32 
Granted 1,284,100 28.89 2,014,800 26.55 1,529,700 24.10 
Forfeited (29,250) (22.63) (47,400) (20.07) (8,190) (17.56) 
Exercised (1,048,283) (1 5.36) J1.390,760) (13.62) (1,438,843) (6.60) 
Outstanding at end of year 1 1.128.700 20.50 10.922.133 19.02 10.345.493 16.83 
Options exercisable at end of year 8,041,150 19.78 4,182,633 14.85 4,007,393 13.63 

The following table summarizes information about our options outstanding at December 3 1,2005: 

Exercise Prices 
$ 7.42 to $15.02 

16.27 to 17.49 
18.00 to 19.92 
24.17 to 24.40 
26.23 to 26.63 

29.02 
$ 7.42 to $29.02 

O~tions Outstanding 
Weighted Weighted 

Number Average Remaining Average 
of Outions Contractual Life Exercise Price 
1,526,757 3.3 1 years $11.94 
2,573,444 5.36 16.69 
2,370,149 6.1 1 18.25 
1,466,100 7.96 24.39 
1,968,150 8.96 26.61 
1,224,100 6.97 29.02 

1 1 .128.700 6.40 20.50 

Options Exercisable 
Weighted 

Number Average 
of Options Exercise Price 
1,526,757 $1 1.94 
2,565,944 16.69 

514,199 19.13 
1,466,100 24.39 
1,968,150 26.61 

8.04 1 .I 50 19.78 
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The following table summarizes the per share weighted-average fair value of options granted. The per share weighted- 
average fair value of options was calculated to determine the effect on net income and EPS if we had applied the fair 
value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to stock-based employee compensation. See Note l(q) for an 
illustration of the effect on net income and EPS of the provisions of SFAS No. 123. 

For the Year Ended December 31, 
2005 2004 2003 

Weighted Weighted Weighted 
Options Average Options Average Options Average 
Granted Fair Value Granted Fair Value Granted Fair Value 

Employees I,224,1 00 1,948,800 1,463,700 
Outside directors 60,000 66,000 66,000 

1.284.100 2.014.800 $6.11 1.529.700 $6.06 

The per share weighted-average fair value of option grants was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes 
option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions: 

For the Year Ended December 31. 
2005 2004 2003 

Dividend yield 3.27% 2.50% 2.43% 
Expected stock price volatility 21.28 25.17 28.81 
Risk-Eree interest rate based upon 

equivalent-term U.S. Treasury rates 4.25 3.66 3.16 
Expected option lives 4.47 years 5.97 years 5.96 years 

The per share weighted-average fair value of options was calculated using the above assumptions, based on our 
analyses of our historical experience and our judgments regarding future option exercise experience and market 
conditions. The decrease in the weighted-average expected option lives &om 2004 to 2005 reflects the anticipated 
effect of the shorter contractual term of seven years for the 2005 employee option grants compared to ten years for the 
2004 employee option grants. These assumptions are subjective in nature, involve uncertainties and, therefore, cannot 
be determined with precision. The Black-Scholes option pricing model also contains certain inherent limitations when 
applied to options which are not immediately exercisable and are not traded on public markets. 

(1 7) Regulafory Matfers 

Federal law requires that savings associations, such as Astoria Federal, maintain minimum capital requirements. 
These capital standards are required to be no less stringent than standards applicable to national banks, At December 
3 1,2005 and 2004, Astoria Federal was in compliance with all regulatory capital requirements. 

The following table sets forth the regulatory capital calculations for Astoria Federal. 

At December 31,2005 
Capital Actual Excess 

(Dollars in Thousands) Requirement % Capital Yo Capital Yo 
Tangible $33 1,748 1.50% $1,444,407 6.53% $1,112,658 5.03% 
Leverage 884,665 4.00 1,444,407 6.53 559,742 2.53 
Risk-based 974,327 8.00 1,525,566 12.53 551,239 4.53 

At December 31,2004 
Capital Actual Excess 

(Doilars in Thousands) Requirement % Capital YO Capital YO 
Tangible $345,326 1 SO% $1,379,088 5.99% $1,033,762 4.49% 
Leverage 920,869 4.00 1,379,088 5 9 9  458,219 1.99 
Risk-based 939,958 8.00 1,46 1,870 12.44 521,912 4.44 

Astoria Federal's Tier I risked-based capital ratio was 11.86% at December 31, 2005 and 11.74% at December 31, 
2004. 
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The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991, or FDICIA, established a system of prompt 
corrective action to resolve the problems of undercapitalized institutions. The regulators adopted rules which require 
them to take action against undercapitalized institutions, based upon the five categories of capitalization which 
FDICIA created: "well capitalized," "adequately capitalized," "undercrtpitalized," "significantly undercapitalized" and 
"critically undercapitalized."The rules adopted generally provide that an insured institution whose total risk-based 
capital ratio is 10% or greater, Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio is 6% or greater, leverage capital ratio is 5% or greater 
and is not subject to any written agreement, order, capital directive or prompt corrective action directive issued by the 
FDIC shall be considered a "well capitalized" institution. As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, Astoria Federal was a 
''well capitalized instifxtion, 

(1 8) Feir Value of Financial lnstrumenfs 

Estimated fair values of certain types of financial instruments are most commonly derived from quoted market prices 
available in formal trading marketplaces. In many cases, financial instruments we hold are not bought or sold in 
formal trading marketplaces. Accordingly, in cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are 
derived or estimated based on a variety of valuation techniques. Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in 
time, based on relevant market information about the financial instrument. These estimates do not reflect any possible 
tax ramifications, estimated transaction costs, or any premium or discount that could result from offering f i r  sale at 
one time our entire holdings of a particular financial instrument. Because no rnarket exists for a certain portion of our 
financial instruments, fair value estimates are based on judgments regarding future loss experience, current economic 
conditions, risk characteristics, and other such factors. These estimates are subjective in nature, involve uncertainties 
and, therefore, cannot be determined with precision. Changes in assumptions could significantly affect the estimates. 
For these reasons and others, the estimated fair value disclosures presented herein do not represent our entire 
underlying value. As such, readers are cautioned in using this information for purposes of evaluating our financial 
condition andor value either alone or in comparison with any other company. 

The following table summarizes the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of our financial instruments. 

At December 31. 
2005 2004 

Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated 
In Thousands f ) Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value 

Financial Assets: 
Repurchase agreements $ 182,803 $ 182,803 $ 267,578 $ 267,578 
Securities available-for-sale 1,841,351 1,841,351 2,406,883 2,406,883 
Securities held-to-maturity 4,730,953 4,627,O 13 6,302,936 6,306,760 
FHLB-NY stock 145,247 145,247 f 63,700 163,700 
Loans held-for-sale, net 23,651 23,657 23,802 23,8 13 
Loans receivable, net 14,311,134 14,224,372 13,180,52 1 '13,362,582 
MSR, net 16,502 16,522 16,799 16,799 
Interest rate swaps - 1,365 1,365 

Financial Liabilities: 
Deposits 
Borrowings, net 
Interest rate swaps 

Methods and assumptions used to estimate fair values are as follows: 

Repurchase agreements 
The carrying amounts of repurchase agreements approximate fair values since all mature in one month or less. 

Securities avaiiable-for-sale and held-to-maturity 
Fair values for securities are based on published or securities dealers' estimated market values, 

FHLB-NY stock 
The carrying amount of FHLB-NY stock equals cost. The fair value of FHLB-NY stock is based on redemption at par 
value. 



ASTORIA FINANCIAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES T O  CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-(Continued) 

Loans held-for-sale, net 
Fair values of loans held-for-sale are estimated based on current secondary market prices for loans with similar terms. 

Loans receivable, net 
Fair values of loans are estimated by discounting the expected fiture cash flows of pools of loans with similar 
characteristics. The loans are first segregated by type, such as one-to-four family, multi-family, commercial real estate, 
construction and consumer and other, and then further segregated into fixed and adjustable rate and seasoned and 
nonseasoned categories. Expected future cash flows are then projected based on contractual cash flows, adjusted for 
prepayments. Prepayment estimates are based on a variety of factors including our experience with respect to  each loan 
category, the effect of current economic and lending conditions and regional statistics for each loan category, if 
available. The discount rates used are based on market rates for new loans of similar type and purpose, adjusted, when 
necessary, for factors such as servicing cost, credit risk and term. 

As previously mentioned, this technique of estimating fair value is extremely sensitive to the assumptions and estimates 
used. While we have attempted to use assumptions and estimates which are the most reflective of the loan portfolio and 
the current market, a greater degree of subjectivity is inherent in determining these fair values than for fair values 
obtained from formal trading marketplaces. 

MSR, net 
The fair value of MSR is obtained through independent third party valuations through an analysis of future cash flows, 
incorporating numerous market based assumptions including market discount rates, prepayment speeds, servicing 
income, servicing costs, default rates and other market driven data. 

Interest rate swaps 
Fair values for interest rate swaps are based on securities dealers' estimated market values. 

Deposits 
The fair values of deposits with no stated maturity, such as savings accounts, NOW accounts, money market accounts 
and demand deposits, are equal to the amount payable on demand. The fair values of certificates of deposit and Liquid 
CDs are based on discounted contractual cash flows using rates which approximate the rates we offer for deposits of 
similar remaining maturities. 

Borrowings, net 
Fair value estimates are based on securities dealers' estimated market values, when available, or discounted contractual 
cash flows using rates which approximate the rates offered for borrowings of similar remaining maturities. 

Outstanding commitments 
Outstanding commitments include (1) commitments to extend credit and unadvanced lines of credit for which fair 
values were estimated based on an analysis of the interest rates and fees currently charged to enter into similar 
transactions, considering the remaining terms of the commitments and the creditworthiness of the potential borrowers 
and (2) commitments to sell residential mortgage loans for which fair values were estimated based on current secondary 
market prices for commitments with similar terms. Due to the short-term nature of our outstanding commitments, the 
fair values of these commitments are immaterial to our financial condition. 
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(19) Condensed Parent Company Only Financial Statements 

The following condensed parent company only financial statements reflect our investments in our wholly-owned 
consolidated subsidiaries, Astoria Federal and AF Insurance Agency, Inc., using the equity method of accounting. 

Astoria Financial Corporation - Condensed Statements of Financial Condition 

At December 31, 
(In Thousands) 2005 2004 
Assets: 

Cash $ $ 1 
Repurchase agreements 182,803 267,578 
Other securities available-for-sale 127 133 
ESOP loans receivable 32,881 33,796 
Accrued interest receivable 104 78 
Other assets 953 2,662 
Investment in Astoria Federal 1,593,272 1,548,005 
Investment in AF Insurance Agency, Inc. 3,565 2,641 
Investment in Astoria Capital Trust I 3.929 3.929 

Total assets $1.8 17.634 $1.858.823 
Liabilities and stockholders' equity: 

Other borrowings, net $ 433,526 $ 455,835 
Other liabilities 7,9 17 6,161 
Amounts due to subsidiaries 25,964 27,063 
Stockholders' eauitv 1,350,227 1,369,764 

Total liabilities and stockholders' eauitv $1.8 17.634 $1.858.823 

Astoria Financial Corporation - Condensed Statements of Income 

For the Year Ended December 31, 
[In Thousands) 2005 2004 2003 
Interest income: 

Repurchase agreements and other securities $ 6,130 $ 1,139 $ 1,500 
ESOP loans receivable 2.027 2,079 2,140 

Total interest income 8,157 3,218 3,640 
Interest expense on borrowinas 30,153 29,363 29.8 16 
Net interest expense 2 1 .996 26,145 26,176 
Non-interest income 713 1,307 (1,074) 
Cash dividends from subsidiaries 200,000 522,470 120,000 
Non-interest expense: 

Compensation and benefits 2,979 1,878 1,736 
Other 2,901 7,132 2,323 

Total non-interest expense 5,880 9.010 4,059 
Income before income taxes and equity in 

undistributed (overdistributed) earnings of subsidiaries 172,837 488,622 88,691 
Income tax benefit 1 1,238 14,028 12,970 
Income before equity in undistributed (overdistributed) 

earnings of subsidiaries 184,075 502,650 101,661 
Equity in undistributed (overdistributed) earnings 

of subsidiaries ( 1) 49,728 (283.1 13) 95,185 
Net income $233.803 $2 19.537 $196.846 

(1) The equity in overdistributed earnings of subsidiaries for the year ended December 3 1, 2004 represents dividends 
paid to us in excess of our subsidiaries' 2004 earnings. 
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Astoria Financial Corporation - Condensed Statements of Cash Flows 

For the Year Ended December 31, 
(IH Thousands1 2005 2004 2003 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Net income $ 233,803 $ 219,537 $196,846 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash 

provided by operating activities: 
Equity in (undistributed) overdistributed earnings of 

subsidiaries (49,728) 283,113 (95, 1 85) 
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest receivable (26) (69) 13 
Amortization of premiums and deferred costs 1,148 1,142 1,070 
Decrease (increase) in other assets, net of other liabilities 

and amounts due to subsidiaries 578 434 (82) 
Net cash provided by operating activities 185,775 504,157 102,662 
Cash flows from investing activities: 

Princiwal payments on ESOP loans receivable 9 15 924 942 
Net cash provided by investing activities 915 924 942 
Cash flows fkom financing activities: 

Repayments of borrowings with original terms greater 
than three months (20,000) (20,000) * 

Common stock repurchased ( 1  80,944) (225,052) (1 95,47 1) 
Cash dividends paid to stockholders (86,625) (76,720) (76,370) 
Redemption of preferred stock - (54,500) 
Cash received for options exercised f 6.103 18,344 8,793 

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (84,776) 20 1,653 (2 13,944) 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 267.579 65.926 279,870 
Cash and cash eouivalents at end of vear $ 182.803 $ 267.579 $ 65.926 

Supplemental disclosure: 
Cash  aid during the vear for interest $ 29.321 $ 28.733 $ 28,892 



Q U A R T E R L Y  R E S U L T S  O F  O P E R A T I O N S  (Unaudited) 

For the Year Ended December 31,2005 
First Second Third Fourth 

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter 
Interest income $ 273,103 $ 270,210 $ 268,973 $ 270,701 
Interest expense 147,890 148,863 150,437 157,017 
Net interest income 125,213 121,347 118,536 113,684 
Provision for loan losses - 
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 125,213 121,347 1 18,536 113,684 
Non-interest income 24,742 22,526 28,372 26,559 
Total income 149,955 143,873 146,908 140,243 
General and administrative expense 60,5 12 57,563 57,915 52,744 
Income before income tax expense 89,443 86,3 10 88,993 87,499 
Income tax expense 29,964 28,914 29,814 29,750 
Net income $ 59,479 $ 57,396 $ 59,179 $ 57,749 
Basic earnings per common share $ 0.58 $ 0.56 $ 0.59 $ 0.58 
Diluted earnings per common share $ 0.57 $ 0.55 $ 0.57 $ 0.57 

For the Year Ended December 31,2004 
First Second Third Fourth 

(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter 
Interest income $ 261,094 $ 252,563 $ 264,080 $ 268,164 
Interest expense 146.581 139.247 142.222 147.285 
Net interest income 114,513 113,316 121,858 120,879 
Provision for loan losses - - 
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 114,513 113,316 121,858 120,879 
Non-interest income 22,139 27,866 24,036 6,043 (1) 
Total income 136,652 141,182 145,894 126,922 
General and administrative expense 57,043 55,360 59,168 53,440 
Income before income tax expense 79,609 85,822 86,726 73,482 
Income tax expense 26,196 28,321 28,619 22,966 
Net income $ 53,413 $ 57,501 $ 58,107 $ 50,516 
Basic earnings per common share $ 0.48 $ 0.53 $ 0.54 $ 0.48 
Diluted earnings per common share $ 0.47 $ 0.52 $ 0.53 $ 0.48 

(1) Includes a $16.5 million charge for an other-than-temporary securities impairment write-down. 
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Bylaws of Astoria Financial Corporation, as amended May 19,2004. (2) 

Astoria Financial Corporation Specimen Stock Certificate. (3) 
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Savings and Loan Association Employee Stock Ownership Plan Trust and The 
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Amended and Restated Loan Agreement by and between Astoria Federal Savings 
and Loan Association Employee Stock Ownership Plan Trust and Astoria 
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Promissory Note of Astoria Federal Savings and Loan Association Employee 
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2005 Re-designated, Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan for Officers and 
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Astoria Federal Savings and Loan Association Annual Incentive Plan for Select 
Executives. (1 4) 

Astoria Financial Corporation Executive Officer Annual Incentive Plan, as 
amended. (1 7) 

Astoria Financial Corporation Amended and Restated Employment Agreement 
with George L. Engelke, Jr., dated as of January 1,2000. (1 8) 
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Astoria Federal Savings and Loan Association Amended and Restated 
Employment Agreement with George L. Engeike, Jr., dated as of January 1,2000. 
(1 8) 

Astoria Financial Corporation Amended and Restated Employment Agreement 
with Gerard C, Keegan, dated as of January I ,  2000. (1 8) 

Astoria Federal Savings and Loan Association Amended and Restated 
Employment Agreement with Gerard C. Keegan, dated as of January 1,2000. (1 8) 

Employment Termination and Release Agreement by and among John J. Conefiy, 
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Astoria Financial Corporation Amended and Restated Employment Agreement 
with Arnold K. Greenberg dated as of January 1,2000. (1 8) 

Astoria Federal Savings and Loan Association Amended and Restated 
Employment Agreement with Arnold I(. Greenberg, dated as of January 1, 2000. 
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Astoria Financial Corporation Employment Agreement with Gary T. McCann, 
dated as of December 1,2003. (3) 

Astoria Federal Savings and Loan Association Employment Agreement with Gary 
T. McCann, dated as of December 1,2003. (3) 
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10.35 Change of Control Severance Agreement, dated as of January 1, 2000, by and 
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Tmst Agreement, dated as of January 31, 1995 between Astoria Financial 
Corporation and State Street Bank and Trust Company. (3) 

Statement regarding computation of ratios. (*) 

Subsidiaries of Astoria Financial Corporation. (*) 

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. (*) 
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121 



Exhibit No. 

32.3 

32.2 
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Written Statement of Chief Executive Officer b i s h e d  pursuant to Section 906 
of the Sarbanes-Oxky Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350. Pursuant &I SEC 
rules, this exhibit will not be deemed filed for purposes of Section 38 of the 
Exchange Act or othedse subject to the liability of that section. (*I 
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the Sxbmes-OAey Act o f  2002, I 8 U.S.C. Section 1350. Pursumt to SSEC nxtes, 
this exhibit will not be deemed filed for purposes of Section 18 af the Exchmge 
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is incorporated herein by reference. 
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$0 Astoria Financial Corporation, fnvestr>r Rela~orrs Department, One Astoria Federal 
Plaza, Lake Success, New Ubrk 1 I042 at a charge of $0.10 per page, Copies me also 
available at na charge thoagh the SEC website at ~4~w.sec.govfedgaisearchedgar 
~webusers,btm, 
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8-K, dated May f 9,2004, filed with the: Secwities and Exchmge C o d s s i o n  on Nay 
X 9,2004 (Fife Number 00 1-1 1367). 

Incorpomted by reference to Astarin X;"bmcial ~oqcrration's Amuaf Report on I?um 
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 3 1,2003, filed with the Securities and Exchmge 
Commission on M m h  12,2004 (File Number 00 1 - 1 1967). 

Incorporated by reference $0 Astoria Financial Corporation's Annual Report on Fom 
10-K for the fiscal yea  ended December 3 1 1, 2000, filed with the Securities and Exchange 
Comission on March 26,2001. (File Nt~mber 000-222223), 

fncorpurated by reference to Astoria Financistl Co'pomtiua's b w d  Report on Form 
$0-K for the fiscal yeas ended December 3 1,2004, filed with the Securities ;uzd Exchmge 
Commission on March 9,2005 (File Number 001 - 1 $967). 

incorporated by reference to Astoria Financial Corporation's Current Report on Fom 
8-K, dated February 9, 2005, filed with the Secarities and Exchange Comission on 
February 3 0,2005 (File number 001 -l.l96?). 

Incorporated by reference to Astiaria F inmid  Coqoration's Registrafirm Statement on 
Fom 8-UA dated July 6 7, 1986, filed with the Secwities and Exchange Commission on 
Sufy 23, X 9% (File Number 000-22228). 



hcoqorated by reference to Astoria Finmeid Coqor&on% Current Report on F ~ n n  
8-WA, dated April 2,1998, filed with the Securities and Exchange Comission on April 
10, 1998 (File Number 000-2222'8), as amended by the First h e n h e n t ,  incorporated 
by reference to ;the Re@smt9s Current Report on Form 8-K, dated May 23, 1 998 (File 
Nmber 000-22228) and the Second h e n d m e ~ t ~  incopr&ed by refereme to the 
Regsmt's h e a t  Report on Form 8-K, dated July 10,1998 (File Nwber 000-22228)- 

Incorporated by reference to Astoria FhanciaI Copora~on's Quarterly Report on Form 
10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2 999, fikd with the Securities md Exchange 
Cowssion on November X 2,1999 (File Nmber 000-22228). 

fncorporatd by reference to Form 23-4 Registration SWement* filed with the Secdties 
and Exchange C o d s s i o n  on February 18,2000 (File Nmber 33330792)- 

fncorpomted by reference to Fom 5-4 Registration St&ment, filed with the S e c ~ t i e s  
md Exchmge C u e s s i o n  cm Daember 6,2002 (Fife Nmber 333- XO1694). 

bcorporated by reference to Form 424B3 Prospectus Supplement, filed with the 
Securjties and Exchmge Comission on Febmary 1,2000 (File Nmber 033-98532). 

Incorporated by reference to Astoria Financial C o ~ m e o n k  Cwent Report an Fom 
8-K, dated December 21, 2005, fded with the Secwi~es and Bxchmge C o d s s i o n  on 
December 22,2005 (File Number If01 -1 1967). 

fncorporated by reference to Astoria Finmeial Corporatio13.'~ h a &  Report on Form 
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 3 1,1888, filed with the SeclKities and Exchange 
Godss ioa  on March 24,1999 (File N m b r  000-22228). 

Incorporated by reference to Astoria Financial Covration3s Schedule 14A Definitive 
Proxy Sbtement filed an April I. 1,2005 (File Nmbex 001-1 1967). 

Incorpomted by reference to Astoria Financial Coqoration's bud Repost on Fom 
10-K for the fiscd year ended December 3 2,1997, filed with the Securities and Exchange 
C o ~ i s s i o n  on Mach 25, 1998 (File Number 000122228). 

In~orporate$ by reference to Astoria Financial Corporation's Schedule 14A f l e f ~ t i v e  
Proxy Satement filed on Agril X 4,2004 pile Number 00 1 - 1 1967). 

Xncorpomted by reference to Astoria Financial Corporation's Amud Report on Form 
1 0-K for the fiscal year ended December 3 3,1999, filed with the Swdties md Exchange 

ssion on Mmh 24,2000 (Fife Mmber 000-2228), 

Incorporated by reference to Astoria Finnncial CorpomGon" Registration Statement on 
Form 5-8, dated September 30,1988, filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
on Septembr 30, I998 pile Number 333-64895). 





corporate directory

board of directors

George L. Engelke, Jr.
Chairman, President and  
Chief Executive Officer
Astoria Financial Corporation  
and Astoria Federal Savings  
and Loan Association

Andrew M. Burger 
Retired President
Atlantic Iron Works, Inc.

John J. Conefry, Jr.
Vice Chairman,  
Astoria Financial Corporation
Former Chairman and  
Chief Executive Officer
Long Island Bancorp, Inc.

Denis J. Connors 
Former Chairman and  
Chief Executive Officer
Curran & Connors, Inc.

Thomas J. Donahue 
Retired Partner, Peat, Marwick,  
Mitchell & Co., predecessor of KPMG  LLP

Peter C. Haeffner, Jr. 
Managing Director and Principal
PHAEF, LLC

Gerard C. Keegan
Vice Chairman and  
Chief Administrative Officer
Astoria Financial Corporation  
and Astoria Federal Savings  
and Loan Association

Ralph F. Palleschi 
President and Chief Operating Officer
First Long Island Investors, Inc.

Thomas V. Powderly
Former Chairman and 
Chief Executive Officer
Fidelity New York F.S.B.

Leo J. Waters 
President
L. J. Waters, Inc.

Astoria Financial Corporation and Astoria 
Federal Savings and Loan Association

executive officers

George L. Engelke, Jr.
Chairman, President and  
Chief Executive Officer

Alan P. Eggleston
Executive Vice President,  
Secretary and General Counsel

Arnold K. Greenberg
Executive Vice President

Gerard C. Keegan
Vice Chairman and  
Chief Administrative Officer

Gary T. McCann
Executive Vice President

Monte N. Redman
Executive Vice President and  
Chief Financial Officer

Astoria Federal Savings and  
Loan Association

senior vice presidents

Josie Callari
Director of Banking Operations

Robert J. DeStefano
Chief Information Officer

Anthony S. DiCostanzo*
Director of Taxes

Brian T. Edwards
Director of Marketing

Frank E. Fusco*
Treasurer

Thomas E. Lavery*
Deputy General Counsel

William J. Mannix*
Director of Internal Audit Services

Robert T. Volk
Director of Retail Banking

Ira M. Yourman
Director of Loan Administration  
and Servicing

* Also an officer of  
Astoria Financial Corporation

shareholder information

Corporate Offices
Astoria Financial Corporation
One Astoria Federal Plaza
Lake Success, NY  11042-1085
(516) 327-3000

Stock Listing
Astoria Financial Corporation common 
stock is traded on the New York Stock 
Exchange under the ticker symbol AF. 

Annual Meeting
The Annual Meeting of Shareholders  
will be held on Wednesday, May 17, 
2006 at 9:30 a.m. Eastern Time at  
The Inn at New Hyde Park  
214 Jericho Turnpike
New Hyde Park, New York 11040

Transfer Agent and Registrar  
Mellon Investor Services LLC
Newport Office Center VII
480 Washington Boulevard
Jersey City, New Jersey 07310-1900
(800) 301-3563

General Shareholder Inquiries/
Address Changes/Consolidations
Mellon Investor Services LLC
P.O. Box 3315
South Hackensack, New Jersey 07606
(800) 301-3563

Dividend Reinvestment and Stock 
Purchase Plan
Mellon Investor Services LLC
P.O. Box 3315
South Hackensack, New Jersey 07606
(800) 301-3563

Independent Auditors
KPMG, LLP
345 Park Avenue
New York, New York  10154

Shareholder/Investor Information
Shareholders, investors and security  
analysts interested in corporate  
information may contact:
Peter J. Cunningham
First Vice President
Director of Investor Relations
Astoria Financial Corporation
One Astoria Federal Plaza
Lake Success, NY  11042-1085
(516) 327-7877
Email: ir@astoriafederal.com

Web site:
Information about Astoria Federal 
Savings, its products, services, locations 
and community events, as well as other 
banking information, may be obtained on 
our web site at www.astoriafederal.com. 
Investors interested in Astoria Financial 
Corporation stock quotes, news releases, 
investor presentations, SEC filings and 
other corporate information, please  
click on the investor relations tab on  
our web site, or you may directly access 
the investor relations page through  
http://ir.astoriafederal.com.d
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One Astoria Federal Plaza 
Lake Success, NY 11042-1085

astoriafederal.com
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